
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 
GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CIVIC CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

June 13, 2023 – 6:30 PM  
6:30 p.m. - CALL TO ORDER  
  

The City of Gladstone is abiding by guidelines set forth in House Bill 2560, which requires the governing body of the public body, 
to extent reasonably possible, to make all meetings accessible remotely through technological means and provide opportunity for 
members of general public to remotely submit oral and written testimony during meetings to extent in-person oral and written 
testimony is allowed. Therefore, this meeting will be open to the public both in person and virtually using the Zoom platform.   
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89108394751?pwd=MS9aOEdrVVBXdkhiMlFtQlh0eU4vZz09  
 
Passcode: 799852 
 
Or One tap mobile : 
    +17207072699,,89108394751#,,,,*799852# US (Denver); +12532050468,,89108394751#,,,,*799852# US 
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
    +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver); +1 253 205 0468 US; +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 
Webinar ID: 891 0839 4751 
Passcode: 799852 
 
If members of the public would like to comment on an agenda item (either virtually or in person) please email your comments to 
bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) on June 13, 2023. Individuals attending in person may submit a speaker 
card to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
The City Council will also have Gladstone City Event Announcements during the meeting and Business from the Audience at the 
end of the meeting. To speak during either time, (virtually or in person) please email bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 
p.m. (noon) on June 13, 2023 with your name, topic of discussion and city of residence. Individuals attending in person may submit 
a speaker card to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
ROLL CALL 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Approval of May 9, 2023 Regular Minutes  
2. Approval of April Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 04-30-2023 
4. Approval of April Check Register  
5. Legal Costs on Projects for April 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for May 2023 
7. Consider Approval of a Public Improvement Contract to Blackline, Inc. in the amount of $121,206.03 to 

complete the 2023 Pavement Management Program Slurry Seal Project 



 

 

8. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Clackamas County Related to the Clackamas County 
Regional Advanced Transportation Controller (ATC) and Signal Optimization Project 

9. Approval of Authorizing the City Administrator to Approve an Art Easement for a Mural Project with a Private 
Property Owner 
 

CORRESPONDENCE: None 
 
10. REPORT – CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1 UPDATE – Lt. Dustin Mauck/Assistant Fire Chief Brian 

Stewart 
 

11. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS 
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any upcoming city events otherwise not listed on the Agenda. 
Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back 
of the room prior to making a comment. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
12. GLADSTONE COMMUNITY FESTIVAL AGREEMENT   

Consider approval of the Gladstone Community Festival Agreement for August 4-5, 2023 
 
13. RESOLUTION 1215 – AUTHORIZING THE RENAMING OF THE GLADSTONE SENIOR CENTER 

TO GLADSTONE COMMUNITY CENTER – THE SPIRIT OF GENERATIONS 
Consider approval of Resolution 1215 – authorizing the renaming of the Gladstone Senior Center to the Gladstone 
Community Center – The Spirit of Generations  
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING - RESOLUTION 1216 – DECLARING THE CITY’S ELECTION TO RECEIVE 
STATE REVENUE SHARING 
Consider approval of Resolution 1216 – declaring the City’s election to receive State Revenue Sharing 
 

15. RESOLUTION 1217 – CERTIFICATION OF  PROVISION OF FOUR OR MORE SERVICES TO 
QUALIFY FOR STATE SHARED REVENUES FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2023-2025 
Consider approval of Resolution 1217 – certifying the provision of four or more services for State Shared Revenues 
FY 2023-2025 
 

16. PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION 1218 – ADOPTING THE CITY OF GLADSTONE BIENNIUM 
BUDGET, SETTING THE TAX RATE AND CATEGORIZE THE TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 
2023-2025 
Consider approving Resolution 1218 – adopting the City of Gladstone Biennium Budget, and setting the tax rate 
and categorize the tax rate for the FY 2023-2025 (approved budget attached separately)  
 
ADJOURN TO GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING 
 

17. APPROVAL OF MAY 9, 2023 URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MINUTES 
 

18. PUBLIC HEARING – RESOLUTION UR-72 – ADOPTING THE 2023-2025 GLADSTONE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY BIENNIUM BUDGET AND DECLARATION OF TAX INCREMENT FOR THE 
2023-25 TAX YEARS 
Consider approving Resolution UR-72 – adopting the 2023-2025 Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency Biennium 
Budget and declaration of tax increment for the 2023-25 tax years. (approved budget attached separately) 

 
ADJOURN 

 
RECONVENE TO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 



 

 

BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD  
 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Visitors: This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior to 
making a comment. 
 

 Introduction of Alex Lopez, Deputy District Director to Congresswoman Lori Chavez-DeRemer. 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL –   
 
ADJOURN 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates: 

 June 27, 2023 – City Council Work Session Meeting – 5:30 p.m. 
 July 11, 2023 – Regular City Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 

 
MEETING ACCESSIBILITY SERVICES AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) NOTICE 

The Civic Center is ADA accessible.  Hearing devices may be requested from the City Recorder at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Individuals requiring other assistance must make their request know 48 hours preceding the meeting by contacting the 
City Recorder at bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us. Staff will do their best to respond in a timely manner and to accommodate requests.    









1



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 9, 2023 
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Milch at 6:30 P.M. – (Via Zoom and In Person) 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                     
Mayor Michael Milch, Councilor Alexander, Councilor Garlington, Councilor Huckaby, Councilor 
Reichle, Councilor Roberts, Councilor Cook 
 
ABSENT:  None                                                                                                                             
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; John Schmerber, Police Chief;  Cathy Brucker, Finance Consultant; Chad 
Jacobs, City Attorney; Tami Bannick, City Recorder   
 
Mayor Milch called the meeting to order.  He explained that the City is abiding by guidelines set forth in 
House Bill 2560, which requires that they make all meetings accessible remotely, through technologic 
means and provide the opportunity for the public to participate to the best of their ability.  This meeting 
will be open to the public, both in person and virtually, using the Zoom platform.  The Council members 
and staff will be in person, as well as those citizens who wish to attend in person.  He went over the 
procedures that will be followed for the meeting and the meeting agenda.  He said that public 
announcements will be at the beginning of each meeting and public comments will still be at the end. 
 
He acknowledged the Clackamas, Chinook, and Kalapuya native peoples on whose ancestral homelands 
they gather tonight.  We honor them as a vibrant, foundational, and an integral part of our community.  We  
recognize their accomplishments as the native stewards of these lands, as well as the diverse and vibrant 
native communities who make their home here today.  We thank those who have connection to this land 
and serve as stewards, working to ensure our ecosystem stays balanced and healthy.  He said without a full 
representation of everyone’s experience we will never be able to design and develop a better future.   
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                     
Ms. Betz wanted everyone to know the City received an additional application for the Senior Center 
Advisory Board from Maria Mitchell for, so the City now has received two applications for the vacancy.       
 
CONSENT AGENDA:                                

1. Approval of April 11, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes   
2. Approval of March Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 3-31-2023 
4. Approval of March Check Register 
5. Department Head Monthly Reports for April 2023 
 
Councilor Huckaby asked to pull item #1.  She said on page 1-9 of the minutes, in the second 
paragraph, it says that she had done a ride along with Officer Orr – she did not state that.  She had 
congratulated/encouraged Councilor Roberts about his ride along. 
 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to approve items #2 - #5 of the Consent Agenda.  Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Huckaby.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Garlington – yes.   
Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – 
yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to approve item #1 of the Consent Agenda as amended.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Alexander.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Garlington – 
yes.   Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby 
– yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

1 - 1



 
CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            
None.   
                         
6. REPORT FROM CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1:                                                                                              

Assistant Fire Chief Brian Stewart and Captain Craig Bowen gave a report.  Captain Bowen said the 
fire station attended the Easter Egg Hunt at the High School.  The new sign was installed at the fire 
station today and it looks great.  City workers Dan and Joel have been assisting at the station, preparing 
for an open house.  He said any of the Councilors are welcome to come for a ride along with the Fire 
Department.                                                                                                                                     
 
Clackamas Fire District #1 has been seeing a slight increase in calls for service.  Engine 322 ran 123 
calls this month, 106 of those were in the City of Gladstone.                                                                                            
 
Assistant Chief Stewart said the crews enjoyed the community events, including some open houses.  
They celebrated Telecommunicators Month in April.  It takes a unique individual to do their job and 
they do a fantastic job.  They also offer ride alongs.                                                                                   
 
They brought on their 20-person hand crew – their seasonal crew that is out there mitigating old 
wildfire issues and they are prepared to respond to new wildfires as they come up.  They were 
instrumental during last September’s fire at McIver State Park.                                                                
 
Crews were out doing structural triage training, as well as getting vehicles/apparatus set for the season.                           
Last year they applied for and received a grant for $35,000 from the State to do some up-staffing with 
existing personnel during wildfire season – they have applied for that again.                                                                   
 
They received a grant award from the State for an engine.  They expect to get a Type 6 engine in the 
next 12 – 18 months.  It’s a small brush truck type engine.  They will be housing it for the State and 
staffing it as needed.  He gave examples on how/where this could be used.                                                                      
 
They are getting ready to provide service for Sandy on July 1st.                                                                  
 
Councilor Cook asked, since they are expanding their influence pretty widely and quickly, if they 
anticipate any economies of scale, changes, or improvements to service or resources.  Assistant Chief 
Stewart said what you see with most of their customers is an increase in service.  He said they are a 
customer of other agencies as well – they outsource dispatch and other component pieces that they can 
do at an economy of scale that they can’t do internally.  He used Gladstone’s situation as an example.  
He went over Sandy’s situation.                                                                     
 
Councilor Roberts thanked them for their preventative maintenance out in the community - seeing 
what they do on social media, such as water safety.                                                                           
 
Councilor Huckaby asked how the apprenticeship program was going.  They just finished the selection 
process – candidates are going through the background check and pre-employment physical.  They 
had over 400 applicants – that got narrowed down to 26 finalists.  They made 9 job offers through the 
apprenticeship program itself, and if the levy passes this month, there will be additional positions 
offered for their next academy, which is in June.   
 

7. INTRODUCTION OF COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER:                                                                                    
Chief Schmerber introduced Samantha, “Sammy”, Unda.  She finished first in both hiring phases.  
They are excited to have her on their team.  He gave some background information and work history.  
She is a certified Child Passenger Safety Technician (CPST) through the National Highway Safety 
Administration.  She has three more weeks to go in her training program. 

1 - 2



 
Councilor Cook is excited that Officer Unda is a CPST.  There have been a lot of community members 
asking about where they can find support making sure that they have a safe way to transport their kids 
around.  Officer Unda said CPST’s are there to educate people regarding the use of car seats and how 
to install them properly.  Chief Schmerber said they are moving the workdays to Tuesday through 
Saturday so they can attend community events on weekends.  He said she will be at the Shredding 
Event/Drug Take-Back Event this Saturday (between 10:00 A.M. and 2:00 P.M.) in the parking lot of 
the Civic Center – he invited everyone to attend.        

 
8. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS:                                                                                                  

Bob Everett, representing Gladstone/Oak Lodge Rotary Club, thanked the Councilors and staff 
members for the great job they do.  He is excited to see the flowers along Portland Avenue that are 
coming tomorrow.                                                                                                                                                          
 
He said the next bingo game is on May 19th.  Tickets are available starting at 4:30, doors open at 4:50, 
and bingo will start at 5:30.  They’ve had great attendance.  This month they will be supporting the 
Rivers East Adventure, which helps seniors.  They have started a sponsorship program.                                                 
 
The Community Festival is scheduled for August 4th and 5th.  They can always use more vendors.  The 
car show will be on Sunday.  The parade liaison will be Tracy Todd.  Information is available online.    
 
Mayor Milch said the kick-off event of the Waterway Clean-Up Series, sponsored by Clackamas 
Water Environmental Services, is next Thursday, May 18th, from 9:00 A.M. to 11:00 A.M. at Meldrum 
Bar Park. They need volunteers to help preserve this 85-acre park, over 30 percent of which is made 
up of natural vegetation and wetlands.  Additional information is available on the City’s website.   

 
REGULAR AGENDA                  

 
9. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) BETWEEN THE CITY OF LAKE 

OSWEGO AND THE CITY OF GLADSTONE FOR WARRANT CONFIRMATION:                           
Ms. Betz said this is an agreement that the City has been committed to for the last several years, 
however, because they have five new elected officials, this will give Chief Schmerber an opportunity 
to talk about the partnership.  Chief Schmerber gave some background information/history relevant to 
the IGA.  It was originally started in 2020.  The City entered into this agreement because the 
Clackamas County Sheriff's Office had confirmed Municipal Court warrants for Gladstone in the past, 
but due to financial reductions they no longer did this in 2020.  The only other option was Lake 
Oswego/LOCOM.  They have the staffing to provide the service.  They entered into a one-year 
agreement in 2020 – it was successful and they showed that they can accomplish this task.  They 
renewed the IGA in 2021.  Now, in 2023, he is bringing it back before the Council for an additional 
two-year extension.  He gave an example of how the system works.   
 
Councilor Alexander made a motion that the City Council approve the renewal of an 
Intergovernmental Agency Agreement (IGA) between the City of Gladstone and the City of Lake 
Oswego for Police Department warrant service confirmation.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Roberts and Reichle.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – 
yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes. Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor 
Roberts – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 
10. LETTER OF ENDORSEMENT TO METRO FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

PROJECTS 2024 -2027 (PORTLAND AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS AND TROLLEY TRAIL 
BRIDGE):                                                                                               
Ms. Betz said they have two high profile/highly expensive projects that Gladstone has been working 
on for multiple years.  One of them is going through the process of replacing the Trolley Trail bridge 

1 - 3



and the other is to do Portland Avenue improvements that were based off the 2017 Downtown 
Revitalization Plan.  In order for those projects to be considered for federal or state funding they have 
to be on what’s known as Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan.  They are asking the Council to 
endorse the letter they would send to Metro recognizing that these projects are still important to the 
City of Gladstone. They do not have funding for them currently, but this would allow us the 
opportunity to pursue funding to move these projects through the planning and environmental phase.   
 
Councilor Roberts made a motion that the City Council approve the letter of endorsement to Metro 
for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Projects.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Huckaby.  
Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor 
Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes. Councilor Garlington – yes. Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Mayor 
Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.   
 

11. APPOINTMENTS TO THE GLADSTONE PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY 
BOARD, SENIOR CENTER ADVISORY BOARD, AND TRAFFIC SAFETY ADVISORY 
BOARD:                                                                               
Ms. Betz went over the process they have done in previous meetings.   
   
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – one vacant term that expires at the end of 2023.  They have 
one applicant – Justus Mills.                                                                                                                                 
 
Ms. Bannick took a vote: Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – 
yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes. Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Mayor Milch – 
yes.  Justus Mills was appointed with a unanimous vote. 

 
Senior Center Advisory Board – one vacant term that expires at the end of 2023.  They have two 
applicants (Ann Moses and Maria Mitchell). 
 
Ms. Bannick took a vote:  Councilor Huckaby – Mitchell.  Councilor Alexander – Mitchell.  Councilor 
Reichle – Mitchell.  Councilor Cook – Mitchell.  Councilor Roberts – Mitchell.  Councilor Garlington 
– Mitchell.  Mayor Milch – Mitchell.  Maria Mitchell was appointed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Traffic Safety Advisory Board – one vacant term that expires at the end of 2023.  They have two 
applicants (Clair Coy and John Kihlstrum).                                                                                                     
 
Ms. Bannick took a vote:  Councilor Cook – Kihlstrum.  Councilor Roberts – Coy.  Councilor 
Garlington – Coy.  Councilor Huckaby – Kihlstrum.  Councilor Alexander – Coy. Councilor Reichle 
– Kihlstrum. Mayor Milch – Kihlstrum.  John Kihlstrum is appointed (4-3).               
 

ADJOURN TO GLADSTONE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING 
 
RECONVENE TO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

14. DISCUSSION OF STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST (SEI):                                                                   
Mayor Milch said that persons in a position of public trust; judges, attorneys, elected officials, have 
a two-fold ethical responsibility.  First, to avoid impropriety and second, to avoid the appearance of 
impropriety. The reason for the first is obvious; officials are sworn to uphold the law, but the second 
is equally important as the appearance of impropriety by a public official can do far-reaching damage 
to the public’s trust of their elected leaders.  In September of 2021, when the Gladstone City Council 
was proactively working on issues of trust and accountability he recommended they schedule a public 
disclosure of personal economic interests that might influence their policy decisions.  When he was 
elected as Mayor last fall he chose to follow his own advice.  In January he placed this item on the 
agenda.  He couldn’t have known then that public officials in the Supreme Court and Oregon State 

1 - 4



government would be front page news for alleged ethical violations, but he is glad that the issue is 
front and center in the minds of citizens.  He is happy to report that all sixteen of the Gladstone 
officials who are required to file a Statement of Economic Interest (7 City Councilors, 7 Planning 
Commissioners, the City Administrator, and the City’s Municipal Judge) have complied with that 
requirement by the April 15th deadline.  The City Councilors will have an opportunity tonight to 
elaborate on their SEI reports. 
 
He said the SEI reports ask basically three kinds of information:  businesses with which you are 
affiliated, sources of income within your household, property that you own outside of your own 
residence, and any gifts you have received that might exceed the limits that are imposed on those.   
 
He said he and his wife were both retired when they moved to Gladstone.  His wife receives a small 
pension from her service as a nurse for Kaiser.  He takes some distributions from IRA’s that he 
accumulated during his working years.  They also have a third member of their household – they 
assumed guardianship of a teenager who was living in an untenable housing situation, and he works 
at a local fast-food restaurant.  He doesn’t believe there is any conflict there.  The only property they 
own in Gladstone is their residence. 
 
Councilor Huckaby said she works for Cambia, the parent company for Blue Cross/Blue Shield and 
Four State Footprint, which is Oregon, Washington, Idaho, and Utah.  She has two children who live 
with her – their income does not meet the threshold of her annual income, so it’s not reported. 
 
Councilor Alexander said he is the only breadwinner in his family and that comes from a Veteran’s 
disability compensation.  He is involved with two organizations – one is The Haven Group (to get 
affordable housing for low-income people), and he has a lifestyle website (exchange ideas, recipes, 
and diets). 
 
Councilor Reichle said she works for Providence Health and Services and that is her only income.  
She lives with her son. 
 
Councilor Cook said they are the breadwinner for their household. They have regular W-2 
employment through Whole Foods Market.  They own a small pop-up book shop, Spoke And Word 
Books.  They have a home occupancy license through the City of Gladstone.  They operate the 
business out of the basement.  They are not currently drawing any income from that business.  They 
have met with Ms. Betz to understand their obligations related to recusing themselves if business ever 
came before the Council that could potentially conflict with interest in their personal business.  They 
don’t have any property ownership outside of their home.    
 
Councilor Roberts said he is not the breadwinner in his home, and he does not own property within 
Gladstone.  He has a secondary occupation working for Clackamas County, but there is no conflict 
there.   
Councilor Garlington said she works for/with her sisters.  Her husband works at the shipyards.  Her 
daughter is in her 22nd year of military service, and as an active military participant her family is 
entitled to a home address in the State of Oregon, and that is why they have extra people listed at her 
address on the voter’s list.   

 
BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD:                                                                                                                                  
Ms. Betz said they are very close to breaking ground on the new library.  She notified the Council that the 
Board of Commissioners is going to finalize the contract on May 17th at 10:30 A.M.  If that goes through 
as expected they could potentially start as early as June.  She thanked the Council for approving the 
resolution on the demolition costs.   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                          

1 - 5



Anneliese Kiefer lives in the little bit of unincorporated Clackamas County that was discussed at the last 
meeting.  She said it sounded like the Council wasn’t familiar with septic systems and/or the amount that it 
costs to hook up in Gladstone, which is $14,000 as opposed to Portland, which is approximately $8,500.  
Gladstone does not offer any sort of payment plan if you’re low-income, as opposed to Portland, which 
offers long-term, low payment loans.  In her case there were issues with easements.  She said this is a unique 
time where everyone in the four properties is cooperating.                
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL:                                                                                                                              
 
Councilor Garlington:                                                                                                                                                          
She said there’s a lot of stuff happening in Gladstone.  She urged everyone to go onto the City’s website to 
check out volunteer opportunities, etc., and get involved.  She said it’s a great way to meet people and be a 
part of your community. She said the SOLV clean-up is going to be a big event – she has seen it posted in 
several places.   
 
Councilor Roberts:                                                                                                                                                                    
He said he is looking forward to going on a tour of the Oak Lodge Water Services facility tomorrow, along 
with Councilor Alexander and Ms. Betz.  He will report back. 
 
Councilor Cook:                                                                                                                                                                
They are excited to note that the City is extending the deadline to hire our Economic Development and 
Tourism coordinator.  This role is currently posted, and the City will be taking applications through 5/19/23.  
They are excited to see the City get this position in place to be able to support execution of the Downtown 
Revitalization Plan and to see the City further its goals towards economic revitalization and supporting our 
vibrant downtown. 
 
Councilor Reichle:                                                                                                                                                                 
She said she wasn’t able to attend the Parks Board meeting last night.  She said Public Works is in the 
process of meeting with Willamette River Keepers to work out events for removal of invasive species.    
 
Councilor Alexander:                                                                                                                                                                
He agreed with Councilor Roberts – they are going to have a good time tomorrow.                                          
 
He attended a dinner at the City of Happy Valley where they got to talk with Mayors and Councilors from 
other cities – he enjoyed that.  There is another one coming up and he encouraged other Councilors to 
attend.                                                                                                                                                              
 
He feels that Gladstone is moving ahead very nicely, and a lot of good things are getting done. 
 
Councilor Huckaby:                                                                                                                                                    
She said that May is Asian-American and Pacific Islander Heritage month.  AAPI month was first 
celebrated in 1978.  It is a time to celebrate the history, culture, and contributions of the AAPI communities 
in the United States, also to honor the struggles and achievements of the AAPI community and to recognize 
the diversity and richness of AAPI communities.                                                                       
 
May is also National Mental Health Awareness month.  This is to recognize and increase the awareness of 
the importance of mental health and wellness in all of our lives, and also to celebrate recovery from mental 
illness.  If you or someone you know is struggling or in crisis, help is always available by calling or texting 
988 or you can log on and access a chat feature at 988lifeline.org.                                                        
 
On May 5th, it was MMIW Day – Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls.  This day is to bring 
awareness for the MMIW cause and the fight against the injustice that’s happening to native women and 
their families.  She urged everyone to visit our own Representative Vanessa Hartman’s social media to view 

1 - 6



the brave address she gave on the House floor this past week, recognizing MMIW Day.  This can be found 
on her Instagram page at Vanessafororegon.  
 
Mayor Milch:                                                                                                                                                                         
He continues to represent the City of Gladstone on C-4, the Clackamas County Coordinating Committee. 
They have focused a lot of attention the past several months on tolling, and because of action by the 
Legislature and the Governor and influence of citizens, they have a moratorium on tolling in Oregon now.  
There was a bill proposed that would have established a task force composed of a variety of interests and 
stakeholders, including the trucking industry, Metro, local officials, etc., that would have spent some time 
looking at the issue and trying to reach more equitable solutions.  He is glad they had strong representation 
from Clackamas County legislators to convince people across party lines/geographical lines in the state that 
the proposed method of tolling freeways was neither equitable nor financially appropriate.                                                    
 
He said they spent a lot of time looking at economic development as one of the big goals for our county 
and the communities in our county.  Many other cities are working on downtown revitalization.  They are 
concerned about transportation as a means of encouraging people to come to the city, enabling people in 
the city to work locally, to work elsewhere, so it’s a good group of mayors, councilors, and County-level 
officials who talk about these regional issues that effect all of us.  They work cooperatively and listen to 
one another.                                                                                                                                                    
 
He attended the tree planting that was held at the Nature Park in honor of former Mayor Wade Byers, who 
served the City as Mayor for 36 years.  He is the second former Mayor to have a tree planted in his honor.  
This time the focus was on his current service, which is as a board member of the Clackamas Educational 
Service District, which provides educational services, especially Special Ed, to school districts in 
Clackamas County.   
                                                                                                                                                                    
Mayor Milch asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                                
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Alexander.  
Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle 
– yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  
Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:49 P.M.           
 
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2023.                                                         
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Michael Milch, Mayor                                                         Tami Bannick, City Recorder     

1 - 7





2



Bank
July

 2022

August

 2022

September

 2022

October

 2022

November

2022

December

 2022

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 22,697,073.96$       24,578,837.64$     23,532,324.71$     22,765,219.76$     26,960,566.40$     27,636,333.77$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 2,293,904.57           2,088,277.26         2,063,083.14         2,071,859.92         2,872,044.81         3,053,676.42         

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 529,506.05               244,390.81            239,693.07            226,284.00            71,617.02               295,093.94            

Urban Renewal 530,928.01               22,279.25               22,279.35               22,279.44               22,279.53               14,161.23               

Municipal Court 42,419.76                 41,658.48               36,498.39               31,607.63               28,242.40               33,676.14               

Totals 26,093,832.35$       26,975,443.44$    25,893,878.66$    25,117,250.75$    29,954,750.16$    31,032,941.50$    

Bank
January

 2023

February

2023

March

 2023

April

 2023

May

2023

June

2023

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 27,103,072.06$       27,441,564.08$     27,944,303.62$     27,021,990.44$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 3,026,631.40           3,044,090.09         3,046,134.87         3,063,034.68         

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 263,332.98               173,516.25            207,235.93            110,066.38            

Urban Renewal 64,161.30                 34,204.82               34,204.96               34,205.10               

Municipal Court 31,584.02                 28,643.23               42,541.28               61,942.84               

Totals 30,488,781.76$       30,722,018.47$    31,274,420.66$    30,291,239.44$    -$                        -$                        

BANK BALANCES

Month Ending Balance

2 - 1





3



6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
 o

f 
2
8

Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
C
it
y 

of
 G

la
d
st

on
e

Ac
co

un
t S

um
m

ar
y

Fo
r 

Fi
sc

al
: 

2
0
2
2
-2

0
2
3
 P

er
io

d
 E

n
d
in

g
: 

0
4
/3

0
/2

0
2
3

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 1
00

 - 
G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
Re

ve
nu

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
.

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

30
99

99
4,

85
0,

00
0.

00
4,

85
0,

00
0.

00
-4

,8
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

85
0,

00
0.

00
4,

85
0,

00
0.

00
-4

,8
50

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
. T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S

CU
RR

EN
T 

YE
AR

 T
AX

ES
4,

61
1,

90
4.

34
30

,6
49

.3
5

10
0-

00
0-

31
00

10
9,

30
0,

72
6.

00
9,

30
0,

72
6.

00
-1

05
,5

21
.1

3
98

.8
7 

%
4,

58
3,

30
0.

53
9,

19
5,

20
4.

87
PR

IO
R 

YE
AR

 T
AX

ES
46

,2
94

.1
0

2,
52

2.
31

10
0-

00
0-

31
00

50
90

,0
00

.0
0

90
,0

00
.0

0
-5

,3
13

.3
2

94
.1

0 
%

38
,3

92
.5

8
84

,6
86

.6
8

TR
AN

SI
EN

T 
LO

D
G

IN
G

 T
AX

13
3,

06
6.

09
34

,3
64

.8
3

10
0-

00
0-

31
40

45
25

0,
00

0.
00

25
0,

00
0.

00
44

,6
34

.3
3

11
7.

85
 %

16
1,

56
8.

24
29

4,
63

4.
33

4,
79

1,
26

4.
53

67
,5

36
.4

9
9,

64
0,

72
6.

00
9,

64
0,

72
6.

00
-6

6,
20

0.
12

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S 

To
ta

l:
99

.3
1 

%
4,

78
3,

26
1.

35
9,

57
4,

52
5.

88

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
11

0 
- S

TA
TE

 S
H

AR
ED

 T
AX

ES
ST

AT
E 

RE
VE

N
U

E 
SH

AR
IN

G
84

,6
25

.1
2

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
01

70
26

0,
00

0.
00

26
0,

00
0.

00
-2

9,
83

7.
21

88
.5

2 
%

14
5,

53
7.

67
23

0,
16

2.
79

AL
CO

H
O

L 
TA

X 
RE

VE
N

U
E

16
0,

60
3.

95
17

,0
26

.0
9

10
0-

00
0-

31
10

10
45

1,
28

2.
00

45
1,

28
2.

00
-6

5,
61

6.
89

85
.4

6 
%

22
5,

06
1.

16
38

5,
66

5.
11

M
AR

IJU
AN

A 
TA

X
21

,6
17

.4
0

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
10

15
55

,2
21

.0
0

55
,2

21
.0

0
9,

77
2.

45
11

7.
70

 %
43

,3
76

.0
5

64
,9

93
.4

5
CI

G
AR

ET
TE

 T
AX

 R
EV

EN
U

E
6,

79
2.

78
61

0.
70

10
0-

00
0-

31
10

20
17

,8
00

.0
0

17
,8

00
.0

0
-1

,1
11

.0
4

93
.7

6 
%

9,
89

6.
18

16
,6

88
.9

6
27

3,
63

9.
25

17
,6

36
.7

9
78

4,
30

3.
00

78
4,

30
3.

00
-8

6,
79

2.
69

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
11

0 
- S

TA
TE

 S
H

AR
ED

 T
AX

ES
 T

ot
al

:
88

.9
3 

%
42

3,
87

1.
06

69
7,

51
0.

31

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
12

0 
- R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 F

EE
S

G
LA

D
ST

O
N

E 
D

IS
PO

SA
L 

FR
AN

CH
IS

E 
FE

E
98

,7
63

.7
9

33
,6

50
.8

6
10

0-
00

0-
31

20
10

25
0,

00
0.

00
25

0,
00

0.
00

-2
9,

94
2.

99
88

.0
2 

%
12

1,
29

3.
22

22
0,

05
7.

01
PG

E 
FR

AN
CH

IS
E 

FE
ES

46
2,

35
5.

76
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

20
25

80
0,

00
0.

00
80

0,
00

0.
00

97
,2

57
.4

0
11

2.
16

 %
43

4,
90

1.
64

89
7,

25
7.

40
N

W
 N

AT
U

RA
L 

G
AS

 F
RA

N
CH

IS
E 

FE
E

59
,2

58
.8

1
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

20
30

22
7,

00
0.

00
22

7,
00

0.
00

-3
8,

06
3.

76
83

.2
3 

%
12

9,
67

7.
43

18
8,

93
6.

24
CO

M
CA

ST
 C

AB
LE

 T
V 

FR
AN

CH
IS

E 
FE

70
,3

55
.3

3
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

20
40

27
6,

00
0.

00
27

6,
00

0.
00

-5
9,

67
1.

37
78

.3
8 

%
14

5,
97

3.
30

21
6,

32
8.

63
69

0,
73

3.
69

33
,6

50
.8

6
1,

55
3,

00
0.

00
1,

55
3,

00
0.

00
-3

0,
42

0.
72

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
12

0 
- R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 F

EE
S 

To
ta

l:
98

.0
4 

%
83

1,
84

5.
59

1,
52

2,
57

9.
28

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
13

0 
- L

IC
EN

SE
S 

AN
D

 P
ER

M
IT

S
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

LI
CE

N
SE

 F
EE

S
88

,9
35

.0
0

1,
56

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
30

10
13

5,
00

0.
00

13
5,

00
0.

00
34

,2
15

.0
0

12
5.

34
 %

80
,2

80
.0

0
16

9,
21

5.
00

LI
Q

U
O

R 
LI

CE
N

SE
 R

EN
EW

AL
S

74
5.

00
75

.0
0

10
0-

00
0-

31
30

15
1,

50
0.

00
1,

50
0.

00
50

.0
0

10
3.

33
 %

80
5.

00
1,

55
0.

00
AL

AR
M

 P
ER

M
IT

S
9,

17
5.

00
62

5.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
30

20
13

,0
00

.0
0

13
,0

00
.0

0
5,

69
0.

00
14

3.
77

 %
9,

51
5.

00
18

,6
90

.0
0

PA
RK

IN
G

 P
ER

M
IT

S
66

,8
45

.0
0

4,
37

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
30

25
50

0,
00

0.
00

50
0,

00
0.

00
-3

18
,1

43
.0

0
36

.3
7 

%
11

5,
01

2.
00

18
1,

85
7.

00
16

5,
70

0.
00

6,
63

0.
00

64
9,

50
0.

00
64

9,
50

0.
00

-2
78

,1
88

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
13

0 
- L

IC
EN

SE
S 

AN
D

 P
ER

M
IT

S 
To

ta
l:

57
.1

7 
%

20
5,

61
2.

00
37

1,
31

2.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

0 
- C

H
AR

G
ES

 F
O

R 
SE

RV
IC

ES
RE

CR
EA

TI
O

N
 F

EE
S

10
,7

54
.7

9
9,

10
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

40
10

4,
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

13
,8

82
.0

7
44

7.
05

 %
7,

12
7.

28
17

,8
82

.0
7

SE
N

IO
R 

CE
N

TE
R 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EN
TA

L 
FE

ES
3,

91
6.

25
49

2.
50

10
0-

00
0-

31
40

15
7,

50
0.

00
7,

50
0.

00
-1

,2
88

.7
5

82
.8

2 
%

2,
29

5.
00

6,
21

1.
25

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 A

PP
LI

CA
TI

O
N

 F
EE

S
23

,1
84

.0
0

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
40

20
35

,0
00

.0
0

35
,0

00
.0

0
20

,9
41

.2
0

15
9.

83
 %

32
,7

57
.2

0
55

,9
41

.2
0

SO
CI

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

CO
N

TR
AC

T
32

,3
99

.5
2

2,
64

6.
63

10
0-

00
0-

31
40

25
80

,0
00

.0
0

80
,0

00
.0

0
-9

87
.0

2
98

.7
7 

%
46

,6
13

.4
6

79
,0

12
.9

8

3 - 1



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

LI
EN

 S
EA

RC
H

 F
EE

S
3,

54
0.

00
21

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
40

30
8,

00
0.

00
8,

00
0.

00
2,

10
0.

55
12

6.
26

 %
6,

56
0.

55
10

,1
00

.5
5

73
,7

94
.5

6
12

,4
49

.1
3

13
4,

50
0.

00
13

4,
50

0.
00

34
,6

48
.0

5
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

14
0 

- C
H

AR
G

ES
 F

O
R 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 T
ot

al
:

12
5.

76
 %

95
,3

53
.4

9
16

9,
14

8.
05

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C

PA
RK

 S
D

C 
FE

ES
4,

45
4.

72
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

41
10

0.
00

0.
00

4,
45

4.
72

0.
00

 %
0.

00
4,

45
4.

72
SD

C 
RE

IM
BU

RS
EM

EN
T 

FE
E

7,
73

1.
63

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
41

11
0.

00
0.

00
7,

73
1.

63
0.

00
 %

0.
00

7,
73

1.
63

12
,1

86
.3

5
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
12

,1
86

.3
5

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

12
,1

86
.3

5

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
15

0 
- G

RA
N

TS
PO

LI
CE

 G
RA

N
TS

8,
81

6.
36

1,
58

1.
20

10
0-

00
0-

31
50

30
91

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-2
9,

15
3.

63
67

.9
6 

%
53

,0
30

.0
1

61
,8

46
.3

7
FI

RE
 G

RA
N

TS
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

50
40

50
,0

00
.0

0
50

,0
00

.0
0

-4
9,

80
0.

00
0.

40
 %

20
0.

00
20

0.
00

M
AR

IN
E 

BO
AR

D
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 G
RA

N
T

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
50

55
10

,8
00

.0
0

10
,8

00
.0

0
-1

0,
80

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
W

ES
/G

O
O

D
 N

EI
G

H
BO

R 
G

RA
N

T
52

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

10
0-

00
0-

31
50

65
10

0,
00

0.
00

10
0,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
10

5.
00

 %
52

,5
00

.0
0

10
5,

00
0.

00
O

TH
ER

 G
RA

N
TS

42
,9

68
.5

0
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
31

50
80

13
7,

68
5.

00
62

,6
85

.0
0

72
,5

24
.2

2
15

2.
67

 %
16

7,
24

0.
72

21
0,

20
9.

22
10

4,
28

4.
86

1,
58

1.
20

22
3,

48
5.

00
38

9,
48

5.
00

-1
2,

22
9.

41
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

15
0 

- G
RA

N
TS

 T
ot

al
:

96
.8

6 
%

27
2,

97
0.

73
37

7,
25

5.
59

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
16

0 
- D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

PR
O

CE
ED

S
O

FS
-D

EB
T 

PR
O

CE
ED

S
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
38

10
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
0.

00
 %

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
16

0 
- D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

PR
O

CE
ED

S 
To

ta
l:

10
0.

00
 %

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0,
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
26

0 
- F

IN
ES

 A
N

D
 F

O
RF

EI
TU

RE
S

CO
U

RT
 F

IN
ES

 &
 F

O
RF

EI
TU

RE
S

25
4,

93
1.

68
20

,4
70

.8
2

10
0-

00
0-

32
60

10
70

5,
00

0.
00

70
5,

00
0.

00
-1

15
,9

52
.4

3
83

.5
5 

%
33

4,
11

5.
89

58
9,

04
7.

57
25

4,
93

1.
68

20
,4

70
.8

2
70

5,
00

0.
00

70
5,

00
0.

00
-1

15
,9

52
.4

3
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

26
0 

- F
IN

ES
 A

N
D

 F
O

RF
EI

TU
RE

S 
To

ta
l:

83
.5

5 
%

33
4,

11
5.

89
58

9,
04

7.
57

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST IN

TE
RE

ST
57

6,
70

8.
44

82
,4

66
.0

9
10

0-
00

0-
33

01
00

19
5,

00
0.

00
19

5,
00

0.
00

49
8,

33
0.

24
35

5.
55

 %
11

6,
62

1.
80

69
3,

33
0.

24
57

6,
70

8.
44

82
,4

66
.0

9
19

5,
00

0.
00

19
5,

00
0.

00
49

8,
33

0.
24

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST

 T
ot

al
:

35
5.

55
 %

11
6,

62
1.

80
69

3,
33

0.
24

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 G
F 

RE
CE

IP
TS

22
,2

63
.5

9
58

0.
29

10
0-

00
0-

36
00

00
71

,8
13

.0
0

71
,8

13
.0

0
-5

3,
21

5.
19

25
.9

0 
%

-3
,6

65
.7

8
18

,5
97

.8
1

N
AT

'L
 O

PI
O

ID
 S

ET
TL

EM
EN

T 
FU

N
DS

44
,5

17
.5

5
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
36

01
00

0.
00

0.
00

44
,5

17
.5

5
0.

00
 %

0.
00

44
,5

17
.5

5
FI

RS
T 

RE
SP

O
N

D
ER

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
 R

EI
M

B
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
36

10
16

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

22
1.

25
10

2.
21

 %
10

,2
21

.2
5

10
,2

21
.2

5
SE

N
IO

R 
CE

N
TE

R 
M

IS
C.

 IN
CO

M
E

2,
75

0.
08

46
.0

0
10

0-
00

0-
36

21
15

0.
00

0.
00

2,
75

0.
08

0.
00

 %
0.

00
2,

75
0.

08
TR

AM
 T

RI
PS

8,
15

0.
37

1,
07

7.
25

10
0-

00
0-

36
22

12
10

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

00
.0

0
3,

28
3.

92
13

2.
84

 %
5,

13
3.

55
13

,2
83

.9
2

M
EA

L 
D

O
N

AT
IO

N
S

21
,6

93
.4

0
1,

29
4.

55
10

0-
00

0-
36

22
13

19
,0

00
.0

0
19

,0
00

.0
0

21
,2

11
.7

8
21

1.
64

 %
18

,5
18

.3
8

40
,2

11
.7

8
99

,3
74

.9
9

2,
99

8.
09

11
0,

81
3.

00
11

0,
81

3.
00

18
,7

69
.3

9
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

60
0 

- M
IS

CE
LL

AN
EO

U
S 

To
ta

l:
11

6.
94

 %
30

,2
07

.4
0

12
9,

58
2.

39

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
70

0 
- O

TH
ER

SA
LE

 O
F 

SU
RP

LU
S 

EQ
U

IP
/P

RO
PE

RT
Y

43
,7

98
.4

4
0.

00
10

0-
00

0-
37

10
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

35
,7

00
.5

9
21

9.
00

 %
21

,9
02

.1
5

65
,7

00
.5

9
43

,7
98

.4
4

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

35
,7

00
.5

9
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

70
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
21

9.
00

 %
21

,9
02

.1
5

65
,7

00
.5

9

7,
08

6,
41

6.
79

24
5,

41
9.

47
23

,8
76

,3
27

.0
0

24
,0

42
,3

27
.0

0
-4

,8
40

,1
48

.7
5

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

79
.8

7 
%

12
,1

15
,7

61
.4

6
19

,2
02

,1
78

.2
5

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
99

0 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
IN

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
14

8,
46

6.
64

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
92

05
45

8,
25

5.
00

45
8,

25
5.

00
-1

33
,3

44
.3

6
70

.9
0 

%
17

6,
44

4.
00

32
4,

91
0.

64
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 P

O
LI

CE
 L

EV
Y

40
,3

95
.0

0
0.

00
10

0-
91

0-
39

92
28

13
3,

84
2.

00
13

3,
84

2.
00

-4
0,

39
5.

00
69

.8
2 

%
53

,0
52

.0
0

93
,4

47
.0

0
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 F

IR
E 

LE
VY

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
92

29
71

,6
11

.0
0

71
,6

11
.0

0
-4

5,
76

8.
00

36
.0

9 
%

25
,8

43
.0

0
25

,8
43

.0
0

3 - 2



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

3
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 U
RB

AN
 R

EN
EW

AL
24

5,
36

9.
93

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
93

90
49

0,
81

4.
00

49
0,

81
4.

00
-4

0.
50

99
.9

9 
%

24
5,

40
3.

57
49

0,
77

3.
50

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 S
EW

ER
 F

U
N

D
10

6,
92

3.
50

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
97

30
28

8,
60

4.
00

28
8,

60
4.

00
-8

7,
41

6.
50

69
.7

1 
%

94
,2

64
.0

0
20

1,
18

7.
50

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 W
AT

ER
 F

U
N

D
13

2,
45

8.
00

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
97

40
38

8,
09

6.
00

38
8,

09
6.

00
-1

12
,9

52
.0

0
70

.9
0 

%
14

2,
68

6.
00

27
5,

14
4.

00
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 S

TO
RM

 W
AT

ER
91

,6
57

.5
0

0.
00

10
0-

91
0-

39
97

50
23

1,
09

4.
00

23
1,

09
4.

00
-7

2,
15

0.
50

68
.7

8 
%

67
,2

86
.0

0
15

8,
94

3.
50

76
5,

27
0.

57
0.

00
2,

06
2,

31
6.

00
2,

06
2,

31
6.

00
-4

92
,0

66
.8

6
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

99
0 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
 T

ot
al

:
76

.1
4 

%
80

4,
97

8.
57

1,
57

0,
24

9.
14

76
5,

27
0.

57
0.

00
2,

06
2,

31
6.

00
2,

06
2,

31
6.

00
-4

92
,0

66
.8

6
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

10
 - 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 T

ot
al

:
76

.1
4 

%
80

4,
97

8.
57

1,
57

0,
24

9.
14

7,
85

1,
68

7.
36

24
5,

41
9.

47
25

,9
38

,6
43

.0
0

26
,1

04
,6

43
.0

0
-5

,3
32

,2
15

.6
1

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
79

.5
7 

%
12

,9
20

,7
40

.0
3

20
,7

72
,4

27
.3

9

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
21

 - 
A

D
M

IN
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

CI
TY

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
O

R
16

6,
62

1.
09

18
,4

27
.1

2
10

0-
12

1-
43

10
10

36
6,

94
8.

00
36

6,
94

8.
00

22
,6

60
.5

3
93

.8
2 

%
17

7,
66

6.
38

34
4,

28
7.

47
CI

TY
 R

EC
RD

R/
H

R 
M

G
R

81
,7

80
.0

0
8,

17
8.

00
10

0-
12

1-
43

10
20

27
8,

66
3.

00
27

8,
66

3.
00

10
5,

28
7.

00
62

.2
2 

%
91

,5
96

.0
0

17
3,

37
6.

00
FI

N
AN

CE
 D

IR
EC

TO
R 

(.8
0)

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

43
10

30
11

0,
41

2.
00

11
0,

41
2.

00
11

0,
41

2.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
O

FF
IC

E 
AS

SI
ST

AN
T

61
,0

90
.0

0
6,

10
9.

00
10

0-
12

1-
43

10
70

13
4,

97
1.

00
13

4,
97

1.
00

5,
44

5.
00

95
.9

7 
%

68
,4

36
.0

0
12

9,
52

6.
00

AC
CO

U
N

TI
N

G
 C

LE
RK

71
,2

85
.2

2
7,

11
4.

20
10

0-
12

1-
43

15
00

16
6,

21
7.

00
16

6,
21

7.
00

11
,4

75
.5

0
93

.1
0 

%
83

,4
56

.2
8

15
4,

74
1.

50
CA

RE
ER

 R
EC

O
G

N
IT

IO
N

 P
AY

6,
67

5.
35

71
4.

35
10

0-
12

1-
45

05
00

9,
94

2.
00

9,
94

2.
00

-1
,2

77
.6

3
11

2.
85

 %
4,

54
4.

28
11

,2
19

.6
3

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
19

7,
77

1.
44

20
,8

46
.8

4
10

0-
12

1-
47

00
00

61
9,

60
1.

00
61

9,
60

1.
00

19
2,

46
6.

46
68

.9
4 

%
22

9,
36

3.
10

42
7,

13
4.

54
58

5,
22

3.
10

61
,3

89
.5

1
1,

68
6,

75
4.

00
1,

68
6,

75
4.

00
44

6,
46

8.
86

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

73
.5

3 
%

65
5,

06
2.

04
1,

24
0,

28
5.

14

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
17

1,
28

0.
00

24
,3

63
.7

5
10

0-
12

1-
50

01
10

29
3,

50
7.

00
29

3,
50

7.
00

-1
40

,0
90

.6
2

14
7.

73
 %

26
2,

31
7.

62
43

3,
59

7.
62

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 A
U

D
IT

 C
O

N
TR

AC
T

39
,6

10
.0

0
0.

00
10

0-
12

1-
50

01
20

82
,0

00
.0

0
82

,0
00

.0
0

3,
07

5.
00

96
.2

5 
%

39
,3

15
.0

0
78

,9
25

.0
0

LE
G

AL
 F

EE
S

84
,0

91
.8

0
8,

74
9.

86
10

0-
12

1-
50

01
30

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

12
,6

07
.4

0
93

.7
0 

%
10

3,
30

0.
80

18
7,

39
2.

60
CO

U
N

CI
L 

AC
TI

VI
TI

ES
19

,1
21

.5
8

85
3.

66
10

0-
12

1-
50

04
90

25
,0

00
.0

0
25

,0
00

.0
0

4,
38

8.
70

82
.4

5 
%

1,
48

9.
72

20
,6

11
.3

0
O

U
TS

ID
E 

AG
EN

CY
 R

EQ
U

ES
TS

2,
50

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

50
04

91
47

,0
00

.0
0

47
,0

00
.0

0
42

,5
00

.0
0

9.
57

 %
2,

00
0.

00
4,

50
0.

00
PL

AN
N

IN
G

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
CO

N
TR

AC
T

63
,0

62
.4

2
11

,9
72

.6
0

10
0-

12
1-

50
04

92
16

0,
00

0.
00

16
0,

00
0.

00
42

,6
48

.7
2

73
.3

4 
%

54
,2

88
.8

6
11

7,
35

1.
28

CO
M

M
 P

RO
M

O
TI

O
N

S/
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

D
EV

47
,0

61
.4

6
10

,1
98

.0
0

10
0-

12
1-

51
00

20
29

2,
29

4.
00

29
2,

29
4.

00
18

4,
42

7.
24

36
.9

0 
%

60
,8

05
.3

0
10

7,
86

6.
76

TO
U

RI
SM

 P
RO

M
O

TI
O

N
/A

CT
IV

IT
IE

S
57

,2
81

.8
2

15
,9

50
.0

0
10

0-
12

1-
51

00
21

78
,0

86
.0

0
78

,0
86

.0
0

-4
,8

25
.2

0
10

6.
18

 %
25

,6
29

.3
8

82
,9

11
.2

0
BA

N
K 

CH
AR

G
ES

3,
13

5.
85

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

52
01

20
8,

25
0.

00
8,

25
0.

00
43

5.
65

94
.7

2 
%

4,
67

8.
50

7,
81

4.
35

FL
EE

T 
FU

EL
, M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

R
7.

99
0.

00
10

0-
12

1-
52

03
20

50
0.

00
50

0.
00

42
8.

15
14

.3
7 

%
63

.8
6

71
.8

5
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
12

,6
18

.1
4

2,
04

6.
15

10
0-

12
1-

52
04

00
37

,0
00

.0
0

37
,0

00
.0

0
14

,9
97

.0
5

59
.4

7 
%

9,
38

4.
81

22
,0

02
.9

5
CI

TY
 N

EW
SL

ET
TE

R
32

,9
61

.1
9

3,
37

6.
70

10
0-

12
1-

52
04

50
80

,0
00

.0
0

80
,0

00
.0

0
6,

76
1.

05
91

.5
5 

%
40

,2
77

.7
6

73
,2

38
.9

5
FI

RE
 &

 L
IA

BI
LI

TY
 IN

SU
RA

N
CE

16
9,

25
5.

90
1,

00
0.

00
10

0-
12

1-
53

00
00

39
5,

00
0.

00
39

5,
00

0.
00

16
,1

08
.0

8
95

.9
2 

%
20

9,
63

6.
02

37
8,

89
1.

92
EM

ER
G

EN
CY

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

42
7.

50
42

.7
5

10
0-

12
1-

53
02

00
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
4,

07
0.

27
18

.5
9 

%
50

2.
23

92
9.

73
EM

PL
O

YE
E 

AP
PR

EC
IA

TI
O

N
1,

28
0.

70
0.

00
10

0-
12

1-
54

01
10

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

1,
24

5.
34

75
.0

9 
%

2,
47

3.
96

3,
75

4.
66

PE
RS

O
N

N
EL

 R
EC

RU
IT

M
EN

T
5,

39
3.

72
2,

24
9.

00
10

0-
12

1-
54

01
20

26
,0

00
.0

0
26

,0
00

.0
0

13
,8

95
.9

6
46

.5
5 

%
6,

71
0.

32
12

,1
04

.0
4

D
U

ES
 &

 M
EM

BE
RS

H
IP

S
10

,5
77

.1
6

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

54
02

00
60

,0
00

.0
0

60
,0

00
.0

0
37

,3
24

.7
2

37
.7

9 
%

12
,0

98
.1

2
22

,6
75

.2
8

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
7,

05
5.

76
0.

00
10

0-
12

1-
54

02
20

45
,0

00
.0

0
45

,0
00

.0
0

34
,7

44
.5

9
22

.7
9 

%
3,

19
9.

65
10

,2
55

.4
1

M
IL

EA
G

E 
RE

IM
BU

RS
EM

EN
T

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

54
02

30
2,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

PU
BL

IC
AT

IO
N

S 
&

 S
U

BS
CR

IP
TI

O
N

S
4,

32
8.

35
78

.5
0

10
0-

12
1-

54
20

00
15

,0
00

.0
0

15
,0

00
.0

0
7,

43
1.

93
50

.4
5 

%
3,

23
9.

72
7,

56
8.

07
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

12
1-

56
01

00
28

,0
00

.0
0

28
,0

00
.0

0
28

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

3 - 3



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

4
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

TE
LE

PH
O

N
ES

6,
41

2.
49

62
0.

89
10

0-
12

1-
56

01
20

0.
00

0.
00

-1
4,

41
9.

32
0.

00
 %

8,
00

6.
83

14
,4

19
.3

2
73

7,
46

3.
83

81
,5

01
.8

6
1,

88
4,

63
7.

00
1,

88
4,

63
7.

00
29

7,
75

4.
71

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

84
.2

0 
%

84
9,

41
8.

46
1,

58
6,

88
2.

29

1,
32

2,
68

6.
93

14
2,

89
1.

37
3,

57
1,

39
1.

00
3,

57
1,

39
1.

00
74

4,
22

3.
57

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
21

 - 
A

D
M

IN
 T

ot
al

:
79

.1
6 

%
1,

50
4,

48
0.

50
2,

82
7,

16
7.

43

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
22

 - 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 T

EC
H

N
O

LO
G

Y
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

IT
 M

AN
AG

ER
94

,6
70

.0
0

9,
46

7.
00

10
0-

12
2-

43
20

10
21

9,
61

2.
00

21
9,

61
2.

00
14

,0
48

.0
0

93
.6

0 
%

11
0,

89
4.

00
20

5,
56

4.
00

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
46

,4
82

.7
1

4,
66

9.
96

10
0-

12
2-

47
00

00
11

0,
88

2.
00

11
0,

88
2.

00
9,

65
8.

01
91

.2
9 

%
54

,7
41

.2
8

10
1,

22
3.

99
14

1,
15

2.
71

14
,1

36
.9

6
33

0,
49

4.
00

33
0,

49
4.

00
23

,7
06

.0
1

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

92
.8

3 
%

16
5,

63
5.

28
30

6,
78

7.
99

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
4,

12
6.

58
0.

00
10

0-
12

2-
50

01
10

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

88
3.

42
91

.1
7 

%
4,

99
0.

00
9,

11
6.

58
CO

M
PU

TE
R/

TE
CH

N
O

LO
G

Y 
SE

RV
IC

E
94

,1
57

.4
4

29
,3

62
.2

5
10

0-
12

2-
50

02
10

21
2,

81
1.

00
21

2,
81

1.
00

29
,8

08
.2

7
85

.9
9 

%
88

,8
45

.2
9

18
3,

00
2.

73
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
14

,2
52

.7
3

1,
46

9.
54

10
0-

12
2-

52
04

00
40

,2
60

.0
0

40
,2

60
.0

0
10

,3
56

.4
5

74
.2

8 
%

15
,6

50
.8

2
29

,9
03

.5
5

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
12

2-
54

02
20

80
0.

00
80

0.
00

80
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

SM
AL

L 
TO

O
LS

, E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
&

 S
AF

ET
Y

30
5.

02
0.

00
10

0-
12

2-
54

03
00

60
0.

00
60

0.
00

27
8.

99
53

.5
0 

%
15

.9
9

32
1.

01
CE

LL
 P

H
O

N
ES

, P
AG

ER
S 

&
 R

AD
IO

S
26

,1
91

.7
5

2,
52

8.
35

10
0-

12
2-

56
01

10
65

,3
30

.0
0

65
,3

30
.0

0
2,

32
1.

42
96

.4
5 

%
36

,8
16

.8
3

63
,0

08
.5

8
13

9,
03

3.
52

33
,3

60
.1

4
32

9,
80

1.
00

32
9,

80
1.

00
44

,4
48

.5
5

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

86
.5

2 
%

14
6,

31
8.

93
28

5,
35

2.
45

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

CO
M

PU
TE

R 
&

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
RE

SE
RV

E
25

,2
75

.3
8

0.
00

10
0-

12
2-

66
10

18
96

,6
35

.0
0

96
,6

35
.0

0
66

,9
82

.6
5

30
.6

8 
%

4,
37

6.
97

29
,6

52
.3

5
25

,2
75

.3
8

0.
00

96
,6

35
.0

0
96

,6
35

.0
0

66
,9

82
.6

5
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
30

.6
8 

%
4,

37
6.

97
29

,6
52

.3
5

30
5,

46
1.

61
47

,4
97

.1
0

75
6,

93
0.

00
75

6,
93

0.
00

13
5,

13
7.

21
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 1

22
 - 

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 T
EC

H
N

O
LO

G
Y 

To
ta

l:
82

.1
5 

%
31

6,
33

1.
18

62
1,

79
2.

79

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
24

 - 
FA

CI
LI

TI
ES

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R

7,
29

7.
76

74
9.

45
10

0-
12

4-
43

70
50

18
,0

65
.0

0
18

,0
65

.0
0

2,
47

8.
90

86
.2

8 
%

8,
28

8.
34

15
,5

86
.1

0
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
 II

24
,2

12
.4

3
2,

46
5.

31
10

0-
12

4-
43

70
70

86
,1

71
.0

0
86

,1
71

.0
0

34
,6

48
.3

2
59

.7
9 

%
27

,3
10

.2
5

51
,5

22
.6

8
SE

AS
O

N
AL

 H
EL

P
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
12

4-
43

90
11

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

O
VE

RT
IM

E
31

.0
7

0.
00

10
0-

12
4-

45
01

00
3,

20
0.

00
3,

20
0.

00
3,

01
0.

55
5.

92
 %

15
8.

38
18

9.
45

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
16

,7
71

.1
2

1,
74

3.
84

10
0-

12
4-

47
00

00
62

,7
91

.0
0

62
,7

91
.0

0
24

,9
40

.1
4

60
.2

8 
%

21
,0

79
.7

4
37

,8
50

.8
6

48
,3

12
.3

8
4,

95
8.

60
19

0,
22

7.
00

19
0,

22
7.

00
85

,0
77

.9
1

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

55
.2

8 
%

56
,8

36
.7

1
10

5,
14

9.
09

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
47

,6
44

.3
4

5,
54

4.
15

10
0-

12
4-

50
01

10
14

0,
00

0.
00

14
0,

00
0.

00
24

,3
92

.7
8

82
.5

8 
%

67
,9

62
.8

8
11

5,
60

7.
22

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

S,
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

RS
25

,1
81

.7
7

88
9.

32
10

0-
12

4-
52

01
30

12
0,

00
0.

00
12

0,
00

0.
00

72
,6

80
.3

7
39

.4
3 

%
22

,1
37

.8
6

47
,3

19
.6

3
TR

AV
EL

, C
O

N
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

&
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

19
5.

82
0.

00
10

0-
12

4-
54

02
20

4,
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

3,
71

4.
18

7.
15

 %
90

.0
0

28
5.

82
SM

AL
L 

TO
O

LS
, E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

AF
ET

Y 
SU

P
4,

03
6.

22
38

6.
87

10
0-

12
4-

54
03

00
7,

00
0.

00
7,

00
0.

00
1,

90
7.

97
72

.7
4 

%
1,

05
5.

81
5,

09
2.

03
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

86
,1

45
.5

9
8,

41
5.

76
10

0-
12

4-
56

01
00

18
5,

00
0.

00
18

5,
00

0.
00

1,
64

3.
68

99
.1

1 
%

97
,2

10
.7

3
18

3,
35

6.
32

16
3,

20
3.

74
15

,2
36

.1
0

45
6,

00
0.

00
45

6,
00

0.
00

10
4,

33
8.

98
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
77

.1
2 

%
18

8,
45

7.
28

35
1,

66
1.

02

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

FA
CI

LI
TY

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
12

4-
64

10
00

32
0,

00
0.

00
32

0,
00

0.
00

27
5,

05
2.

79
14

.0
5 

%
44

,9
47

.2
1

44
,9

47
.2

1
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

FA
CI

LI
TY

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

31
9,

83
6.

61
2,

96
5.

07
10

0-
12

4-
64

10
05

4,
94

9,
00

0.
00

4,
94

9,
00

0.
00

4,
57

8,
06

2.
00

7.
50

 %
51

,1
01

.3
9

37
0,

93
8.

00

3 - 4



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

5
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 R

EP
AI

R
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
12

4-
64

10
10

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

31
9,

83
6.

61
2,

96
5.

07
5,

28
9,

00
0.

00
5,

28
9,

00
0.

00
4,

87
3,

11
4.

79
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
7.

86
 %

96
,0

48
.6

0
41

5,
88

5.
21

53
1,

35
2.

73
23

,1
59

.7
7

5,
93

5,
22

7.
00

5,
93

5,
22

7.
00

5,
06

2,
53

1.
68

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
24

 - 
FA

CI
LI

TI
ES

  T
ot

al
:

14
.7

0 
%

34
1,

34
2.

59
87

2,
69

5.
32

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
20

 - 
CO

U
RT

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
M

U
N

IC
IP

AL
 C

O
U

RT
 C

LE
RK

57
,0

72
.3

0
5,

70
7.

23
10

0-
22

0-
43

20
20

13
5,

60
2.

00
13

5,
60

2.
00

11
,4

02
.5

4
91

.5
9 

%
67

,1
27

.1
6

12
4,

19
9.

46
CO

U
RT

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
O

R
74

,1
70

.0
0

7,
41

7.
00

10
0-

22
0-

43
20

35
17

2,
12

4.
00

17
2,

12
4.

00
13

,4
90

.0
0

92
.1

6 
%

84
,4

64
.0

0
15

8,
63

4.
00

O
VE

RT
IM

E
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
45

01
00

4,
30

2.
00

4,
30

2.
00

4,
30

2.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
CA

RE
ER

 R
EC

O
G

N
IT

IO
N

 P
AY

2,
77

9.
20

27
7.

92
10

0-
22

0-
45

05
00

0.
00

0.
00

-4
,8

90
.8

4
0.

00
 %

2,
11

1.
64

4,
89

0.
84

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
71

,4
04

.0
5

7,
17

3.
94

10
0-

22
0-

47
00

00
17

0,
66

7.
00

17
0,

66
7.

00
16

,4
16

.5
1

90
.3

8 
%

82
,8

46
.4

4
15

4,
25

0.
49

20
5,

42
5.

55
20

,5
76

.0
9

48
2,

69
5.

00
48

2,
69

5.
00

40
,7

20
.2

1
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
91

.5
6 

%
23

6,
54

9.
24

44
1,

97
4.

79

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
75

2.
45

26
2.

15
10

0-
22

0-
50

01
10

1,
00

0.
00

1,
00

0.
00

-4
0.

45
10

4.
05

 %
28

8.
00

1,
04

0.
45

PR
O

SE
CU

TI
N

G
 A

TT
O

RN
EY

31
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
50

01
32

72
,0

00
.0

0
72

,0
00

.0
0

96
0.

00
98

.6
7 

%
39

,5
40

.0
0

71
,0

40
.0

0
AT

TO
RN

EY
S 

FO
R 

IN
D

IG
EN

T 
CL

IE
N

TS
13

,8
00

.0
0

0.
00

10
0-

22
0-

50
01

34
67

,0
00

.0
0

67
,0

00
.0

0
38

,1
00

.0
0

43
.1

3 
%

15
,1

00
.0

0
28

,9
00

.0
0

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 C
O

U
RT

 JU
D

G
E

27
,2

81
.0

0
3,

28
1.

00
10

0-
22

0-
50

01
36

72
,0

00
.0

0
72

,0
00

.0
0

8,
71

9.
00

87
.8

9 
%

36
,0

00
.0

0
63

,2
81

.0
0

PR
O

-T
EM

 JU
D

G
E

84
5.

00
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
50

01
37

3,
00

0.
00

3,
00

0.
00

2,
15

5.
00

28
.1

7 
%

0.
00

84
5.

00
JU

RY
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

13
4.

56
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
50

01
38

2,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

1,
81

3.
49

9.
33

 %
51

.9
5

18
6.

51
CO

U
RT

RO
O

M
 S

EC
U

RI
TY

6,
35

0.
00

70
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
50

02
82

16
,0

00
.0

0
16

,0
00

.0
0

-3
,0

22
.4

0
11

8.
89

 %
12

,6
72

.4
0

19
,0

22
.4

0
BA

N
K 

CH
AR

G
ES

4,
38

6.
85

0.
00

10
0-

22
0-

52
01

20
8,

00
0.

00
8,

00
0.

00
-1

,4
96

.5
9

11
8.

71
 %

5,
10

9.
74

9,
49

6.
59

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

3,
36

8.
62

15
0.

95
10

0-
22

0-
52

04
00

24
,7

40
.0

0
24

,7
40

.0
0

17
,1

64
.1

7
30

.6
2 

%
4,

20
7.

21
7,

57
5.

83
TR

AV
EL

, C
O

N
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

&
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

25
.0

0
0.

00
10

0-
22

0-
54

02
20

3,
00

0.
00

3,
00

0.
00

2,
63

8.
75

12
.0

4 
%

33
6.

25
36

1.
25

88
,4

43
.4

8
4,

39
4.

10
26

8,
74

0.
00

26
8,

74
0.

00
66

,9
90

.9
7

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

75
.0

7 
%

11
3,

30
5.

55
20

1,
74

9.
03

29
3,

86
9.

03
24

,9
70

.1
9

75
1,

43
5.

00
75

1,
43

5.
00

10
7,

71
1.

18
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 2

20
 - 

CO
U

RT
 T

ot
al

:
85

.6
7 

%
34

9,
85

4.
79

64
3,

72
3.

82

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
40

 - 
PO

LI
CE

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
PO

LI
CE

 C
H

IE
F

12
6,

86
0.

00
12

,6
86

.0
0

10
0-

24
0-

43
21

10
29

6,
07

6.
00

29
6,

07
6.

00
26

,3
11

.4
8

91
.1

1 
%

14
2,

90
4.

52
26

9,
76

4.
52

PO
LI

CE
 L

IE
U

TE
N

AN
T

91
,9

76
.4

1
0.

00
10

0-
24

0-
43

21
30

24
3,

91
2.

00
24

3,
91

2.
00

36
,2

22
.1

0
85

.1
5 

%
11

5,
71

3.
49

20
7,

68
9.

90
PO

LI
CE

 D
ET

EC
TI

VE
11

8,
99

1.
93

7,
85

7.
10

10
0-

24
0-

43
21

40
33

5,
61

6.
00

33
5,

61
6.

00
37

,9
64

.4
4

88
.6

9 
%

17
8,

65
9.

63
29

7,
65

1.
56

PO
LI

CE
 O

FF
IC

ER
46

4,
88

2.
72

45
,9

65
.1

4
10

0-
24

0-
43

21
60

1,
21

3,
54

7.
00

1,
21

3,
54

7.
00

18
1,

72
9.

59
85

.0
2 

%
56

6,
93

4.
69

1,
03

1,
81

7.
41

PO
LI

CE
 S

ER
G

EA
N

T
21

3,
69

1.
55

24
,4

82
.4

6
10

0-
24

0-
43

21
70

57
4,

52
4.

00
57

4,
52

4.
00

83
,5

51
.7

0
85

.4
6 

%
27

7,
28

0.
75

49
0,

97
2.

30
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

RO
O

M
 T

EC
H

N
IC

IA
N

21
,8

22
.2

1
2,

21
8.

95
10

0-
24

0-
43

21
82

62
,6

16
.0

0
62

,6
16

.0
0

7,
48

7.
99

88
.0

4 
%

33
,3

05
.8

0
55

,1
28

.0
1

PO
LI

CE
 R

EC
O

RD
S 

CL
ER

K
50

,5
77

.5
2

5,
11

8.
00

10
0-

24
0-

43
21

85
11

9,
25

6.
00

11
9,

25
6.

00
9,

65
0.

48
91

.9
1 

%
59

,0
28

.0
0

10
9,

60
5.

52
O

VE
RT

IM
E

12
1,

31
9.

05
7,

92
2.

36
10

0-
24

0-
45

01
00

31
7,

40
0.

00
26

7,
00

0.
00

-4
8,

68
3.

90
11

5.
34

 %
24

4,
76

4.
85

36
6,

08
3.

90
TR

AF
FI

C 
G

RA
N

T 
O

VE
RT

IM
E

21
,5

68
.0

2
4,

22
7.

92
10

0-
24

0-
45

01
10

40
,6

00
.0

0
0.

00
19

,0
31

.9
8

53
.1

2 
%

0.
00

21
,5

68
.0

2
H

O
LI

D
AY

 P
AY

16
,1

37
.2

0
1,

36
3.

69
10

0-
24

0-
45

02
00

25
,0

00
.0

0
25

,0
00

.0
0

-6
,9

07
.0

9
12

7.
63

 %
15

,7
69

.8
9

31
,9

07
.0

9
PR

O
FI

CI
EN

CY
 P

AY
50

,0
11

.4
1

5,
25

3.
75

10
0-

24
0-

45
03

00
12

3,
53

0.
00

12
3,

53
0.

00
16

,2
92

.6
5

86
.8

1 
%

57
,2

25
.9

4
10

7,
23

7.
35

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
11

,3
88

.2
1

1,
03

4.
42

10
0-

24
0-

45
05

00
5,

65
6.

00
5,

65
6.

00
-9

,6
79

.6
3

27
1.

14
 %

3,
94

7.
42

15
,3

35
.6

3
AS

SO
CI

AT
ED

 P
AY

RO
LL

 C
O

ST
S

68
2,

51
8.

35
65

,5
98

.2
7

10
0-

24
0-

47
00

00
1,

92
7,

79
4.

00
1,

92
7,

79
4.

00
34

8,
62

2.
90

81
.9

2 
%

89
6,

65
2.

75
1,

57
9,

17
1.

10
1,

99
1,

74
4.

58
18

3,
72

8.
06

5,
19

4,
52

7.
00

5,
28

5,
52

7.
00

70
1,

59
4.

69
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
86

.7
3 

%
2,

59
2,

18
7.

73
4,

58
3,

93
2.

31

3 - 5



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

6
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
37

,2
81

.6
3

16
1.

46
10

0-
24

0-
50

01
10

14
5,

00
0.

00
14

5,
00

0.
00

70
,4

64
.1

7
51

.4
0 

%
37

,2
54

.2
0

74
,5

35
.8

3
PA

RK
  P

AT
RO

L
7,

01
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
24

0-
50

02
84

14
,6

00
.0

0
14

,6
00

.0
0

1,
89

8.
50

87
.0

0 
%

5,
69

1.
50

12
,7

01
.5

0
SH

AR
E 

CO
ST

 C
CO

M
 D

IS
PA

TC
H

11
8,

44
4.

00
12

,5
92

.5
0

10
0-

24
0-

50
04

98
14

5,
00

0.
00

14
5,

00
0.

00
14

,4
91

.9
2

90
.0

1 
%

12
,0

64
.0

8
13

0,
50

8.
08

JU
VE

N
IL

E 
D

IV
ER

SI
O

N
 P

RO
G

RA
M

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

24
0-

51
00

44
9,

50
0.

00
9,

50
0.

00
9,

50
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

AL
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

 A
N

D
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

31
,5

53
.6

0
2,

97
1.

74
10

0-
24

0-
52

01
00

87
,3

28
.0

0
87

,3
28

.0
0

38
,4

10
.7

4
56

.0
2 

%
17

,3
63

.6
6

48
,9

17
.2

6
FI

RE
AR

M
S/

AM
M

U
N

IT
IO

N
4,

93
6.

51
23

5.
00

10
0-

24
0-

52
01

12
68

,0
00

.0
0

68
,0

00
.0

0
27

,9
59

.4
6

58
.8

8 
%

35
,1

04
.0

3
40

,0
40

.5
4

FL
EE

T 
FU

EL
, M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

R
81

,8
32

.7
0

7,
48

0.
24

10
0-

24
0-

52
03

20
15

8,
00

0.
00

15
8,

00
0.

00
-1

7,
31

1.
97

11
0.

96
 %

93
,4

79
.2

7
17

5,
31

1.
97

RA
D

IO
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 R
EP

LA
CE

M
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
24

0-
52

03
40

0.
00

0.
00

-1
5.

15
0.

00
 %

15
.1

5
15

.1
5

RA
D

AR
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 R
EP

LA
CE

M
EN

T
86

9.
18

0.
00

10
0-

24
0-

52
03

45
4,

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
83

7.
68

79
.0

6 
%

2,
29

3.
14

3,
16

2.
32

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

16
,8

65
.1

7
5,

38
5.

00
10

0-
24

0-
52

04
00

36
,4

00
.0

0
36

,4
00

.0
0

5,
07

1.
66

86
.0

7 
%

14
,4

63
.1

7
31

,3
28

.3
4

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
AP

PR
EC

IA
TI

O
N

5,
27

8.
29

0.
00

10
0-

24
0-

54
01

10
12

,0
00

.0
0

12
,0

00
.0

0
4,

12
8.

20
65

.6
0 

%
2,

59
3.

51
7,

87
1.

80
D

U
ES

 &
 M

EM
BE

RS
H

IP
S

3,
03

4.
00

0.
00

10
0-

24
0-

54
02

00
18

,5
50

.0
0

18
,5

50
.0

0
14

,4
75

.6
5

21
.9

6 
%

1,
04

0.
35

4,
07

4.
35

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
11

,9
85

.8
2

3,
37

6.
87

10
0-

24
0-

54
02

20
74

,2
00

.0
0

74
,2

00
.0

0
37

,6
59

.4
2

49
.2

5 
%

24
,5

54
.7

6
36

,5
40

.5
8

U
N

IF
O

RM
S 

AN
D 

SA
FE

TY
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

11
,3

75
.9

4
1,

29
1.

86
10

0-
24

0-
54

03
01

39
,6

00
.0

0
39

,6
00

.0
0

13
,7

50
.6

2
65

.2
8 

%
14

,4
73

.4
4

25
,8

49
.3

8
PU

BL
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

&
 S

U
BS

CR
IP

TI
O

N
S

1,
20

9.
00

0.
00

10
0-

24
0-

54
20

00
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
1,

06
7.

35
78

.6
5 

%
2,

72
3.

65
3,

93
2.

65
TE

LE
PH

O
N

ES
7,

85
7.

79
76

0.
83

10
0-

24
0-

56
01

20
20

,2
00

.0
0

20
,2

00
.0

0
2,

53
0.

22
87

.4
7 

%
9,

81
1.

99
17

,6
69

.7
8

33
9,

53
3.

63
34

,2
55

.5
0

83
7,

37
8.

00
83

7,
37

8.
00

22
4,

91
8.

47
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
73

.1
4 

%
27

2,
92

5.
90

61
2,

45
9.

53

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

VE
H

IC
LE

S 
AN

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

57
,4

81
.1

5
0.

00
10

0-
24

0-
65

10
00

17
2,

50
0.

00
17

2,
50

0.
00

53
,1

57
.5

4
69

.1
8 

%
61

,8
61

.3
1

11
9,

34
2.

46
57

,4
81

.1
5

0.
00

17
2,

50
0.

00
17

2,
50

0.
00

53
,1

57
.5

4
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
69

.1
8 

%
61

,8
61

.3
1

11
9,

34
2.

46

2,
38

8,
75

9.
36

21
7,

98
3.

56
6,

20
4,

40
5.

00
6,

29
5,

40
5.

00
97

9,
67

0.
70

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
40

 - 
PO

LI
CE

 T
ot

al
:

84
.4

4 
%

2,
92

6,
97

4.
94

5,
31

5,
73

4.
30

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
50

 - 
FI

RE
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

FI
RE

 C
H

IE
F

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

43
22

10
26

8,
71

6.
00

26
8,

71
6.

00
14

6,
72

7.
46

45
.4

0 
%

12
1,

98
8.

54
12

1,
98

8.
54

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
43

22
20

13
6,

62
0.

00
13

6,
62

0.
00

13
6,

62
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

FI
RE

 C
AP

TA
IN

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

43
22

40
56

9,
08

8.
00

56
9,

08
8.

00
34

9,
40

4.
61

38
.6

0 
%

21
9,

68
3.

39
21

9,
68

3.
39

O
N

-C
AL

L 
FI

RE
FI

G
H

TE
RS

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

43
22

90
63

5,
26

4.
00

63
5,

26
4.

00
36

1,
76

7.
28

43
.0

5 
%

27
3,

49
6.

72
27

3,
49

6.
72

O
VE

RT
IM

E
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
45

01
00

64
,0

70
.0

0
64

,0
70

.0
0

-8
3,

61
2.

03
23

0.
50

 %
14

7,
68

2.
03

14
7,

68
2.

03
AS

SO
CI

AT
ED

 P
AY

RO
LL

 C
O

ST
S

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

47
00

00
93

5,
44

6.
00

93
5,

44
6.

00
59

2,
74

8.
71

36
.6

3 
%

34
2,

69
7.

29
34

2,
69

7.
29

LI
FE

 &
 D

IS
AB

IL
IT

Y 
IN

SU
RA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

47
00

40
0.

00
0.

00
-1

,3
64

.1
0

0.
00

 %
1,

36
4.

10
1,

36
4.

10
0.

00
0.

00
2,

60
9,

20
4.

00
2,

60
9,

20
4.

00
1,

50
2,

29
1.

93
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
42

.4
2 

%
1,

10
6,

91
2.

07
1,

10
6,

91
2.

07

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
1,

57
7,

92
3.

00
-5

70
,0

97
.0

0
10

0-
25

0-
50

01
10

82
,0

00
.0

0
82

,0
00

.0
0

-1
,8

38
,0

05
.1

5
2,

34
1.

47
 %

34
2,

08
2.

15
1,

92
0,

00
5.

15
M

ED
IC

AL
 D

IR
EC

TO
R 

CO
N

TR
AC

T
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
50

01
50

29
,0

00
.0

0
29

,0
00

.0
0

17
,6

90
.0

0
39

.0
0 

%
11

,3
10

.0
0

11
,3

10
.0

0
SH

AR
E 

CO
ST

 C
CO

M
 D

IS
PA

TC
H

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

50
04

98
19

2,
50

0.
00

19
2,

50
0.

00
10

5,
85

1.
58

45
.0

1 
%

86
,6

48
.4

2
86

,6
48

.4
2

FI
RE

 G
RA

N
TS

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

51
00

22
50

,0
00

.0
0

50
,0

00
.0

0
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
FI

RE
 P

RE
VE

N
TI

O
N

 &
 IN

VE
ST

IG
AT

IO
N

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

52
01

22
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
4,

73
0.

00
5.

40
 %

27
0.

00
27

0.
00

FI
RS

T 
RE

SP
O

N
D

ER
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

52
01

24
55

,6
50

.0
0

55
,6

50
.0

0
34

,3
62

.8
1

38
.2

5 
%

21
,2

87
.1

9
21

,2
87

.1
9

BL
D

G
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

18
,2

50
.0

0
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
52

02
00

86
,3

00
.0

0
86

,3
00

.0
0

23
,2

05
.1

2
73

.1
1 

%
44

,8
44

.8
8

63
,0

94
.8

8

3 - 6



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

7
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

FL
EE

T 
FU

EL
, M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

R
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
52

03
20

13
4,

20
0.

00
13

4,
20

0.
00

94
,7

39
.6

8
29

.4
0 

%
39

,4
60

.3
2

39
,4

60
.3

2
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
52

04
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
04

.3
7

0.
00

 %
10

4.
37

10
4.

37
PH

YS
IC

AL
 E

XA
M

IN
AT

IO
N

S
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
54

01
30

26
,0

00
.0

0
26

,0
00

.0
0

22
,3

15
.5

5
14

.1
7 

%
3,

68
4.

45
3,

68
4.

45
D

U
ES

 &
 M

EM
BE

RS
H

IP
S

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

54
02

00
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
3,

07
7.

08
38

.4
6 

%
1,

92
2.

92
1,

92
2.

92
EM

S 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 &
 R

EC
ER

TI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

54
02

24
15

,0
00

.0
0

15
,0

00
.0

0
13

,4
63

.5
0

10
.2

4 
%

1,
53

6.
50

1,
53

6.
50

FI
RE

FI
G

H
TE

R 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

54
02

25
65

,0
00

.0
0

65
,0

00
.0

0
55

,7
30

.8
2

14
.2

6 
%

9,
26

9.
18

9,
26

9.
18

U
N

IF
O

RM
S 

AN
D 

SA
FE

TY
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

54
03

01
25

,0
00

.0
0

25
,0

00
.0

0
21

,2
17

.5
1

15
.1

3 
%

3,
78

2.
49

3,
78

2.
49

CE
LL

 P
H

O
N

ES
, P

AG
ER

S,
 R

AD
IO

S
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
25

0-
56

01
10

36
,0

00
.0

0
36

,0
00

.0
0

16
,3

20
.0

0
54

.6
7 

%
19

,6
80

.0
0

19
,6

80
.0

0
1,

59
6,

17
3.

00
-5

70
,0

97
.0

0
80

6,
65

0.
00

80
6,

65
0.

00
-1

,3
75

,4
05

.8
7

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

27
0.

51
 %

58
5,

88
2.

87
2,

18
2,

05
5.

87

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

FA
CI

LI
TY

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
20

6,
87

6.
67

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

64
10

00
35

0,
00

0.
00

35
0,

00
0.

00
12

3,
33

4.
40

64
.7

6 
%

19
,7

88
.9

3
22

6,
66

5.
60

RA
D

IO
 &

 C
O

M
PU

TE
R 

RE
SE

RV
E

7,
60

0.
25

0.
00

10
0-

25
0-

66
10

18
0.

00
0.

00
-3

6,
71

7.
39

0.
00

 %
29

,1
17

.1
4

36
,7

17
.3

9
21

4,
47

6.
92

0.
00

35
0,

00
0.

00
35

0,
00

0.
00

86
,6

17
.0

1
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
75

.2
5 

%
48

,9
06

.0
7

26
3,

38
2.

99

1,
81

0,
64

9.
92

-5
70

,0
97

.0
0

3,
76

5,
85

4.
00

3,
76

5,
85

4.
00

21
3,

50
3.

07
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 2

50
 - 

FI
RE

 T
ot

al
:

94
.3

3 
%

1,
74

1,
70

1.
01

3,
55

2,
35

0.
93

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
26

 - 
PA

RK
S

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
20

,8
74

.0
0

2,
08

7.
40

10
0-

52
6-

43
70

49
46

,1
11

.0
0

46
,1

11
.0

0
2,

27
6.

22
95

.0
6 

%
22

,9
60

.7
8

43
,8

34
.7

8
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R

32
,8

39
.9

4
3,

37
2.

50
10

0-
52

6-
43

70
50

81
,2

92
.0

0
81

,2
92

.0
0

11
,1

54
.4

6
86

.2
8 

%
37

,2
97

.6
0

70
,1

37
.5

4
PW

 O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

S 
M

AN
AG

ER
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

6-
43

70
51

19
,9

19
.0

0
19

,9
19

.0
0

19
,9

19
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

PW
 A

D
M

IN
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
16

,0
96

.2
5

1,
61

8.
10

10
0-

52
6-

43
70

55
20

,6
95

.0
0

20
,6

95
.0

0
-7

,1
26

.8
5

13
4.

44
 %

11
,7

25
.6

0
27

,8
21

.8
5

U
TI

LI
TY

 W
O

RK
ER

, J
O

U
RN

EY
24

,2
12

.3
2

2,
46

5.
30

10
0-

52
6-

43
70

70
14

4,
43

6.
00

14
4,

43
6.

00
92

,4
28

.7
6

36
.0

1 
%

27
,7

94
.9

2
52

,0
07

.2
4

U
TI

LI
TY

 W
O

RK
ER

 II
44

,0
53

.3
1

4,
50

2.
00

10
0-

52
6-

43
70

71
86

,1
71

.0
0

86
,1

71
.0

0
-1

7,
42

6.
31

12
0.

22
 %

59
,5

44
.0

0
10

3,
59

7.
31

SE
AS

O
N

AL
 H

EL
P

21
,4

12
.0

9
0.

00
10

0-
52

6-
43

90
11

10
0,

00
0.

00
10

0,
00

0.
00

55
,1

64
.8

6
44

.8
4 

%
23

,4
23

.0
5

44
,8

35
.1

4
O

VE
RT

IM
E

27
5.

05
24

.9
5

10
0-

52
6-

45
01

00
11

,0
00

.0
0

11
,0

00
.0

0
9,

55
9.

76
13

.0
9 

%
1,

16
5.

19
1,

44
0.

24
AS

SO
CI

AT
ED

 P
AY

RO
LL

 C
O

ST
S

74
,6

79
.9

0
7,

39
4.

49
10

0-
52

6-
47

00
00

28
5,

14
3.

00
28

5,
14

3.
00

12
6,

42
7.

55
55

.6
6 

%
84

,0
35

.5
5

15
8,

71
5.

45
23

4,
44

2.
86

21
,4

64
.7

4
79

4,
76

7.
00

79
4,

76
7.

00
29

2,
37

7.
45

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

63
.2

1 
%

26
7,

94
6.

69
50

2,
38

9.
55

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
17

,6
02

.7
2

1,
55

5.
98

10
0-

52
6-

50
01

10
20

,4
00

.0
0

20
,4

00
.0

0
-3

1,
35

2.
65

25
3.

69
 %

34
,1

49
.9

3
51

,7
52

.6
5

BA
N

K 
CH

AR
G

ES
2,

97
7.

43
15

9.
60

10
0-

52
6-

52
01

20
0.

00
0.

00
-7

,9
75

.5
1

0.
00

 %
4,

99
8.

08
7,

97
5.

51
O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
S,

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
RS

46
,5

11
.0

6
5,

81
9.

87
10

0-
52

6-
52

01
30

14
5,

00
0.

00
14

5,
00

0.
00

15
,7

17
.3

4
89

.1
6 

%
82

,7
71

.6
0

12
9,

28
2.

66
H

AZ
AR

D
O

U
S 

TR
EE

 R
EM

O
VA

L
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

6-
52

01
32

70
,0

00
.0

0
70

,0
00

.0
0

68
,7

00
.0

0
1.

86
 %

1,
30

0.
00

1,
30

0.
00

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

/M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

6-
52

02
20

0.
00

0.
00

-2
25

.0
6

0.
00

 %
22

5.
06

22
5.

06
FL

EE
T 

FU
EL

, M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

15
,5

71
.3

3
50

7.
16

10
0-

52
6-

52
03

20
45

,0
00

.0
0

45
,0

00
.0

0
11

,9
04

.3
3

73
.5

5 
%

17
,5

24
.3

4
33

,0
95

.6
7

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

1,
65

2.
98

89
.6

5
10

0-
52

6-
52

04
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

1,
21

4.
93

75
.7

0 
%

2,
13

2.
09

3,
78

5.
07

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
31

7.
32

0.
00

10
0-

52
6-

54
02

20
3,

50
0.

00
3,

50
0.

00
2,

76
3.

53
21

.0
4 

%
41

9.
15

73
6.

47
SM

AL
L 

TO
O

LS
, E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

AF
ET

Y 
SU

P
5,

65
8.

79
64

.0
0

10
0-

52
6-

54
03

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
10

,3
66

.8
9

48
.1

7 
%

3,
97

4.
32

9,
63

3.
11

D
U

M
PI

N
G

, H
AU

LI
N

G
, G

AR
BA

G
E

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

52
6-

54
04

00
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
35

,4
66

.3
0

2,
62

1.
43

10
0-

52
6-

56
01

00
70

,0
00

.0
0

70
,0

00
.0

0
-3

,8
85

.2
8

10
5.

55
 %

38
,4

18
.9

8
73

,8
85

.2
8

12
5,

75
7.

93
10

,8
17

.6
9

38
1,

90
0.

00
38

1,
90

0.
00

70
,2

28
.5

2
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
81

.6
1 

%
18

5,
91

3.
55

31
1,

67
1.

48

3 - 7



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

8
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

41
,7

32
.7

3
8,

74
5.

48
10

0-
52

6-
66

01
00

87
,3

44
.0

0
87

,3
44

.0
0

45
,6

11
.2

7
47

.7
8 

%
0.

00
41

,7
32

.7
3

SY
ST

EM
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 &
 P

RO
JE

CT
S

22
,9

58
.7

5
0.

00
10

0-
52

6-
67

60
50

75
8,

85
3.

00
75

8,
85

3.
00

68
0,

74
4.

25
10

.2
9 

%
55

,1
50

.0
0

78
,1

08
.7

5
64

,6
91

.4
8

8,
74

5.
48

84
6,

19
7.

00
84

6,
19

7.
00

72
6,

35
5.

52
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
14

.1
6 

%
55

,1
50

.0
0

11
9,

84
1.

48

42
4,

89
2.

27
41

,0
27

.9
1

2,
02

2,
86

4.
00

2,
02

2,
86

4.
00

1,
08

8,
96

1.
49

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
26

 - 
PA

RK
S 

To
ta

l:
46

.1
7 

%
50

9,
01

0.
24

93
3,

90
2.

51

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
27

 - 
RE

CR
EA

TI
O

N
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

FI
EL

D
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 C
RE

W
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

7-
43

51
10

32
,0

00
.0

0
32

,0
00

.0
0

32
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

RE
CR

EA
TI

O
N

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

O
R

3,
57

0.
55

0.
00

10
0-

52
7-

43
51

20
28

,0
00

.0
0

28
,0

00
.0

0
24

,2
00

.1
3

13
.5

7 
%

22
9.

32
3,

79
9.

87
AS

SO
CI

AT
ED

 P
AY

RO
LL

 C
O

ST
S

1,
29

6.
42

0.
00

10
0-

52
7-

47
00

00
6,

00
0.

00
6,

00
0.

00
4,

28
8.

14
28

.5
3 

%
41

5.
44

1,
71

1.
86

4,
86

6.
97

0.
00

66
,0

00
.0

0
66

,0
00

.0
0

60
,4

88
.2

7
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
8.

35
 %

64
4.

76
5,

51
1.

73

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
SU

M
M

ER
 P

RO
G

RA
M

S
70

2.
47

0.
00

10
0-

52
7-

51
00

62
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
1,

31
6.

62
56

.1
1 

%
98

0.
91

1,
68

3.
38

SP
EC

IA
L 

EV
EN

TS
1,

45
4.

38
11

4.
18

10
0-

52
7-

51
00

64
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
1,

92
8.

63
61

.4
3 

%
1,

61
6.

99
3,

07
1.

37
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

14
.5

8
0.

00
10

0-
52

7-
52

01
36

2,
20

0.
00

2,
20

0.
00

2,
18

5.
42

0.
66

 %
0.

00
14

.5
8

2,
17

1.
43

11
4.

18
10

,2
00

.0
0

10
,2

00
.0

0
5,

43
0.

67
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
46

.7
6 

%
2,

59
7.

90
4,

76
9.

33

7,
03

8.
40

11
4.

18
76

,2
00

.0
0

76
,2

00
.0

0
65

,9
18

.9
4

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
27

 - 
RE

CR
EA

TI
O

N
 T

ot
al

:
13

.4
9 

%
3,

24
2.

66
10

,2
81

.0
6

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
28

 - 
SE

N
IO

R 
CE

N
TE

R
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
SE

RV
IC

ES
 M

AN
AG

ER
80

,4
54

.0
0

8,
17

8.
00

10
0-

52
8-

43
52

10
20

9,
12

1.
00

20
9,

12
1.

00
63

,0
23

.1
1

69
.8

6 
%

65
,6

43
.8

9
14

6,
09

7.
89

TR
AM

 D
RI

VE
R

25
,6

01
.6

2
2,

24
5.

15
10

0-
52

8-
43

52
40

61
,9

03
.0

0
61

,9
03

.0
0

5,
77

3.
90

90
.6

7 
%

30
,5

27
.4

8
56

,1
29

.1
0

N
U

TR
IT

IO
N

 C
AT

ER
ER

43
,7

25
.4

6
4,

34
2.

00
10

0-
52

8-
43

52
50

49
,4

06
.0

0
49

,4
06

.0
0

-3
2,

97
9.

29
16

6.
75

 %
38

,6
59

.8
3

82
,3

85
.2

9
CE

N
TE

R 
AS

SI
ST

AN
T

57
,9

00
.2

7
6,

30
6.

94
10

0-
52

8-
43

52
80

11
3,

71
3.

00
11

3,
71

3.
00

-2
,8

46
.6

6
10

2.
50

 %
58

,6
59

.3
9

11
6,

55
9.

66
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

55
5.

13
10

3.
25

10
0-

52
8-

43
52

95
10

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

00
.0

0
9,

07
3.

87
9.

26
 %

37
1.

00
92

6.
13

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
57

9.
00

63
.0

7
10

0-
52

8-
45

05
00

1,
85

7.
00

1,
85

7.
00

76
1.

75
58

.9
8 

%
51

6.
25

1,
09

5.
25

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
10

5,
62

9.
13

11
,0

06
.8

0
10

0-
52

8-
47

00
00

19
9,

77
0.

00
19

9,
77

0.
00

9,
37

3.
12

95
.3

1 
%

84
,7

67
.7

5
19

0,
39

6.
88

31
4,

44
4.

61
32

,2
45

.2
1

64
5,

77
0.

00
64

5,
77

0.
00

52
,1

79
.8

0
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
91

.9
2 

%
27

9,
14

5.
59

59
3,

59
0.

20

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

8-
50

01
10

0.
00

0.
00

-5
84

.3
2

0.
00

 %
58

4.
32

58
4.

32
N

U
TR

IT
IO

N
 P

RO
G

RA
M

 S
U

PP
LI

ES
18

,1
20

.8
8

7,
03

4.
35

10
0-

52
8-

51
00

75
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
16

,1
16

.1
0

59
.7

1 
%

5,
76

3.
02

23
,8

83
.9

0
TR

AM
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

4,
86

2.
19

39
1.

06
10

0-
52

8-
52

01
40

14
,5

00
.0

0
14

,5
00

.0
0

5,
11

9.
22

64
.7

0 
%

4,
51

8.
59

9,
38

0.
78

M
IS

CE
LL

AN
EO

U
S 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

2,
21

3.
81

45
8.

54
10

0-
52

8-
52

01
90

8,
25

0.
00

8,
25

0.
00

2,
04

9.
32

75
.1

6 
%

3,
98

6.
87

6,
20

0.
68

BL
D

G
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 S

U
PP

LI
ES

37
9.

98
0.

00
10

0-
52

8-
52

02
00

9,
36

0.
00

9,
36

0.
00

6,
50

8.
77

30
.4

6 
%

2,
47

1.
25

2,
85

1.
23

FL
EE

T 
FU

EL
, M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

R
3,

64
9.

43
5.

15
10

0-
52

8-
52

03
20

2,
75

0.
00

2,
75

0.
00

-1
,7

23
.1

6
16

2.
66

 %
82

3.
73

4,
47

3.
16

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

6,
04

1.
23

1,
76

3.
87

10
0-

52
8-

52
04

00
13

,0
00

.0
0

13
,0

00
.0

0
3,

66
1.

93
71

.8
3 

%
3,

29
6.

84
9,

33
8.

07
D

U
ES

 &
 M

EM
BE

RS
H

IP
S

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

52
8-

54
02

00
3,

20
0.

00
3,

20
0.

00
2,

98
1.

00
6.

84
 %

21
9.

00
21

9.
00

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
25

.0
0

0.
00

10
0-

52
8-

54
02

20
0.

00
0.

00
-4

5.
34

0.
00

 %
20

.3
4

45
.3

4
M

IL
EA

G
E 

RE
IM

BU
RS

EM
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
10

0-
52

8-
54

02
30

20
0.

00
20

0.
00

20
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

3 - 8



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

9
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

TE
LE

PH
O

N
ES

1,
23

0.
79

11
9.

17
10

0-
52

8-
56

01
20

7,
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

4,
22

8.
40

39
.5

9 
%

1,
54

0.
81

2,
77

1.
60

36
,5

23
.3

1
9,

77
2.

14
98

,2
60

.0
0

98
,2

60
.0

0
38

,5
11

.9
2

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

60
.8

1 
%

23
,2

24
.7

7
59

,7
48

.0
8

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

VE
H

IC
LE

S 
AN

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

40
,4

68
.5

0
0.

00
10

0-
52

8-
65

10
00

75
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
34

,5
31

.5
0

53
.9

6 
%

0.
00

40
,4

68
.5

0
40

,4
68

.5
0

0.
00

0.
00

75
,0

00
.0

0
34

,5
31

.5
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

 T
ot

al
:

53
.9

6 
%

0.
00

40
,4

68
.5

0

39
1,

43
6.

42
42

,0
17

.3
5

74
4,

03
0.

00
81

9,
03

0.
00

12
5,

22
3.

22
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 5

28
 - 

SE
N

IO
R 

CE
N

TE
R 

To
ta

l:
84

.7
1 

%
30

2,
37

0.
36

69
3,

80
6.

78

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 5
29

 - 
LI

BR
AR

Y
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

CO
N

TR
AC

TU
AL

 &
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 S
ER

VI
CE

21
4,

05
1.

00
21

4,
05

1.
00

10
0-

52
9-

50
01

10
41

8,
18

0.
00

41
8,

18
0.

00
-2

,2
09

.0
0

10
0.

53
 %

20
6,

33
8.

00
42

0,
38

9.
00

21
4,

05
1.

00
21

4,
05

1.
00

41
8,

18
0.

00
41

8,
18

0.
00

-2
,2

09
.0

0
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
10

0.
53

 %
20

6,
33

8.
00

42
0,

38
9.

00

21
4,

05
1.

00
21

4,
05

1.
00

41
8,

18
0.

00
41

8,
18

0.
00

-2
,2

09
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 5

29
 - 

LI
BR

AR
Y 

To
ta

l:
10

0.
53

 %
20

6,
33

8.
00

42
0,

38
9.

00

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 6
00

 - 
D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 7
0 

- D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
D

EB
T 

PR
IN

CI
PA

L
17

2,
59

8.
00

0.
00

10
0-

60
0-

72
00

40
60

4,
39

8.
00

60
4,

39
8.

00
22

3,
91

1.
00

62
.9

5 
%

20
7,

88
9.

00
38

0,
48

7.
00

D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST

13
5,

77
6.

96
0.

00
10

0-
60

0-
73

00
40

29
0,

73
2.

00
29

0,
73

2.
00

63
,0

11
.3

6
78

.3
3 

%
91

,9
43

.6
8

22
7,

72
0.

64
O

FU
 - 

IS
SU

AN
CE

 C
O

ST
S

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

60
0-

74
00

40
51

,0
00

.0
0

51
,0

00
.0

0
92

3.
17

98
.1

9 
%

50
,0

76
.8

3
50

,0
76

.8
3

30
8,

37
4.

96
0.

00
94

6,
13

0.
00

94
6,

13
0.

00
28

7,
84

5.
53

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 7
0 

- D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
To

ta
l:

69
.5

8 
%

34
9,

90
9.

51
65

8,
28

4.
47

30
8,

37
4.

96
0.

00
94

6,
13

0.
00

94
6,

13
0.

00
28

7,
84

5.
53

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 6
00

 - 
D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

To
ta

l:
69

.5
8 

%
34

9,
90

9.
51

65
8,

28
4.

47

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

10
0-

99
0-

91
00

00
74

5,
99

7.
00

74
5,

99
7.

00
74

5,
99

7.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
74

5,
99

7.
00

74
5,

99
7.

00
74

5,
99

7.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

74
5,

99
7.

00
74

5,
99

7.
00

74
5,

99
7.

00
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

7,
99

8,
57

2.
63

18
3,

61
5.

43
25

,9
38

,6
43

.0
0

26
,1

04
,6

43
.0

0
9,

55
4,

51
4.

59
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

63
.4

0 
%

8,
55

1,
55

5.
78

16
,5

50
,1

28
.4

1

-1
46

,8
85

.2
7

61
,8

04
.0

4
0.

00
0.

00
4,

22
2,

29
8.

98
Fu

nd
: 1

00
 - 

G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

4,
36

9,
18

4.
25

4,
22

2,
29

8.
98

3 - 9



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
0
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 1
05

 - 
A

M
ER

IC
AN

 R
ES

CU
E 

PL
AN

 R
ES

ER
VE

 F
U

N
D

Re
ve

nu
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

15
0 

- G
RA

N
TS

O
TH

ER
 G

RA
N

TS
 (A

RP
A)

27
2,

56
3.

60
0.

00
10

5-
00

0-
31

50
80

2,
73

7,
34

4.
00

0.
00

-2
,4

34
,7

80
.4

0
11

.0
5 

%
30

,0
00

.0
0

30
2,

56
3.

60
27

2,
56

3.
60

0.
00

0.
00

2,
73

7,
34

4.
00

-2
,4

34
,7

80
.4

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

15
0 

- G
RA

N
TS

 T
ot

al
:

11
.0

5 
%

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

2,
56

3.
60

27
2,

56
3.

60
0.

00
0.

00
2,

73
7,

34
4.

00
-2

,4
34

,7
80

.4
0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

11
.0

5 
%

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

2,
56

3.
60

27
2,

56
3.

60
0.

00
0.

00
2,

73
7,

34
4.

00
-2

,4
34

,7
80

.4
0

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
11

.0
5 

%
30

,0
00

.0
0

30
2,

56
3.

60

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 1
50

 - 
A

RP
A 

G
RA

N
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
RE

CO
G

N
IT

IO
N

 A
W

AR
D

14
2,

50
0.

00
0.

00
10

5-
15

0-
45

09
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
42

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
14

2,
50

0.
00

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
43

,0
50

.2
8

0.
00

10
5-

15
0-

47
00

00
0.

00
0.

00
-4

3,
05

0.
28

0.
00

 %
0.

00
43

,0
50

.2
8

18
5,

55
0.

28
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-1

85
,5

50
.2

8
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

18
5,

55
0.

28

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
57

,7
37

.8
2

3,
08

0.
00

10
5-

15
0-

50
01

10
20

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
2,

26
2.

18
43

.8
7 

%
30

,0
00

.0
0

87
,7

37
.8

2
EM

ER
G

EN
CY

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T

32
,3

55
.5

0
0.

00
10

5-
15

0-
53

02
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
17

,6
44

.5
0

64
.7

1 
%

0.
00

32
,3

55
.5

0
AR

PA
 F

U
N

DI
N

G
 (T

BD
)

0.
00

0.
00

10
5-

15
0-

53
02

10
1,

27
7,

34
4.

00
0.

00
1,

27
7,

34
4.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

90
,0

93
.3

2
3,

08
0.

00
0.

00
1,

52
7,

34
4.

00
1,

40
7,

25
0.

68
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
7.

86
 %

30
,0

00
.0

0
12

0,
09

3.
32

27
5,

64
3.

60
3,

08
0.

00
0.

00
1,

52
7,

34
4.

00
1,

22
1,

70
0.

40
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 1

50
 - 

A
RP

A 
G

RA
N

T 
To

ta
l:

20
.0

1 
%

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

5,
64

3.
60

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
O

PE
RA

TI
N

G
 T

RA
N

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
- S

EW
ER

 F
U

N
0.

00
0.

00
10

5-
92

0-
89

97
30

1,
21

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
21

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

21
0,

00
0.

00
1,

21
0,

00
0.

00
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 8

9 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
21

0,
00

0.
00

1,
21

0,
00

0.
00

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

27
5,

64
3.

60
3,

08
0.

00
0.

00
2,

73
7,

34
4.

00
2,

43
1,

70
0.

40
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

11
.1

7 
%

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

5,
64

3.
60

-3
,0

80
.0

0
-3

,0
80

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

-3
,0

80
.0

0
Fu

nd
: 1

05
 - 

A
M

ER
IC

AN
 R

ES
CU

E 
PL

AN
 R

ES
ER

VE
 F

U
N

D
 S

ur
pl

us
 (D

ef
ic

it)
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
-3

,0
80

.0
0

3 - 10



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
1
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 2
05

 - 
RO

AD
 A

N
D

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
Re

ve
nu

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
.

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

00
0-

30
99

99
2,

90
0,

00
0.

00
2,

90
0,

00
0.

00
-2

,9
00

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

90
0,

00
0.

00
2,

90
0,

00
0.

00
-2

,9
00

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
. T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S

VE
H

IC
LE

 R
EG

IS
TR

AT
IO

N
 F

EE
S

14
6,

64
5.

16
0.

00
20

5-
00

0-
31

00
60

37
0,

00
0.

00
37

0,
00

0.
00

26
,9

15
.4

6
10

7.
27

 %
25

0,
27

0.
30

39
6,

91
5.

46
14

6,
64

5.
16

0.
00

37
0,

00
0.

00
37

0,
00

0.
00

26
,9

15
.4

6
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

10
0 

- L
O

CA
L 

TA
XE

S 
To

ta
l:

10
7.

27
 %

25
0,

27
0.

30
39

6,
91

5.
46

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
11

0 
- S

TA
TE

 S
H

AR
ED

 T
AX

ES
ST

AT
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 T

AX
ES

70
5,

74
2.

77
84

,0
90

.1
8

20
5-

00
0-

31
01

40
1,

81
7,

55
1.

00
1,

81
7,

55
1.

00
-7

1,
79

4.
49

96
.0

5 
%

1,
04

0,
01

3.
74

1,
74

5,
75

6.
51

70
5,

74
2.

77
84

,0
90

.1
8

1,
81

7,
55

1.
00

1,
81

7,
55

1.
00

-7
1,

79
4.

49
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

11
0 

- S
TA

TE
 S

H
AR

ED
 T

AX
ES

 T
ot

al
:

96
.0

5 
%

1,
04

0,
01

3.
74

1,
74

5,
75

6.
51

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
12

0 
- R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 F

EE
S

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 - 
TE

LE
CO

M
40

,2
66

.5
9

3,
23

2.
24

20
5-

00
0-

31
20

50
37

5,
00

0.
00

37
5,

00
0.

00
-2

19
,3

13
.2

2
41

.5
2 

%
11

5,
42

0.
19

15
5,

68
6.

78
RI

G
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 - 

O
TH

ER
57

,8
21

.7
1

78
.4

8
20

5-
00

0-
31

20
55

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

-3
8,

08
8.

33
80

.9
6 

%
10

4,
08

9.
96

16
1,

91
1.

67
RO

W
 L

IC
EN

SE
S 

&
 A

PP
 F

EE
S

1,
10

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

00
0-

31
20

60
1,

50
0.

00
1,

50
0.

00
-1

15
.0

0
92

.3
3 

%
28

5.
00

1,
38

5.
00

99
,1

88
.3

0
3,

31
0.

72
57

6,
50

0.
00

57
6,

50
0.

00
-2

57
,5

16
.5

5
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

12
0 

- R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

 F
EE

S 
To

ta
l:

55
.3

3 
%

21
9,

79
5.

15
31

8,
98

3.
45

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C

TR
AN

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 S
D

C'
S

4,
35

0.
97

0.
00

20
5-

00
0-

31
40

75
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
-1

5,
64

9.
03

21
.7

5 
%

0.
00

4,
35

0.
97

SD
C 

Re
im

bu
rs

em
en

t F
ee

53
1.

98
0.

00
20

5-
00

0-
31

40
76

0.
00

0.
00

53
1.

98
0.

00
 %

0.
00

53
1.

98
4,

88
2.

95
0.

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
-1

5,
11

7.
05

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C 

To
ta

l:
24

.4
1 

%
0.

00
4,

88
2.

95

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 R
O

AD
/S

TR
EE

T 
RE

CE
IP

TS
24

,1
20

.0
0

2,
97

0.
00

20
5-

00
0-

36
00

00
60

,0
00

.0
0

60
,0

00
.0

0
-1

0,
66

0.
00

82
.2

3 
%

25
,2

20
.0

0
49

,3
40

.0
0

24
,1

20
.0

0
2,

97
0.

00
60

,0
00

.0
0

60
,0

00
.0

0
-1

0,
66

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S 
To

ta
l:

82
.2

3 
%

25
,2

20
.0

0
49

,3
40

.0
0

98
0,

57
9.

18
90

,3
70

.9
0

5,
74

4,
05

1.
00

5,
74

4,
05

1.
00

-3
,2

28
,1

72
.6

3
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L 

To
ta

l:
43

.8
0 

%
1,

53
5,

29
9.

19
2,

51
5,

87
8.

37

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
99

0 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
IN

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 S
EW

ER
 F

U
N

D
10

1,
43

7.
20

0.
00

20
5-

91
0-

39
97

30
43

0,
92

5.
00

43
0,

92
5.

00
-1

36
,6

21
.8

0
68

.3
0 

%
19

2,
86

6.
00

29
4,

30
3.

20
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

75
,4

94
.7

0
0.

00
20

5-
91

0-
39

97
40

28
2,

00
0.

00
28

2,
00

0.
00

-7
7,

09
7.

30
72

.6
6 

%
12

9,
40

8.
00

20
4,

90
2.

70
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 S

TO
RM

 W
AT

ER
23

,5
73

.1
0

0.
00

20
5-

91
0-

39
97

50
10

4,
10

0.
00

10
4,

10
0.

00
-3

4,
27

8.
90

67
.0

7 
%

46
,2

48
.0

0
69

,8
21

.1
0

20
0,

50
5.

00
0.

00
81

7,
02

5.
00

81
7,

02
5.

00
-2

47
,9

98
.0

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

99
0 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
 T

ot
al

:
69

.6
5 

%
36

8,
52

2.
00

56
9,

02
7.

00

20
0,

50
5.

00
0.

00
81

7,
02

5.
00

81
7,

02
5.

00
-2

47
,9

98
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

10
 - 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 T

ot
al

:
69

.6
5 

%
36

8,
52

2.
00

56
9,

02
7.

00

1,
18

1,
08

4.
18

90
,3

70
.9

0
6,

56
1,

07
6.

00
6,

56
1,

07
6.

00
-3

,4
76

,1
70

.6
3

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
47

.0
2 

%
1,

90
3,

82
1.

19
3,

08
4,

90
5.

37

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 3
05

 - 
RO

AD
 A

N
D

 S
TR

EE
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
20

,8
74

.0
0

2,
08

7.
40

20
5-

30
5-

43
70

49
46

,1
12

.0
0

46
,1

12
.0

0
2,

27
7.

22
95

.0
6 

%
22

,9
60

.7
8

43
,8

34
.7

8
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R

32
,8

40
.0

2
3,

37
2.

49
20

5-
30

5-
43

70
50

81
,2

92
.0

0
81

,2
92

.0
0

11
,1

54
.3

9
86

.2
8 

%
37

,2
97

.5
9

70
,1

37
.6

1

3 - 11



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
2
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

PW
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 M
AN

AG
ER

11
,5

76
.5

2
2,

29
4.

31
20

5-
30

5-
43

70
51

44
,8

17
.0

0
44

,8
17

.0
0

33
,2

40
.4

8
25

.8
3 

%
0.

00
11

,5
76

.5
2

PW
 A

D
M

IN
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
24

,2
65

.4
5

2,
44

3.
98

20
5-

30
5-

43
70

55
46

,5
64

.0
0

46
,5

64
.0

0
-5

21
.4

1
10

1.
12

 %
22

,8
19

.9
6

47
,0

85
.4

1
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
, J

O
U

RN
EY

11
3,

22
5.

24
11

,2
65

.4
9

20
5-

30
5-

43
70

70
37

8,
52

7.
00

37
8,

52
7.

00
12

2,
03

4.
24

67
.7

6 
%

14
3,

26
7.

52
25

6,
49

2.
76

U
TI

LI
TY

 W
O

RK
ER

 II
21

,2
47

.5
5

4,
13

5.
00

20
5-

30
5-

43
70

71
0.

00
0.

00
-2

1,
24

7.
55

0.
00

 %
0.

00
21

,2
47

.5
5

SE
AS

O
N

AL
 H

EL
P

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

30
5-

43
90

11
50

,0
00

.0
0

50
,0

00
.0

0
30

,2
92

.7
2

39
.4

1 
%

19
,7

07
.2

8
19

,7
07

.2
8

O
VE

RT
IM

E
1,

30
2.

66
39

9.
59

20
5-

30
5-

45
01

00
8,

00
0.

00
8,

00
0.

00
3,

47
9.

39
56

.5
1 

%
3,

21
7.

95
4,

52
0.

61
CA

RE
ER

 R
EC

O
G

N
IT

IO
N

 P
AY

4,
86

2.
21

51
6.

56
20

5-
30

5-
45

05
00

0.
00

0.
00

-8
,4

95
.9

4
0.

00
 %

3,
63

3.
73

8,
49

5.
94

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
14

5,
34

1.
13

16
,8

17
.7

2
20

5-
30

5-
47

00
00

37
4,

08
5.

00
37

4,
08

5.
00

62
,8

91
.2

6
83

.1
9 

%
16

5,
85

2.
61

31
1,

19
3.

74
37

5,
53

4.
78

43
,3

32
.5

4
1,

02
9,

39
7.

00
1,

02
9,

39
7.

00
23

5,
10

4.
80

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

77
.1

6 
%

41
8,

75
7.

42
79

4,
29

2.
20

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
7,

09
2.

36
15

7.
98

20
5-

30
5-

50
01

10
46

,0
00

.0
0

46
,0

00
.0

0
30

,8
23

.3
2

32
.9

9 
%

8,
08

4.
32

15
,1

76
.6

8
O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
S,

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
RS

15
4,

06
3.

44
72

0.
48

20
5-

30
5-

52
01

30
60

0,
00

0.
00

60
0,

00
0.

00
19

2,
57

1.
37

67
.9

0 
%

25
3,

36
5.

19
40

7,
42

8.
63

ST
RE

ET
 L

IG
H

T 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

72
,4

17
.6

8
7,

49
5.

36
20

5-
30

5-
52

01
72

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

48
,2

32
.5

6
75

.8
8 

%
79

,3
49

.7
6

15
1,

76
7.

44
TR

AF
FI

C 
SI

G
N

AL
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

5,
67

0.
04

45
0.

58
20

5-
30

5-
52

01
76

16
,0

00
.0

0
16

,0
00

.0
0

4,
33

0.
33

72
.9

4 
%

5,
99

9.
63

11
,6

69
.6

7
ST

RE
ET

 S
IG

N
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

27
,3

47
.6

5
0.

00
20

5-
30

5-
52

01
78

10
0,

00
0.

00
10

0,
00

0.
00

42
,4

01
.6

5
57

.6
0 

%
30

,2
50

.7
0

57
,5

98
.3

5
FL

EE
T 

FU
EL

, M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

15
,2

32
.4

7
65

4.
77

20
5-

30
5-

52
03

20
65

,0
00

.0
0

65
,0

00
.0

0
33

,1
17

.8
1

49
.0

5 
%

16
,6

49
.7

2
31

,8
82

.1
9

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

1,
09

8.
09

56
.6

3
20

5-
30

5-
52

04
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

2,
68

7.
53

46
.2

5 
%

1,
21

4.
38

2,
31

2.
47

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
45

.8
4

0.
00

20
5-

30
5-

54
02

20
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
4,

95
4.

16
0.

92
 %

0.
00

45
.8

4
SM

AL
L 

TO
O

LS
, E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

AF
ET

Y 
SU

P
10

,0
81

.3
6

14
4.

95
20

5-
30

5-
54

03
00

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

27
,3

01
.0

3
31

.7
5 

%
2,

61
7.

61
12

,6
98

.9
7

D
U

M
PI

N
G

, H
AU

LI
N

G
, G

AR
BA

G
E

67
4.

93
0.

00
20

5-
30

5-
54

04
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

-6
46

.9
3

11
2.

94
 %

4,
97

2.
00

5,
64

6.
93

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
52

0.
45

50
.3

9
20

5-
30

5-
56

01
00

2,
50

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

1,
33

4.
99

46
.6

0 
%

64
4.

56
1,

16
5.

01
29

4,
24

4.
31

9,
73

1.
14

1,
08

4,
50

0.
00

1,
08

4,
50

0.
00

38
7,

10
7.

82
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
64

.3
1 

%
40

3,
14

7.
87

69
7,

39
2.

18

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

30
5-

66
01

00
62

2,
00

0.
00

62
2,

00
0.

00
53

6,
27

4.
40

13
.7

8 
%

85
,7

25
.6

0
85

,7
25

.6
0

BI
KE

W
AY

 &
 S

ID
EW

AL
K 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
20

5-
30

5-
67

50
56

90
,1

75
.0

0
90

,1
75

.0
0

90
,1

75
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

SY
ST

EM
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 &
 P

RO
JE

CT
S

91
1,

71
4.

12
25

0.
00

20
5-

30
5-

67
60

50
1,

49
0,

96
4.

00
1,

49
0,

96
4.

00
45

1,
18

6.
28

69
.7

4 
%

12
8,

06
3.

60
1,

03
9,

77
7.

72
RE

SE
RV

E 
FR

O
M

  S
D

C'
S

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

30
5-

67
80

90
55

0,
57

0.
00

55
0,

57
0.

00
55

0,
57

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
91

1,
71

4.
12

25
0.

00
2,

75
3,

70
9.

00
2,

75
3,

70
9.

00
1,

62
8,

20
5.

68
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
40

.8
7 

%
21

3,
78

9.
20

1,
12

5,
50

3.
32

1,
58

1,
49

3.
21

53
,3

13
.6

8
4,

86
7,

60
6.

00
4,

86
7,

60
6.

00
2,

25
0,

41
8.

30
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 3

05
 - 

RO
AD

 A
N

D
 S

TR
EE

T 
To

ta
l:

53
.7

7 
%

1,
03

5,
69

4.
49

2,
61

7,
18

7.
70

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
14

8,
46

6.
64

0.
00

20
5-

92
0-

89
91

00
45

8,
25

5.
00

45
8,

25
5.

00
13

3,
34

4.
36

70
.9

0 
%

17
6,

44
4.

00
32

4,
91

0.
64

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 S
EW

ER
 F

U
N

D
58

,4
56

.4
0

0.
00

20
5-

92
0-

89
97

30
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
10

2,
28

5.
60

63
.2

6 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 W
AT

ER
58

,4
56

.4
0

0.
00

20
5-

92
0-

89
97

40
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
10

2,
28

5.
60

63
.2

6 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 S
TO

RM
58

,4
56

.4
0

0.
00

20
5-

92
0-

89
97

50
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
10

2,
28

5.
60

63
.2

6 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

32
3,

83
5.

84
0.

00
1,

29
3,

47
0.

00
1,

29
3,

47
0.

00
44

0,
20

1.
16

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T 
To

ta
l:

65
.9

7 
%

52
9,

43
3.

00
85

3,
26

8.
84

32
3,

83
5.

84
0.

00
1,

29
3,

47
0.

00
1,

29
3,

47
0.

00
44

0,
20

1.
16

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
65

.9
7 

%
52

9,
43

3.
00

85
3,

26
8.

84

3 - 12



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
3
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

20
5-

99
0-

91
00

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

1,
90

5,
32

9.
05

53
,3

13
.6

8
6,

56
1,

07
6.

00
6,

56
1,

07
6.

00
3,

09
0,

61
9.

46
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

52
.8

9 
%

1,
56

5,
12

7.
49

3,
47

0,
45

6.
54

-7
24

,2
44

.8
7

37
,0

57
.2

2
0.

00
0.

00
-3

85
,5

51
.1

7
Fu

nd
: 2

05
 - 

RO
AD

 A
N

D
 S

TR
EE

T 
FU

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

33
8,

69
3.

70
-3

85
,5

51
.1

7

3 - 13



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
4
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 2
28

 - 
PO

LI
CE

 L
EV

Y 
FU

N
D

Re
ve

nu
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

.
BE

G
IN

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE
0.

00
0.

00
22

8-
00

0-
30

99
99

14
0,

00
0.

00
14

0,
00

0.
00

-1
40

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
14

0,
00

0.
00

14
0,

00
0.

00
-1

40
,0

00
.0

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

. T
ot

al
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S

CU
RR

EN
T 

LE
VY

 T
AX

70
2,

63
2.

22
4,

66
9.

49
22

8-
00

0-
31

00
20

1,
41

6,
01

6.
00

1,
41

6,
01

6.
00

-1
5,

11
0.

40
98

.9
3 

%
69

8,
27

3.
38

1,
40

0,
90

5.
60

PR
IO

R 
YE

AR
 T

AX
ES

7,
05

2.
99

38
4.

28
22

8-
00

0-
31

00
50

16
,0

00
.0

0
16

,0
00

.0
0

-3
,0

97
.8

3
80

.6
4 

%
5,

84
9.

18
12

,9
02

.1
7

70
9,

68
5.

21
5,

05
3.

77
1,

43
2,

01
6.

00
1,

43
2,

01
6.

00
-1

8,
20

8.
23

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S 

To
ta

l:
98

.7
3 

%
70

4,
12

2.
56

1,
41

3,
80

7.
77

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST IN

TE
RE

ST
4,

47
3.

36
63

7.
28

22
8-

00
0-

33
01

00
2,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0.

00
4,

21
4.

15
31

0.
71

 %
1,

74
0.

79
6,

21
4.

15
4,

47
3.

36
63

7.
28

2,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

4,
21

4.
15

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST

 T
ot

al
:

31
0.

71
 %

1,
74

0.
79

6,
21

4.
15

71
4,

15
8.

57
5,

69
1.

05
1,

57
4,

01
6.

00
1,

57
4,

01
6.

00
-1

53
,9

94
.0

8
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L 

To
ta

l:
90

.2
2 

%
70

5,
86

3.
35

1,
42

0,
02

1.
92

71
4,

15
8.

57
5,

69
1.

05
1,

57
4,

01
6.

00
1,

57
4,

01
6.

00
-1

53
,9

94
.0

8
Re

ve
nu

e 
To

ta
l:

90
.2

2 
%

70
5,

86
3.

35
1,

42
0,

02
1.

92

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
45

 - 
PO

LI
CE

 L
EV

Y
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

PO
LI

CE
 O

FF
IC

ER
81

,5
87

.9
0

8,
01

1.
41

22
8-

24
5-

43
21

60
16

7,
80

8.
00

16
7,

80
8.

00
-9

,2
46

.3
9

10
5.

51
 %

95
,4

66
.4

9
17

7,
05

4.
39

SC
H

O
O

L 
RE

SO
U

RC
E 

O
FF

IC
ER

68
,8

04
.8

5
7,

63
0.

66
22

8-
24

5-
43

21
65

16
7,

80
8.

00
16

7,
80

8.
00

8,
10

6.
77

95
.1

7 
%

90
,8

96
.3

8
15

9,
70

1.
23

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 O
RD

IN
AN

CE
 S

PE
CI

AL
IS

T
47

,2
76

.5
1

0.
00

22
8-

24
5-

43
21

80
13

8,
07

0.
00

13
8,

07
0.

00
22

,4
53

.4
9

83
.7

4 
%

68
,3

40
.0

0
11

5,
61

6.
51

EX
EC

U
TI

VE
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
64

,0
79

.2
4

6,
40

7.
00

22
8-

24
5-

43
21

95
14

8,
64

4.
00

14
8,

64
4.

00
12

,5
85

.1
6

91
.5

3 
%

71
,9

79
.6

0
13

6,
05

8.
84

O
VE

RT
IM

E
15

,2
00

.4
2

77
9.

08
22

8-
24

5-
45

01
00

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

43
.6

5
74

.8
9 

%
14

,7
55

.9
3

29
,9

56
.3

5
H

O
LI

D
AY

 P
AY

2,
63

8.
30

36
0.

25
22

8-
24

5-
45

02
00

8,
00

0.
00

8,
00

0.
00

4,
40

3.
25

44
.9

6 
%

95
8.

45
3,

59
6.

75
PR

O
FI

CI
EN

CY
 P

AY
19

,2
07

.3
8

1,
73

5.
08

22
8-

24
5-

45
03

00
52

,8
60

.0
0

52
,8

60
.0

0
13

,1
44

.6
4

75
.1

3 
%

20
,5

07
.9

8
39

,7
15

.3
6

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
3,

44
5.

75
23

3.
77

22
8-

24
5-

45
05

00
3,

42
8.

00
3,

42
8.

00
-2

,7
70

.3
3

18
0.

81
 %

2,
75

2.
58

6,
19

8.
33

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
19

0,
42

5.
74

14
,6

88
.3

6
22

8-
24

5-
47

00
00

47
1,

30
8.

00
47

1,
30

8.
00

19
,3

12
.7

1
95

.9
0 

%
26

1,
56

9.
55

45
1,

99
5.

29
49

2,
66

6.
09

39
,8

45
.6

1
1,

19
7,

92
6.

00
1,

19
7,

92
6.

00
78

,0
32

.9
5

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

93
.4

9 
%

62
7,

22
6.

96
1,

11
9,

89
3.

05

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

8,
97

2.
00

8,
97

2.
00

22
8-

24
5-

50
01

10
0.

00
0.

00
-8

,9
72

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
8,

97
2.

00
SH

AR
E 

CO
ST

 C
CO

M
 D

IS
PA

TC
H

7,
48

1.
00

0.
00

22
8-

24
5-

50
04

98
15

2,
25

0.
00

15
2,

25
0.

00
12

,0
64

.0
8

92
.0

8 
%

13
2,

70
4.

92
14

0,
18

5.
92

SR
O

 E
XP

EN
SE

S
2,

03
0.

30
0.

00
22

8-
24

5-
51

00
32

4,
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

40
9.

08
89

.7
7 

%
1,

56
0.

62
3,

59
0.

92
K-

9 
EX

PE
N

SE
S

5,
29

0.
59

25
5.

96
22

8-
24

5-
51

00
40

14
,0

00
.0

0
14

,0
00

.0
0

5,
14

0.
71

63
.2

8 
%

3,
56

8.
70

8,
85

9.
29

SW
AT

 P
RO

G
RA

M
3,

95
9.

96
0.

00
22

8-
24

5-
51

00
41

8,
20

0.
00

8,
20

0.
00

4,
24

0.
04

48
.2

9 
%

0.
00

3,
95

9.
96

27
,7

33
.8

5
9,

22
7.

96
17

8,
45

0.
00

17
8,

45
0.

00
12

,8
81

.9
1

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

92
.7

8 
%

13
7,

83
4.

24
16

5,
56

8.
09

52
0,

39
9.

94
49

,0
73

.5
7

1,
37

6,
37

6.
00

1,
37

6,
37

6.
00

90
,9

14
.8

6
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 2

45
 - 

PO
LI

CE
 L

EV
Y 

To
ta

l:
93

.3
9 

%
76

5,
06

1.
20

1,
28

5,
46

1.
14

3 - 14



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
5
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
40

,3
95

.0
0

0.
00

22
8-

92
0-

89
91

00
13

3,
84

2.
00

13
3,

84
2.

00
40

,3
95

.0
0

69
.8

2 
%

53
,0

52
.0

0
93

,4
47

.0
0

40
,3

95
.0

0
0.

00
13

3,
84

2.
00

13
3,

84
2.

00
40

,3
95

.0
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T 
To

ta
l:

69
.8

2 
%

53
,0

52
.0

0
93

,4
47

.0
0

40
,3

95
.0

0
0.

00
13

3,
84

2.
00

13
3,

84
2.

00
40

,3
95

.0
0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
69

.8
2 

%
53

,0
52

.0
0

93
,4

47
.0

0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

22
8-

99
0-

91
00

00
63

,7
98

.0
0

63
,7

98
.0

0
63

,7
98

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
63

,7
98

.0
0

63
,7

98
.0

0
63

,7
98

.0
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

63
,7

98
.0

0
63

,7
98

.0
0

63
,7

98
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

56
0,

79
4.

94
49

,0
73

.5
7

1,
57

4,
01

6.
00

1,
57

4,
01

6.
00

19
5,

10
7.

86
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

87
.6

0 
%

81
8,

11
3.

20
1,

37
8,

90
8.

14

15
3,

36
3.

63
-4

3,
38

2.
52

0.
00

0.
00

41
,1

13
.7

8
Fu

nd
: 2

28
 - 

PO
LI

CE
 L

EV
Y 

FU
N

D
 S

ur
pl

us
 (D

ef
ic

it)
:

0.
00

 %
-1

12
,2

49
.8

5
41

,1
13

.7
8

3 - 15



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
6
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 2
29

 - 
FI

RE
 L

EV
Y 

FU
N

D
Re

ve
nu

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
.

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

00
0-

30
99

99
25

5,
00

0.
00

25
5,

00
0.

00
-2

55
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

25
5,

00
0.

00
25

5,
00

0.
00

-2
55

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
. T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S

CU
RR

EN
T 

LE
VY

 T
AX

32
0,

04
4.

18
2,

12
6.

92
22

9-
00

0-
31

00
20

64
5,

53
6.

00
64

5,
53

6.
00

-7
,4

32
.1

1
98

.8
5 

%
31

8,
05

9.
71

63
8,

10
3.

89
PR

IO
R 

YE
AR

 T
AX

ES
3,

21
2.

60
17

5.
04

22
9-

00
0-

31
00

50
8,

00
0.

00
8,

00
0.

00
-2

,1
23

.1
3

73
.4

6 
%

2,
66

4.
27

5,
87

6.
87

32
3,

25
6.

78
2,

30
1.

96
65

3,
53

6.
00

65
3,

53
6.

00
-9

,5
55

.2
4

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S 

To
ta

l:
98

.5
4 

%
32

0,
72

3.
98

64
3,

98
0.

76

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST IN

TE
RE

ST
14

,4
17

.6
7

2,
32

9.
09

22
9-

00
0-

33
01

00
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
11

,8
36

.6
9

33
6.

73
 %

2,
41

9.
02

16
,8

36
.6

9
14

,4
17

.6
7

2,
32

9.
09

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

11
,8

36
.6

9
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

30
1 

- I
N

TE
RE

ST
 T

ot
al

:
33

6.
73

 %
2,

41
9.

02
16

,8
36

.6
9

33
7,

67
4.

45
4,

63
1.

05
91

3,
53

6.
00

91
3,

53
6.

00
-2

52
,7

18
.5

5
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L 

To
ta

l:
72

.3
4 

%
32

3,
14

3.
00

66
0,

81
7.

45

33
7,

67
4.

45
4,

63
1.

05
91

3,
53

6.
00

91
3,

53
6.

00
-2

52
,7

18
.5

5
Re

ve
nu

e 
To

ta
l:

72
.3

4 
%

32
3,

14
3.

00
66

0,
81

7.
45

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
55

 - 
FI

RE
 L

EV
Y

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
TR

AI
N

IN
G

 C
AP

TA
IN

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

25
5-

43
22

30
20

8,
66

6.
00

20
8,

66
6.

00
12

9,
68

4.
38

37
.8

5 
%

78
,9

81
.6

2
78

,9
81

.6
2

PA
RT

 T
IM

E
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
43

90
10

49
,5

08
.0

0
49

,5
08

.0
0

49
,5

08
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
47

00
00

15
5,

38
8.

00
15

5,
38

8.
00

91
,8

29
.7

1
40

.9
0 

%
63

,5
58

.2
9

63
,5

58
.2

9
0.

00
0.

00
41

3,
56

2.
00

41
3,

56
2.

00
27

1,
02

2.
09

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

34
.4

7 
%

14
2,

53
9.

91
14

2,
53

9.
91

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
57

0,
09

7.
00

57
0,

09
7.

00
22

9-
25

5-
50

01
10

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

-5
50

,0
97

.0
0

2,
85

0.
49

 %
0.

00
57

0,
09

7.
00

SC
BA

 &
 T

U
RN

O
U

T 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

25
5-

52
01

26
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
15

,5
71

.3
5

22
.1

4 
%

4,
42

8.
65

4,
42

8.
65

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TE
ST

IN
G

 &
 S

ER
VI

CE
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
52

03
65

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

14
,7

37
.9

0
26

.3
1 

%
5,

26
2.

10
5,

26
2.

10
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
52

04
00

6,
00

0.
00

6,
00

0.
00

91
7.

13
84

.7
1 

%
5,

08
2.

87
5,

08
2.

87
CE

LL
 P

H
O

N
ES

, P
AG

ER
S,

 R
AD

IO
S

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

25
5-

56
01

10
6,

00
0.

00
6,

00
0.

00
6,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

57
0,

09
7.

00
57

0,
09

7.
00

72
,0

00
.0

0
72

,0
00

.0
0

-5
12

,8
70

.6
2

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

81
2.

32
 %

14
,7

73
.6

2
58

4,
87

0.
62

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

FI
RE

 A
PP

AR
AT

U
S

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

25
5-

66
01

16
10

0,
00

0.
00

10
0,

00
0.

00
10

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
FI

RE
, E

M
S 

&
 E

XT
RI

CA
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
66

01
20

10
2,

00
0.

00
10

2,
00

0.
00

96
,6

22
.7

0
5.

27
 %

5,
37

7.
30

5,
37

7.
30

TU
RN

-O
U

TS
 &

 S
CB

A 
RE

SE
RV

E
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
25

5-
66

10
12

10
5,

00
0.

00
10

5,
00

0.
00

10
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
7,

00
0.

00
30

7,
00

0.
00

30
1,

62
2.

70
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
1.

75
 %

5,
37

7.
30

5,
37

7.
30

57
0,

09
7.

00
57

0,
09

7.
00

79
2,

56
2.

00
79

2,
56

2.
00

59
,7

74
.1

7
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 2

55
 - 

FI
RE

 L
EV

Y 
To

ta
l:

92
.4

6 
%

16
2,

69
0.

83
73

2,
78

7.
83

3 - 16



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
7
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
  G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
0.

00
0.

00
22

9-
92

0-
89

91
00

71
,6

11
.0

0
71

,6
11

.0
0

45
,7

68
.0

0
36

.0
9 

%
25

,8
43

.0
0

25
,8

43
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
71

,6
11

.0
0

71
,6

11
.0

0
45

,7
68

.0
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T 
To

ta
l:

36
.0

9 
%

25
,8

43
.0

0
25

,8
43

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

71
,6

11
.0

0
71

,6
11

.0
0

45
,7

68
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

20
 - 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
To

ta
l:

36
.0

9 
%

25
,8

43
.0

0
25

,8
43

.0
0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

22
9-

99
0-

91
00

00
49

,3
63

.0
0

49
,3

63
.0

0
49

,3
63

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
49

,3
63

.0
0

49
,3

63
.0

0
49

,3
63

.0
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

49
,3

63
.0

0
49

,3
63

.0
0

49
,3

63
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

57
0,

09
7.

00
57

0,
09

7.
00

91
3,

53
6.

00
91

3,
53

6.
00

15
4,

90
5.

17
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

83
.0

4 
%

18
8,

53
3.

83
75

8,
63

0.
83

-2
32

,4
22

.5
5

-5
65

,4
65

.9
5

0.
00

0.
00

-9
7,

81
3.

38
Fu

nd
: 2

29
 - 

FI
RE

 L
EV

Y 
FU

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

13
4,

60
9.

17
-9

7,
81

3.
38

3 - 17



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
8
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 3
90

 - 
U

RB
A

N
 R

EN
EW

AL
 F

U
N

D
Re

ve
nu

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
.

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

39
0-

00
0-

30
99

99
2,

24
0,

00
0.

00
2,

24
0,

00
0.

00
-2

,2
40

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

24
0,

00
0.

00
2,

24
0,

00
0.

00
-2

,2
40

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
. T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
10

0 
- L

O
CA

L 
TA

XE
S

CU
RR

EN
T 

YE
AR

 T
AX

ES
1,

02
0,

13
6.

71
6,

77
9.

45
39

0-
00

0-
31

00
10

2,
07

4,
83

9.
00

2,
07

4,
83

9.
00

-5
3,

95
6.

12
97

.4
0 

%
1,

00
0,

74
6.

17
2,

02
0,

88
2.

88
PR

IO
R 

YE
AR

 T
AX

ES
10

,2
46

.2
0

55
9.

76
39

0-
00

0-
31

00
50

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

-1
0,

45
3.

21
65

.1
6 

%
9,

30
0.

59
19

,5
46

.7
9

1,
03

0,
38

2.
91

7,
33

9.
21

2,
10

4,
83

9.
00

2,
10

4,
83

9.
00

-6
4,

40
9.

33
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

10
0 

- L
O

CA
L 

TA
XE

S 
To

ta
l:

96
.9

4 
%

1,
01

0,
04

6.
76

2,
04

0,
42

9.
67

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
15

0 
- G

RA
N

TS
O

TH
ER

 G
RA

N
TS

0.
00

0.
00

39
0-

00
0-

31
50

80
26

,0
00

.0
0

26
,0

00
.0

0
-2

6,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
26

,0
00

.0
0

26
,0

00
.0

0
-2

6,
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
15

0 
- G

RA
N

TS
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
30

1 
- I

N
TE

RE
ST IN

TE
RE

ST
63

,5
97

.8
4

9,
56

0.
74

39
0-

00
0-

33
01

00
0.

00
0.

00
79

,6
87

.8
2

0.
00

 %
16

,0
89

.9
8

79
,6

87
.8

2
63

,5
97

.8
4

9,
56

0.
74

0.
00

0.
00

79
,6

87
.8

2
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

30
1 

- I
N

TE
RE

ST
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

16
,0

89
.9

8
79

,6
87

.8
2

1,
09

3,
98

0.
75

16
,8

99
.9

5
4,

37
0,

83
9.

00
4,

37
0,

83
9.

00
-2

,2
50

,7
21

.5
1

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

48
.5

1 
%

1,
02

6,
13

6.
74

2,
12

0,
11

7.
49

1,
09

3,
98

0.
75

16
,8

99
.9

5
4,

37
0,

83
9.

00
4,

37
0,

83
9.

00
-2

,2
50

,7
21

.5
1

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
48

.5
1 

%
1,

02
6,

13
6.

74
2,

12
0,

11
7.

49

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 4
10

 - 
U

RB
AN

 R
EN

EW
AL

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
16

0,
29

9.
35

15
9,

53
1.

00
39

0-
41

0-
50

01
10

19
4,

00
0.

00
15

4,
00

0.
00

31
,8

68
.0

2
83

.5
7 

%
1,

83
2.

63
16

2,
13

1.
98

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 A
U

D
IT

 C
O

N
TR

AC
T

7,
50

0.
00

0.
00

39
0-

41
0-

50
01

20
15

,0
00

.0
0

15
,0

00
.0

0
-1

50
.0

0
10

1.
00

 %
7,

65
0.

00
15

,1
50

.0
0

FI
RE

 &
 L

IA
BI

LI
TY

 IN
SU

RA
N

CE
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

39
0-

41
0-

53
00

00
30

,0
00

.0
0

30
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
10

0.
00

 %
0.

00
30

,0
00

.0
0

19
7,

79
9.

35
15

9,
53

1.
00

19
9,

00
0.

00
23

9,
00

0.
00

31
,7

18
.0

2
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
86

.7
3 

%
9,

48
2.

63
20

7,
28

1.
98

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 7
0 

- D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

PR
IN

CI
PA

L
47

1,
78

9.
00

0.
00

39
0-

41
0-

73
00

30
92

9,
88

1.
00

92
9,

88
1.

00
0.

00
10

0.
00

 %
45

8,
09

2.
00

92
9,

88
1.

00
D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

- I
N

TE
RE

ST
66

,6
66

.4
6

0.
00

39
0-

41
0-

73
00

40
14

7,
23

5.
00

14
7,

23
5.

00
11

4.
50

99
.9

2 
%

80
,4

54
.0

4
14

7,
12

0.
50

53
8,

45
5.

46
0.

00
1,

07
7,

11
6.

00
1,

07
7,

11
6.

00
11

4.
50

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 7
0 

- D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E 
To

ta
l:

99
.9

9 
%

53
8,

54
6.

04
1,

07
7,

00
1.

50

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
24

5,
36

9.
93

0.
00

39
0-

41
0-

89
91

00
49

0,
81

4.
00

49
0,

81
4.

00
40

.5
0

99
.9

9 
%

24
5,

40
3.

57
49

0,
77

3.
50

24
5,

36
9.

93
0.

00
49

0,
81

4.
00

49
0,

81
4.

00
40

.5
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T 
To

ta
l:

99
.9

9 
%

24
5,

40
3.

57
49

0,
77

3.
50

98
1,

62
4.

74
15

9,
53

1.
00

1,
76

6,
93

0.
00

1,
80

6,
93

0.
00

31
,8

73
.0

2
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 4

10
 - 

U
RB

AN
 R

EN
EW

AL
 T

ot
al

:
98

.2
4 

%
79

3,
43

2.
24

1,
77

5,
05

6.
98

3 - 18



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

1
9
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

39
0-

99
0-

91
00

00
2,

56
3,

90
9.

00
2,

60
3,

90
9.

00
2,

56
3,

90
9.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
60

3,
90

9.
00

2,
56

3,
90

9.
00

2,
56

3,
90

9.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
60

3,
90

9.
00

2,
56

3,
90

9.
00

2,
56

3,
90

9.
00

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 T
ot

al
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

98
1,

62
4.

74
15

9,
53

1.
00

4,
37

0,
83

9.
00

4,
37

0,
83

9.
00

2,
59

5,
78

2.
02

Ex
pe

ns
e 

To
ta

l:
40

.6
1 

%
79

3,
43

2.
24

1,
77

5,
05

6.
98

11
2,

35
6.

01
-1

42
,6

31
.0

5
0.

00
0.

00
34

5,
06

0.
51

Fu
nd

: 3
90

 - 
U

RB
A

N
 R

EN
EW

AL
 F

U
N

D
 S

ur
pl

us
 (D

ef
ic

it)
:

0.
00

 %
23

2,
70

4.
50

34
5,

06
0.

51

3 - 19



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
0
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 7
30

 - 
SE

W
ER

 F
U

N
D

Re
ve

nu
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

.
BE

G
IN

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE
0.

00
0.

00
73

0-
00

0-
30

99
99

2,
32

0,
00

0.
00

2,
32

0,
00

0.
00

-2
,3

20
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
32

0,
00

0.
00

2,
32

0,
00

0.
00

-2
,3

20
,0

00
.0

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

. T
ot

al
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

0 
- C

H
AR

G
ES

 F
O

R 
SE

RV
IC

ES
O

AK
 L

O
D

G
E 

SA
N

IT
AR

Y
74

7,
51

6.
21

75
,4

07
.7

3
73

0-
00

0-
31

40
50

1,
78

5,
00

0.
00

1,
78

5,
00

0.
00

-1
86

,0
65

.9
1

89
.5

8 
%

85
1,

41
7.

88
1,

59
8,

93
4.

09
TR

I-C
IT

Y 
SE

RV
IC

E 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

2,
61

7,
63

5.
48

25
8,

55
2.

21
73

0-
00

0-
31

40
55

6,
05

0,
00

0.
00

6,
05

0,
00

0.
00

-4
26

,4
69

.6
2

92
.9

5 
%

3,
00

5,
89

4.
90

5,
62

3,
53

0.
38

CO
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 F

EE
S

0.
00

0.
00

73
0-

00
0-

31
40

80
10

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

00
.0

0
-1

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
3,

36
5,

15
1.

69
33

3,
95

9.
94

7,
84

5,
00

0.
00

7,
84

5,
00

0.
00

-6
22

,5
35

.5
3

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

0 
- C

H
AR

G
ES

 F
O

R 
SE

RV
IC

ES
 T

ot
al

:
92

.0
6 

%
3,

85
7,

31
2.

78
7,

22
2,

46
4.

47

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C

SE
W

ER
 S

D
CS

15
,1

82
.8

3
0.

00
73

0-
00

0-
31

41
10

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

1,
03

2.
11

10
5.

16
 %

5,
84

9.
28

21
,0

32
.1

1
SD

C 
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t F

ee
1,

44
4.

49
0.

00
73

0-
00

0-
31

41
11

0.
00

0.
00

1,
68

8.
21

0.
00

 %
24

3.
72

1,
68

8.
21

16
,6

27
.3

2
0.

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
2,

72
0.

32
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

14
1 

- S
D

C 
To

ta
l:

11
3.

60
 %

6,
09

3.
00

22
,7

20
.3

2

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 S
EW

ER
 R

EC
EI

PT
S

44
,0

09
.2

5
11

,8
07

.0
2

73
0-

00
0-

36
00

00
4,

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
42

,3
94

.2
5

1,
15

9.
86

 %
2,

38
5.

00
46

,3
94

.2
5

44
,0

09
.2

5
11

,8
07

.0
2

4,
00

0.
00

4,
00

0.
00

42
,3

94
.2

5
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

60
0 

- M
IS

CE
LL

AN
EO

U
S 

To
ta

l:
1,

15
9.

86
 %

2,
38

5.
00

46
,3

94
.2

5

3,
42

5,
78

8.
26

34
5,

76
6.

96
10

,1
89

,0
00

.0
0

10
,1

89
,0

00
.0

0
-2

,8
97

,4
20

.9
6

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

71
.5

6 
%

3,
86

5,
79

0.
78

7,
29

1,
57

9.
04

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
99

0 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
IN

O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

 T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
-A

RP
A 

RE
S,

 F
U

0.
00

0.
00

73
0-

91
0-

39
91

05
1,

21
0,

00
0.

00
1,

21
0,

00
0.

00
-1

,2
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 F
RO

M
 R

O
AD

 &
 S

TR
EE

T 
FU

N
58

,4
56

.4
0

0.
00

73
0-

91
0-

39
92

05
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
-1

02
,2

85
.6

0
63

.2
6 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40
58

,4
56

.4
0

0.
00

1,
48

8,
40

5.
00

1,
48

8,
40

5.
00

-1
,3

12
,2

85
.6

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

99
0 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
 T

ot
al

:
11

.8
3 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
1,

48
8,

40
5.

00
1,

48
8,

40
5.

00
-1

,3
12

,2
85

.6
0

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

 T
ot

al
:

11
.8

3 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

3,
48

4,
24

4.
66

34
5,

76
6.

96
11

,6
77

,4
05

.0
0

11
,6

77
,4

05
.0

0
-4

,2
09

,7
06

.5
6

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
63

.9
5 

%
3,

98
3,

45
3.

78
7,

46
7,

69
8.

44

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 7
03

 - 
SE

W
ER

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
AC

CO
U

N
TI

N
G

 C
LE

RK
12

,5
11

.8
6

1,
25

6.
50

73
0-

70
3-

43
15

00
30

,6
06

.0
0

30
,6

06
.0

0
3,

59
3.

79
88

.2
6 

%
14

,5
00

.3
5

27
,0

12
.2

1
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
20

,8
74

.0
0

2,
08

7.
40

73
0-

70
3-

43
70

49
46

,1
11

.0
0

46
,1

11
.0

0
2,

27
6.

22
95

.0
6 

%
22

,9
60

.7
8

43
,8

34
.7

8
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R

26
,1

79
.2

5
2,

22
0.

24
73

0-
70

3-
43

70
50

70
,1

47
.0

0
70

,1
47

.0
0

8,
29

0.
05

88
.1

8 
%

35
,6

77
.7

0
61

,8
56

.9
5

PW
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 M
AN

AG
ER

11
,5

76
.5

2
2,

29
4.

31
73

0-
70

3-
43

70
51

44
,8

17
.0

0
44

,8
17

.0
0

33
,2

40
.4

8
25

.8
3 

%
0.

00
11

,5
76

.5
2

PW
 A

D
M

IN
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
24

,2
65

.4
5

2,
44

3.
98

73
0-

70
3-

43
70

55
46

,5
64

.0
0

46
,5

64
.0

0
-5

21
.4

1
10

1.
12

 %
22

,8
19

.9
6

47
,0

85
.4

1
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
, J

O
U

RN
EY

31
,4

43
.2

5
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
43

70
70

12
9,

37
2.

00
12

9,
37

2.
00

25
,1

44
.5

3
80

.5
6 

%
72

,7
84

.2
2

10
4,

22
7.

47
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
 II

78
,8

63
.6

3
8,

11
8.

77
73

0-
70

3-
43

70
71

11
7,

44
4.

00
11

7,
44

4.
00

-1
3,

08
0.

28
11

1.
14

 %
51

,6
60

.6
5

13
0,

52
4.

28
SE

AS
O

N
AL

 H
EL

P
0.

00
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
43

90
11

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

24
,8

39
.7

9
37

.9
0 

%
15

,1
60

.2
1

15
,1

60
.2

1
O

VE
RT

IM
E

1,
39

5.
14

94
.5

7
73

0-
70

3-
45

01
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

6,
51

6.
84

34
.8

3 
%

2,
08

8.
02

3,
48

3.
16

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
2,

44
0.

96
15

8.
94

73
0-

70
3-

45
05

00
0.

00
0.

00
-4

,8
82

.4
7

0.
00

 %
2,

44
1.

51
4,

88
2.

47

3 - 20



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
1
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
12

4,
99

2.
01

11
,5

13
.1

1
73

0-
70

3-
47

00
00

28
7,

06
1.

00
28

7,
06

1.
00

26
,8

38
.6

9
90

.6
5 

%
13

5,
23

0.
30

26
0,

22
2.

31
33

4,
54

2.
07

30
,1

87
.8

2
82

2,
12

2.
00

82
2,

12
2.

00
11

2,
25

6.
23

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

86
.3

5 
%

37
5,

32
3.

70
70

9,
86

5.
77

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
8,

26
7.

46
85

4.
77

73
0-

70
3-

50
01

10
61

,0
00

.0
0

61
,0

00
.0

0
34

,2
05

.5
7

43
.9

3 
%

18
,5

26
.9

7
26

,7
94

.4
3

SD
C 

PA
SS

 T
H

RO
U

G
H

 T
O

 T
CS

D
0.

00
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
50

04
52

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

10
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

O
AK

 L
O

D
G

E 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
47

7,
64

9.
60

95
,5

29
.9

2
73

0-
70

3-
50

04
56

1,
12

8,
93

7.
00

1,
12

8,
93

7.
00

11
9,

50
5.

18
89

.4
1 

%
53

1,
78

2.
22

1,
00

9,
43

1.
82

W
AT

ER
 E

N
VI

RO
N

M
EN

T 
SE

RV
IC

ES
 (W

ES
)

1,
15

7,
71

2.
90

11
2,

42
5.

42
73

0-
70

3-
50

04
58

2,
73

8,
09

2.
00

2,
73

8,
09

2.
00

25
2,

55
2.

30
90

.7
8 

%
1,

32
7,

82
6.

80
2,

48
5,

53
9.

70
BA

N
K 

CH
AR

G
ES

30
,0

12
.8

8
1,

99
0.

80
73

0-
70

3-
52

01
20

36
,0

00
.0

0
36

,0
00

.0
0

-2
7,

02
6.

06
17

5.
07

 %
33

,0
13

.1
8

63
,0

26
.0

6
O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
S,

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
RS

22
,4

83
.8

1
6,

24
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
52

01
30

11
5,

00
0.

00
11

5,
00

0.
00

69
,4

61
.6

2
39

.6
0 

%
23

,0
54

.5
7

45
,5

38
.3

8
FL

EE
T 

FU
EL

, M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

29
,6

44
.6

3
90

5.
59

73
0-

70
3-

52
03

20
55

,0
00

.0
0

55
,0

00
.0

0
42

9.
64

99
.2

2 
%

24
,9

25
.7

3
54

,5
70

.3
6

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

2,
27

2.
21

82
.6

6
73

0-
70

3-
52

04
00

8,
00

0.
00

8,
00

0.
00

3,
74

3.
86

53
.2

0 
%

1,
98

3.
93

4,
25

6.
14

U
TI

LI
TY

 B
IL

LS
 &

 P
O

ST
AG

E
7,

56
2.

05
1,

28
8.

96
73

0-
70

3-
52

04
30

16
,0

00
.0

0
16

,0
00

.0
0

39
5.

81
97

.5
3 

%
8,

04
2.

14
15

,6
04

.1
9

D
U

ES
 &

 M
EM

BE
RS

H
IP

S
43

3.
29

0.
00

73
0-

70
3-

54
02

00
0.

00
0.

00
-4

33
.2

9
0.

00
 %

0.
00

43
3.

29
TR

AV
EL

, C
O

N
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

&
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

1,
30

1.
15

0.
00

73
0-

70
3-

54
02

20
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
2,

72
8.

59
45

.4
3 

%
97

0.
26

2,
27

1.
41

SM
AL

L 
TO

O
LS

, E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
&

 S
AF

ET
Y 

SU
P

4,
54

6.
62

0.
00

73
0-

70
3-

54
03

00
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
6,

24
6.

62
68

.7
7 

%
9,

20
6.

76
13

,7
53

.3
8

D
U

M
PI

N
G

, H
AU

LI
N

G
, G

AR
BA

G
E

67
5.

14
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
54

04
00

5,
50

0.
00

5,
50

0.
00

46
.9

6
99

.1
5 

%
4,

77
7.

90
5,

45
3.

04
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

1,
09

6.
17

10
7.

96
73

0-
70

3-
56

01
00

6,
50

0.
00

6,
50

0.
00

4,
06

9.
34

37
.3

9 
%

1,
33

4.
49

2,
43

0.
66

1,
74

3,
65

7.
91

21
9,

42
6.

08
4,

20
5,

02
9.

00
4,

20
5,

02
9.

00
47

5,
92

6.
14

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

88
.6

8 
%

1,
98

5,
44

4.
95

3,
72

9,
10

2.
86

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

0.
00

0.
00

73
0-

70
3-

66
01

00
66

5,
00

0.
00

66
5,

00
0.

00
66

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
SY

ST
EM

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 &

 P
RO

JE
CT

S
23

7,
76

9.
79

13
,4

60
.7

0
73

0-
70

3-
67

60
50

4,
47

1,
76

1.
00

4,
47

1,
76

1.
00

3,
91

5,
58

6.
67

12
.4

4 
%

31
8,

40
4.

54
55

6,
17

4.
33

RE
SE

RV
E 

FR
O

M
 S

D
C'

S
0.

00
0.

00
73

0-
70

3-
67

80
90

39
3,

96
4.

00
39

3,
96

4.
00

39
3,

96
4.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

23
7,

76
9.

79
13

,4
60

.7
0

5,
53

0,
72

5.
00

5,
53

0,
72

5.
00

4,
97

4,
55

0.
67

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

 T
ot

al
:

10
.0

6 
%

31
8,

40
4.

54
55

6,
17

4.
33

2,
31

5,
96

9.
77

26
3,

07
4.

60
10

,5
57

,8
76

.0
0

10
,5

57
,8

76
.0

0
5,

56
2,

73
3.

04
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 7

03
 - 

SE
W

ER
 T

ot
al

:
47

.3
1 

%
2,

67
9,

17
3.

19
4,

99
5,

14
2.

96

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
10

6,
92

3.
50

0.
00

73
0-

92
0-

89
91

00
28

8,
60

4.
00

28
8,

60
4.

00
87

,4
16

.5
0

69
.7

1 
%

94
,2

64
.0

0
20

1,
18

7.
50

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 R
O

AD
 &

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
 

10
1,

43
7.

20
0.

00
73

0-
92

0-
89

92
05

43
0,

92
5.

00
43

0,
92

5.
00

13
6,

62
1.

80
68

.3
0 

%
19

2,
86

6.
00

29
4,

30
3.

20
20

8,
36

0.
70

0.
00

71
9,

52
9.

00
71

9,
52

9.
00

22
4,

03
8.

30
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 8

9 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
68

.8
6 

%
28

7,
13

0.
00

49
5,

49
0.

70

20
8,

36
0.

70
0.

00
71

9,
52

9.
00

71
9,

52
9.

00
22

4,
03

8.
30

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
68

.8
6 

%
28

7,
13

0.
00

49
5,

49
0.

70

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

73
0-

99
0-

91
00

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

2,
52

4,
33

0.
47

26
3,

07
4.

60
11

,6
77

,4
05

.0
0

11
,6

77
,4

05
.0

0
6,

18
6,

77
1.

34
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

47
.0

2 
%

2,
96

6,
30

3.
19

5,
49

0,
63

3.
66

95
9,

91
4.

19
82

,6
92

.3
6

0.
00

0.
00

1,
97

7,
06

4.
78

Fu
nd

: 7
30

 - 
SE

W
ER

 F
U

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

1,
01

7,
15

0.
59

1,
97

7,
06

4.
78

3 - 21



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
2
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 7
40

 - 
W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

Re
ve

nu
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

.
BE

G
IN

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
00

0-
30

99
99

3,
86

8,
00

0.
00

3,
86

8,
00

0.
00

-3
,8

68
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
86

8,
00

0.
00

3,
86

8,
00

0.
00

-3
,8

68
,0

00
.0

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

. T
ot

al
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

0 
- C

H
AR

G
ES

 F
O

R 
SE

RV
IC

ES
W

AT
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

 R
EV

EN
U

E
2,

29
3,

45
2.

07
19

3,
13

3.
13

74
0-

00
0-

31
40

60
5,

20
0,

00
0.

00
5,

20
0,

00
0.

00
-3

18
,9

36
.0

0
93

.8
7 

%
2,

58
7,

61
1.

93
4,

88
1,

06
4.

00
W

AT
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

 C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

S
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
00

0-
31

40
80

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

-9
,4

51
.9

8
5.

48
 %

54
8.

02
54

8.
02

2,
29

3,
45

2.
07

19
3,

13
3.

13
5,

21
0,

00
0.

00
5,

21
0,

00
0.

00
-3

28
,3

87
.9

8
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

14
0 

- C
H

AR
G

ES
 F

O
R 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 T
ot

al
:

93
.7

0 
%

2,
58

8,
15

9.
95

4,
88

1,
61

2.
02

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C

W
AT

ER
 S

D
C'

S
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
00

0-
31

41
10

50
,0

00
.0

0
50

,0
00

.0
0

-5
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
50

,0
00

.0
0

-5
0,

00
0.

00
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

14
1 

- S
D

C 
To

ta
l:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 W
AT

ER
 R

EC
EI

PT
S

1,
05

0.
00

0.
00

74
0-

00
0-

36
00

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

05
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

1,
05

0.
00

1,
05

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
05

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S 
To

ta
l:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
1,

05
0.

00

2,
29

4,
50

2.
07

19
3,

13
3.

13
9,

12
8,

00
0.

00
9,

12
8,

00
0.

00
-4

,2
45

,3
37

.9
8

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

53
.4

9 
%

2,
58

8,
15

9.
95

4,
88

2,
66

2.
02

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
99

0 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
IN

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 R
O

AD
 &

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
74

0-
91

0-
39

92
05

27
8,

40
5.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

-1
02

,2
85

.6
0

63
.2

6 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
-1

02
,2

85
.6

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

99
0 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
 T

ot
al

:
63

.2
6 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
-1

02
,2

85
.6

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

10
 - 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 T

ot
al

:
63

.2
6 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40

2,
35

2,
95

8.
47

19
3,

13
3.

13
9,

40
6,

40
5.

00
9,

40
6,

40
5.

00
-4

,3
47

,6
23

.5
8

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
53

.7
8 

%
2,

70
5,

82
2.

95
5,

05
8,

78
1.

42

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 7
04

 - 
W

AT
ER

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
AC

CO
U

N
TI

N
G

 C
LE

RK
15

,0
14

.2
5

1,
50

7.
80

74
0-

70
4-

43
15

00
36

,7
27

.0
0

36
,7

27
.0

0
4,

31
2.

33
88

.2
6 

%
17

,4
00

.4
2

32
,4

14
.6

7
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
20

,8
74

.0
0

2,
08

7.
40

74
0-

70
4-

43
70

49
46

,1
11

.0
0

46
,1

11
.0

0
2,

27
6.

22
95

.0
6 

%
22

,9
60

.7
8

43
,8

34
.7

8
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

SU
PE

RV
IS

O
R

26
,9

14
.3

6
2,

28
7.

52
74

0-
70

4-
43

70
50

72
,2

73
.0

0
72

,2
73

.0
0

8,
74

5.
83

87
.9

0 
%

36
,6

12
.8

1
63

,5
27

.1
7

PW
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 M
AN

AG
ER

11
,4

82
.7

7
2,

27
5.

56
74

0-
70

4-
43

70
51

44
,8

17
.0

0
44

,8
17

.0
0

33
,3

34
.2

3
25

.6
2 

%
0.

00
11

,4
82

.7
7

PW
 A

D
M

IN
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

T
24

,2
65

.4
5

2,
44

3.
98

74
0-

70
4-

43
70

55
46

,5
64

.0
0

46
,5

64
.0

0
-5

21
.4

1
10

1.
12

 %
22

,8
19

.9
6

47
,0

85
.4

1
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
, J

O
U

RN
EY

60
,5

18
.6

4
6,

10
9.

00
74

0-
70

4-
43

70
70

14
5,

81
8.

00
14

5,
81

8.
00

27
,6

43
.6

5
81

.0
4 

%
57

,6
55

.7
1

11
8,

17
4.

35
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
 II

71
,7

75
.3

8
7,

26
8.

43
74

0-
70

4-
43

70
71

23
8,

65
0.

00
23

8,
65

0.
00

12
1,

11
2.

93
49

.2
5 

%
45

,7
61

.6
9

11
7,

53
7.

07
SE

AS
O

N
AL

 H
EL

P
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
43

90
11

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

34
,8

80
.2

4
12

.8
0 

%
5,

11
9.

76
5,

11
9.

76
O

VE
RT

IM
E

1,
02

0.
03

95
.7

3
74

0-
70

4-
45

01
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

7,
63

0.
86

23
.6

9 
%

1,
34

9.
11

2,
36

9.
14

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
1,

10
9.

98
16

1.
68

74
0-

70
4-

45
05

00
0.

00
0.

00
-1

,4
55

.2
8

0.
00

 %
34

5.
30

1,
45

5.
28

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 P

AY
RO

LL
 C

O
ST

S
13

8,
72

6.
61

11
,0

88
.9

1
74

0-
70

4-
47

00
00

43
4,

07
9.

00
43

4,
07

9.
00

19
1,

53
2.

13
55

.8
8 

%
10

3,
82

0.
26

24
2,

54
6.

87
37

1,
70

1.
47

35
,3

26
.0

1
1,

11
5,

03
9.

00
1,

11
5,

03
9.

00
42

9,
49

1.
73

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

61
.4

8 
%

31
3,

84
5.

80
68

5,
54

7.
27

3 - 22



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
3
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
20

,1
43

.8
5

37
6.

03
74

0-
70

4-
50

01
10

71
,0

00
.0

0
71

,0
00

.0
0

10
,3

32
.2

3
85

.4
5 

%
40

,5
23

.9
2

60
,6

67
.7

7
M

ET
ER

 R
EA

D
IN

G
 C

O
N

TR
AC

T
23

,8
00

.1
7

2,
37

9.
81

74
0-

70
4-

50
02

40
65

,0
00

.0
0

65
,0

00
.0

0
13

,6
92

.4
2

78
.9

3 
%

27
,5

07
.4

1
51

,3
07

.5
8

W
H

O
LE

SA
LE

 W
AT

ER
47

7,
62

2.
44

41
,4

64
.2

5
74

0-
70

4-
50

04
25

1,
30

0,
00

0.
00

1,
30

0,
00

0.
00

29
2,

05
8.

94
77

.5
3 

%
53

0,
31

8.
62

1,
00

7,
94

1.
06

BA
N

K 
CH

AR
G

ES
28

,6
83

.0
6

1,
88

5.
82

74
0-

70
4-

52
01

20
36

,0
00

.0
0

36
,0

00
.0

0
-2

4,
99

6.
44

16
9.

43
 %

32
,3

13
.3

8
60

,9
96

.4
4

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

S,
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

RS
52

,3
49

.6
1

6,
01

3.
69

74
0-

70
4-

52
01

30
30

0,
00

0.
00

30
0,

00
0.

00
15

0,
81

3.
47

49
.7

3 
%

96
,8

36
.9

2
14

9,
18

6.
53

LA
BO

RA
TO

RY
 W

AT
ER

 T
ES

TS
10

,0
52

.1
1

0.
00

74
0-

70
4-

52
01

62
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
17

,3
66

.8
9

56
.5

8 
%

12
,5

81
.0

0
22

,6
33

.1
1

FI
RE

 H
YD

RA
N

T 
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

R
91

8.
50

0.
00

74
0-

70
4-

52
01

65
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
39

,0
81

.5
0

2.
30

 %
0.

00
91

8.
50

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
, R

EP
AI

R 
&

 O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

-3
00

.0
0

0.
00

74
0-

70
4-

52
03

10
0.

00
0.

00
45

8.
12

0.
00

 %
-1

58
.1

2
-4

58
.1

2
FL

EE
T 

FU
EL

, M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

17
,8

00
.8

3
90

5.
59

74
0-

70
4-

52
03

20
45

,0
00

.0
0

45
,0

00
.0

0
8,

20
4.

87
81

.7
7 

%
18

,9
94

.3
0

36
,7

95
.1

3
O

FF
IC

E 
SU

PP
LI

ES
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
2,

34
4.

69
82

.6
6

74
0-

70
4-

52
04

00
6,

00
0.

00
6,

00
0.

00
1,

63
9.

67
72

.6
7 

%
2,

01
5.

64
4,

36
0.

33
U

TI
LI

TY
 B

IL
LS

 &
 P

O
ST

AG
E

7,
56

2.
05

1,
28

8.
96

74
0-

70
4-

52
04

30
16

,0
00

.0
0

16
,0

00
.0

0
39

5.
81

97
.5

3 
%

8,
04

2.
14

15
,6

04
.1

9
D

U
ES

 &
 M

EM
BE

RS
H

IP
S

43
3.

42
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
54

02
00

0.
00

0.
00

-4
33

.4
2

0.
00

 %
0.

00
43

3.
42

TR
AV

EL
, C

O
N

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
&

 T
RA

IN
IN

G
1,

73
0.

20
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
54

02
20

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

6,
44

7.
54

35
.5

2 
%

1,
82

2.
26

3,
55

2.
46

SM
AL

L 
TO

O
LS

, E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T 
&

 S
AF

ET
Y 

SU
P

14
,6

01
.8

6
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
54

03
00

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

-4
,8

66
.6

4
12

4.
33

 %
10

,2
64

.7
8

24
,8

66
.6

4
D

U
M

PI
N

G
, H

AU
LI

N
G

, G
AR

BA
G

E
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
54

04
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

1,
82

9.
71

81
.7

0 
%

8,
17

0.
29

8,
17

0.
29

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
17

,2
27

.1
3

1,
71

8.
63

74
0-

70
4-

56
01

00
55

,0
00

.0
0

55
,0

00
.0

0
17

,0
14

.5
8

69
.0

6 
%

20
,7

58
.2

9
37

,9
85

.4
2

67
4,

96
9.

92
56

,1
15

.4
4

2,
01

4,
00

0.
00

2,
01

4,
00

0.
00

52
9,

03
9.

25
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
73

.7
3 

%
80

9,
99

0.
83

1,
48

4,
96

0.
75

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

0.
00

0.
00

74
0-

70
4-

66
01

00
27

9,
00

0.
00

27
9,

00
0.

00
27

9,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
SY

ST
EM

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 &

 P
RO

JE
CT

S
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
67

60
50

3,
96

0,
42

5.
00

3,
96

0,
42

5.
00

3,
88

2,
19

8.
45

1.
98

 %
78

,2
26

.5
5

78
,2

26
.5

5
RE

SE
RV

E 
FR

O
M

 S
D

C'
S

0.
00

0.
00

74
0-

70
4-

67
80

90
60

9,
61

0.
00

60
9,

61
0.

00
60

9,
61

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

84
9,

03
5.

00
4,

84
9,

03
5.

00
4,

77
0,

80
8.

45
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 6

0 
- C

AP
IT

AL
 O

U
TL

AY
 T

ot
al

:
1.

61
 %

78
,2

26
.5

5
78

,2
26

.5
5

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 7
0 

- D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
20

05
 B

O
N

D
ED

 D
EB

T/
PR

IN
CI

PA
L

16
6,

00
0.

00
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
72

00
40

33
1,

00
0.

00
33

1,
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
0.

00
 %

16
5,

00
0.

00
33

1,
00

0.
00

20
05

 B
O

N
D

ED
 D

EB
T/

IN
TE

RE
ST

11
,9

79
.0

0
0.

00
74

0-
70

4-
73

00
40

27
,2

35
.0

0
27

,2
35

.0
0

1,
63

4.
10

94
.0

0 
%

13
,6

21
.9

0
25

,6
00

.9
0

17
7,

97
9.

00
0.

00
35

8,
23

5.
00

35
8,

23
5.

00
1,

63
4.

10
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 7

0 
- D

EB
T 

SE
RV

IC
E 

To
ta

l:
99

.5
4 

%
17

8,
62

1.
90

35
6,

60
0.

90

1,
22

4,
65

0.
39

91
,4

41
.4

5
8,

33
6,

30
9.

00
8,

33
6,

30
9.

00
5,

73
0,

97
3.

53
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 7

04
 - 

W
AT

ER
 T

ot
al

:
31

.2
5 

%
1,

38
0,

68
5.

08
2,

60
5,

33
5.

47

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
13

2,
45

8.
00

0.
00

74
0-

92
0-

89
91

00
38

8,
09

6.
00

38
8,

09
6.

00
11

2,
95

2.
00

70
.9

0 
%

14
2,

68
6.

00
27

5,
14

4.
00

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 R
O

AD
 &

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
 

75
,4

94
.7

0
0.

00
74

0-
92

0-
89

92
05

28
2,

00
0.

00
28

2,
00

0.
00

77
,0

97
.3

0
72

.6
6 

%
12

9,
40

8.
00

20
4,

90
2.

70
20

7,
95

2.
70

0.
00

67
0,

09
6.

00
67

0,
09

6.
00

19
0,

04
9.

30
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 8

9 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
71

.6
4 

%
27

2,
09

4.
00

48
0,

04
6.

70

20
7,

95
2.

70
0.

00
67

0,
09

6.
00

67
0,

09
6.

00
19

0,
04

9.
30

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
71

.6
4 

%
27

2,
09

4.
00

48
0,

04
6.

70

3 - 23



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
4
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

74
0-

99
0-

91
00

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

1,
43

2,
60

3.
09

91
,4

41
.4

5
9,

40
6,

40
5.

00
9,

40
6,

40
5.

00
6,

32
1,

02
2.

83
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

32
.8

0 
%

1,
65

2,
77

9.
08

3,
08

5,
38

2.
17

92
0,

35
5.

38
10

1,
69

1.
68

0.
00

0.
00

1,
97

3,
39

9.
25

Fu
nd

: 7
40

 - 
W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

1,
05

3,
04

3.
87

1,
97

3,
39

9.
25

3 - 24



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
5
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 7
50

 - 
ST

O
RM

 W
AT

ER
 F

U
N

D
Re

ve
nu

e
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
.

BE
G

IN
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D 

BA
LA

N
CE

0.
00

0.
00

75
0-

00
0-

30
99

99
1,

04
0,

00
0.

00
1,

04
0,

00
0.

00
-1

,0
40

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

04
0,

00
0.

00
1,

04
0,

00
0.

00
-1

,0
40

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
00

0 
- B

EG
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
. T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

0 
- C

H
AR

G
ES

 F
O

R 
SE

RV
IC

ES
ST

O
RM

 R
EV

EN
U

E
79

3,
06

6.
90

80
,4

16
.4

5
75

0-
00

0-
31

40
60

1,
89

8,
00

0.
00

1,
89

8,
00

0.
00

-1
79

,9
62

.8
9

90
.5

2 
%

92
4,

97
0.

21
1,

71
8,

03
7.

11
79

3,
06

6.
90

80
,4

16
.4

5
1,

89
8,

00
0.

00
1,

89
8,

00
0.

00
-1

79
,9

62
.8

9
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

14
0 

- C
H

AR
G

ES
 F

O
R 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 T
ot

al
:

90
.5

2 
%

92
4,

97
0.

21
1,

71
8,

03
7.

11

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C

ST
O

RM
W

AT
ER

 S
D

C'
S

0.
00

0.
00

75
0-

00
0-

31
41

10
11

,0
00

.0
0

11
,0

00
.0

0
-1

1,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
11

,0
00

.0
0

11
,0

00
.0

0
-1

1,
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
14

1 
- S

D
C 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 S
TO

RM
 F

U
N

D
 R

ES
O

U
RC

ES
41

,1
74

.2
4

11
,2

07
.0

1
75

0-
00

0-
36

00
00

0.
00

0.
00

41
,1

74
.2

4
0.

00
 %

0.
00

41
,1

74
.2

4
41

,1
74

.2
4

11
,2

07
.0

1
0.

00
0.

00
41

,1
74

.2
4

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S 
To

ta
l:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
41

,1
74

.2
4

83
4,

24
1.

14
91

,6
23

.4
6

2,
94

9,
00

0.
00

2,
94

9,
00

0.
00

-1
,1

89
,7

88
.6

5
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 0

00
 - 

U
N

D
ES

IG
N

A
TE

D
 /

 N
O

N
 D

EP
AR

TM
EN

TA
L 

To
ta

l:
59

.6
5 

%
92

4,
97

0.
21

1,
75

9,
21

1.
35

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
10

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 IN

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
99

0 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
IN

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 F

RO
M

 R
O

AD
 &

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
75

0-
91

0-
39

92
05

27
8,

40
5.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

-1
02

,2
85

.6
0

63
.2

6 
%

11
7,

66
3.

00
17

6,
11

9.
40

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
-1

02
,2

85
.6

0
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

99
0 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

IN
 T

ot
al

:
63

.2
6 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40

58
,4

56
.4

0
0.

00
27

8,
40

5.
00

27
8,

40
5.

00
-1

02
,2

85
.6

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

10
 - 

TR
AN

SF
ER

 IN
 T

ot
al

:
63

.2
6 

%
11

7,
66

3.
00

17
6,

11
9.

40

89
2,

69
7.

54
91

,6
23

.4
6

3,
22

7,
40

5.
00

3,
22

7,
40

5.
00

-1
,2

92
,0

74
.2

5
Re

ve
nu

e 
To

ta
l:

59
.9

7 
%

1,
04

2,
63

3.
21

1,
93

5,
33

0.
75

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 7
05

 - 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 4

0 
- P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 S

ER
VI

CE
S

AC
CO

U
N

TI
N

G
 C

LE
RK

12
,5

11
.8

6
1,

25
6.

50
75

0-
70

5-
43

15
00

30
,6

06
.0

0
30

,6
06

.0
0

3,
59

3.
80

88
.2

6 
%

14
,5

00
.3

4
27

,0
12

.2
0

PU
BL

IC
 W

O
RK

S 
D

IR
EC

TO
R

20
,8

74
.0

0
2,

08
7.

40
75

0-
70

5-
43

70
49

46
,1

11
.0

0
46

,1
11

.0
0

2,
27

6.
24

95
.0

6 
%

22
,9

60
.7

6
43

,8
34

.7
6

PU
BL

IC
 W

O
RK

S 
SU

PE
RV

IS
O

R
26

,1
10

.0
0

2,
22

0.
24

75
0-

70
5-

43
70

50
70

,1
47

.0
0

70
,1

47
.0

0
8,

51
9.

36
87

.8
5 

%
35

,5
17

.6
4

61
,6

27
.6

4
PW

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 M

AN
AG

ER
11

,5
76

.4
2

2,
29

4.
29

75
0-

70
5-

43
70

51
44

,8
17

.0
0

44
,8

17
.0

0
33

,2
40

.5
8

25
.8

3 
%

0.
00

11
,5

76
.4

2
PW

 A
D

M
IN

 A
SS

IS
TA

N
T

24
,2

65
.1

5
2,

44
3.

96
75

0-
70

5-
43

70
55

46
,5

64
.0

0
46

,5
64

.0
0

-5
20

.9
4

10
1.

12
 %

22
,8

19
.7

9
47

,0
84

.9
4

U
TI

LI
TY

 W
O

RK
ER

, J
O

U
RN

EY
35

.0
0

0.
00

75
0-

70
5-

43
70

70
0.

00
0.

00
-5

5,
22

7.
77

0.
00

 %
55

,1
92

.7
7

55
,2

27
.7

7
U

TI
LI

TY
 W

O
RK

ER
 II

11
,2

61
.2

9
0.

00
75

0-
70

5-
43

70
71

10
3,

98
0.

00
10

3,
98

0.
00

92
,7

18
.7

1
10

.8
3 

%
0.

00
11

,2
61

.2
9

SE
AS

O
N

AL
 H

EL
P

0.
00

0.
00

75
0-

70
5-

43
90

11
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
25

,4
92

.0
0

36
.2

7 
%

14
,5

08
.0

0
14

,5
08

.0
0

O
VE

RT
IM

E
79

4.
28

94
.5

7
75

0-
70

5-
45

01
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

2,
81

1.
53

43
.7

7 
%

1,
39

4.
19

2,
18

8.
47

CA
RE

ER
 R

EC
O

G
N

IT
IO

N
 P

AY
95

0.
91

13
3.

26
75

0-
70

5-
45

05
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
,2

86
.0

8
0.

00
 %

33
5.

17
1,

28
6.

08
AS

SO
CI

AT
ED

 P
AY

RO
LL

 C
O

ST
S

67
,5

17
.6

1
7,

00
8.

15
75

0-
70

5-
47

00
00

18
0,

48
6.

00
18

0,
48

6.
00

33
,8

23
.6

5
81

.2
6 

%
79

,1
44

.7
4

14
6,

66
2.

35
17

5,
89

6.
52

17
,5

38
.3

7
56

7,
71

1.
00

56
7,

71
1.

00
14

5,
44

1.
08

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 4
0 

- P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 
To

ta
l:

74
.3

8 
%

24
6,

37
3.

40
42

2,
26

9.
92

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CO

N
TR

AC
TU

AL
 &

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
 S

ER
VI

CE
15

,7
33

.4
8

32
0.

02
75

0-
70

5-
50

01
10

41
,0

00
.0

0
41

,0
00

.0
0

-2
99

.9
5

10
0.

73
 %

25
,5

66
.4

7
41

,2
99

.9
5

3 - 25



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
6
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

BA
N

K 
CH

AR
G

ES
30

,0
14

.9
3

1,
99

0.
81

75
0-

70
5-

52
01

20
36

,0
00

.0
0

36
,0

00
.0

0
-2

7,
03

0.
45

17
5.

08
 %

33
,0

15
.5

2
63

,0
30

.4
5

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

S,
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 &
 R

EP
AI

RS
14

,9
72

.2
6

73
.5

6
75

0-
70

5-
52

01
30

65
,0

00
.0

0
65

,0
00

.0
0

19
,8

87
.6

1
69

.4
0 

%
30

,1
40

.1
3

45
,1

12
.3

9
FL

EE
T 

FU
EL

, M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

8,
23

2.
07

9.
77

75
0-

70
5-

52
03

20
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
-9

,3
12

.0
5

14
6.

56
 %

21
,0

79
.9

8
29

,3
12

.0
5

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

 &
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T

2,
28

0.
77

82
.6

4
75

0-
70

5-
52

04
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

73
5.

57
85

.2
9 

%
1,

98
3.

66
4,

26
4.

43
U

TI
LI

TY
 B

IL
LS

 &
 P

O
ST

AG
E

7,
56

4.
34

1,
28

9.
35

75
0-

70
5-

52
04

30
16

,0
00

.0
0

16
,0

00
.0

0
39

1.
09

97
.5

6 
%

8,
04

4.
57

15
,6

08
.9

1
TR

AV
EL

, C
O

N
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

&
 T

RA
IN

IN
G

61
2.

52
19

0.
00

75
0-

70
5-

54
02

20
4,

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
3,

29
1.

14
17

.7
2 

%
96

.3
4

70
8.

86
SM

AL
L 

TO
O

LS
, E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
 S

AF
ET

Y 
SU

P
4,

65
6.

84
0.

00
75

0-
70

5-
54

03
00

11
,0

00
.0

0
11

,0
00

.0
0

-1
,2

14
.0

8
11

1.
04

 %
7,

55
7.

24
12

,2
14

.0
8

D
U

M
PI

N
G

, H
AU

LI
N

G
, G

AR
BA

G
E

67
4.

93
0.

00
75

0-
70

5-
54

04
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

2,
12

7.
26

57
.4

5 
%

2,
19

7.
81

2,
87

2.
74

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
52

0.
45

50
.4

0
75

0-
70

5-
56

01
00

3,
00

0.
00

3,
00

0.
00

1,
83

4.
96

38
.8

3 
%

64
4.

59
1,

16
5.

04
85

,2
62

.5
9

4,
00

6.
55

20
6,

00
0.

00
20

6,
00

0.
00

-9
,5

88
.9

0
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
10

4.
65

 %
13

0,
32

6.
31

21
5,

58
8.

90

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

RE
SE

RV
ES

0.
00

0.
00

75
0-

70
5-

66
01

00
11

5,
00

0.
00

11
5,

00
0.

00
11

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
SY

ST
EM

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 &

 P
RO

JE
CT

S
18

5,
50

6.
11

5,
76

8.
87

75
0-

70
5-

67
60

50
1,

80
3,

50
0.

00
1,

80
3,

50
0.

00
1,

43
1,

05
4.

13
20

.6
5 

%
18

6,
93

9.
76

37
2,

44
5.

87
18

5,
50

6.
11

5,
76

8.
87

1,
91

8,
50

0.
00

1,
91

8,
50

0.
00

1,
54

6,
05

4.
13

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 6
0 

- C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

 T
ot

al
:

19
.4

1 
%

18
6,

93
9.

76
37

2,
44

5.
87

44
6,

66
5.

22
27

,3
13

.7
9

2,
69

2,
21

1.
00

2,
69

2,
21

1.
00

1,
68

1,
90

6.
31

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 7
05

 - 
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

RK
S 

D
IR

EC
TO

R 
To

ta
l:

37
.5

3 
%

56
3,

63
9.

47
1,

01
0,

30
4.

69

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 8
9 

- T
RA

N
SF

ER
S 

O
U

T
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

TO
 G

EN
ER

AL
 F

U
N

D
91

,6
57

.5
0

0.
00

75
0-

92
0-

89
91

00
23

1,
09

4.
00

23
1,

09
4.

00
72

,1
50

.5
0

68
.7

8 
%

67
,2

86
.0

0
15

8,
94

3.
50

TR
AN

SF
ER

 O
U

T 
TO

 R
O

AD
 &

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
 

23
,5

73
.1

0
0.

00
75

0-
92

0-
89

92
05

10
4,

10
0.

00
10

4,
10

0.
00

34
,2

78
.9

0
67

.0
7 

%
46

,2
48

.0
0

69
,8

21
.1

0
11

5,
23

0.
60

0.
00

33
5,

19
4.

00
33

5,
19

4.
00

10
6,

42
9.

40
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 8

9 
- T

RA
N

SF
ER

S 
O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
68

.2
5 

%
11

3,
53

4.
00

22
8,

76
4.

60

11
5,

23
0.

60
0.

00
33

5,
19

4.
00

33
5,

19
4.

00
10

6,
42

9.
40

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
20

 - 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O

U
T 

To
ta

l:
68

.2
5 

%
11

3,
53

4.
00

22
8,

76
4.

60

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

75
0-

99
0-

91
00

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
0,

00
0.

00
20

0,
00

0.
00

20
0,

00
0.

00
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

56
1,

89
5.

82
27

,3
13

.7
9

3,
22

7,
40

5.
00

3,
22

7,
40

5.
00

1,
98

8,
33

5.
71

Ex
pe

ns
e 

To
ta

l:
38

.3
9 

%
67

7,
17

3.
47

1,
23

9,
06

9.
29

33
0,

80
1.

72
64

,3
09

.6
7

0.
00

0.
00

69
6,

26
1.

46
Fu

nd
: 7

50
 - 

ST
O

RM
 W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
0.

00
 %

36
5,

45
9.

74
69

6,
26

1.
46

3 - 26



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
7
 o

f 
2
8

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty

Va
ria

nc
e

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e
(U

nf
av

or
ab

le
)

Ap
ril

Ac
vi

ty
To

ta
l A

ct
iv

ity
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

Pe
rc

en
t

U
se

d
20

21
-2

02
2

Ac
vi

ty

Fu
nd

: 8
01

 - 
M

U
N

IC
IP

AL
 C

O
U

RT
 T

RU
ST

 F
U

N
D

Re
ve

nu
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

.
BE

G
IN

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D 
BA

LA
N

CE
0.

00
0.

00
80

1-
00

0-
30

99
99

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

-4
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

-4
0,

00
0.

00
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

00
0 

- B
EG

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

. T
ot

al
:

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
26

0 
- F

IN
ES

 A
N

D
 F

O
RF

EI
TU

RE
S

CI
TY

 O
F 

G
LA

D
ST

O
N

E 
FI

N
ES

/F
EE

S
24

8,
74

1.
10

46
,6

91
.9

8
80

1-
00

0-
32

60
20

73
5,

00
0.

00
73

5,
00

0.
00

-1
35

,5
28

.5
9

81
.5

6 
%

35
0,

73
0.

31
59

9,
47

1.
41

CL
AC

KA
M

AS
 C

O
U

N
TY

 F
IN

ES
/F

EE
S

10
,6

27
.5

3
1,

68
3.

07
80

1-
00

0-
32

60
30

22
,0

00
.0

0
22

,0
00

.0
0

3,
49

5.
32

11
5.

89
 %

14
,8

67
.7

9
25

,4
95

.3
2

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
O

RE
G

O
N

 F
IN

ES
/F

EE
S

39
,1

50
.0

3
6,

65
1.

05
80

1-
00

0-
32

60
40

85
,0

00
.0

0
85

,0
00

.0
0

10
,6

84
.3

9
11

2.
57

 %
56

,5
34

.3
6

95
,6

84
.3

9
RE

ST
IT

U
TI

O
N

0.
00

-1
00

.0
0

80
1-

00
0-

32
60

50
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
-3

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
BO

N
D

-6
,4

65
.4

7
-1

0,
17

1.
92

80
1-

00
0-

32
60

60
5,

00
0.

00
5,

00
0.

00
-1

6,
70

0.
41

23
4.

01
 %

-5
,2

34
.9

4
-1

1,
70

0.
41

29
2,

05
3.

19
44

,7
54

.1
8

85
0,

00
0.

00
85

0,
00

0.
00

-1
41

,0
49

.2
9

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
26

0 
- F

IN
ES

 A
N

D
 F

O
RF

EI
TU

RE
S 

To
ta

l:
83

.4
1 

%
41

6,
89

7.
52

70
8,

95
0.

71

Rp
tT

yp
e:

 3
60

0 
- M

IS
CE

LL
AN

EO
U

S
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 C
O

U
RT

 F
EE

S
50

3.
50

0.
00

80
1-

00
0-

36
00

00
0.

00
0.

00
64

3.
50

0.
00

 %
14

0.
00

64
3.

50
50

3.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

64
3.

50
Rp

tT
yp

e:
 3

60
0 

- M
IS

CE
LL

AN
EO

U
S 

To
ta

l:
0.

00
 %

14
0.

00
64

3.
50

29
2,

55
6.

69
44

,7
54

.1
8

89
0,

00
0.

00
89

0,
00

0.
00

-1
80

,4
05

.7
9

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 0
00

 - 
U

N
D

ES
IG

N
A

TE
D

 /
 N

O
N

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
TA

L 
To

ta
l:

79
.7

3 
%

41
7,

03
7.

52
70

9,
59

4.
21

29
2,

55
6.

69
44

,7
54

.1
8

89
0,

00
0.

00
89

0,
00

0.
00

-1
80

,4
05

.7
9

Re
ve

nu
e 

To
ta

l:
79

.7
3 

%
41

7,
03

7.
52

70
9,

59
4.

21

Ex
pe

ns
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 2
20

 - 
CO

U
RT

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 5
0 

- M
A

TE
RI

AL
 A

N
D

 S
ER

VI
CE

S
CI

TY
 O

F 
G

LA
D

ST
O

N
E 

FI
N

ES
 &

 F
EE

S
25

2,
05

6.
51

20
,4

70
.8

2
80

1-
22

0-
50

05
00

73
5,

00
0.

00
73

5,
00

0.
00

19
1,

90
5.

80
73

.8
9 

%
29

1,
03

7.
69

54
3,

09
4.

20
CL

AC
KA

M
AS

 C
O

U
N

TY
 F

IN
ES

 &
 F

EE
S

10
,6

22
.1

5
1,

10
0.

99
80

1-
22

0-
50

05
10

22
,0

00
.0

0
22

,0
00

.0
0

-2
,9

36
.9

9
11

3.
35

 %
14

,3
14

.8
4

24
,9

36
.9

9
ST

AT
E 

O
F 

O
RE

G
O

N
 F

IN
ES

 &
 F

EE
S

38
,8

50
.4

8
4,

68
9.

87
80

1-
22

0-
50

05
20

85
,0

00
.0

0
85

,0
00

.0
0

-4
2,

05
1.

37
14

9.
47

 %
88

,2
00

.8
9

12
7,

05
1.

37
RE

ST
IT

U
TI

O
N

0.
00

0.
00

80
1-

22
0-

50
05

30
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

BO
N

D
 - 

CO
U

RT
0.

00
0.

00
80

1-
22

0-
50

05
40

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
AL

L 
O

TH
ER

 F
EE

S 
&

 F
IN

ES
36

8.
50

0.
00

80
1-

22
0-

50
05

50
0.

00
0.

00
-5

08
.5

0
0.

00
 %

14
0.

00
50

8.
50

30
1,

89
7.

64
26

,2
61

.6
8

85
0,

00
0.

00
85

0,
00

0.
00

15
4,

40
8.

94
Rp

tC
at

eg
or

y:
 5

0 
- M

A
TE

RI
AL

 A
N

D
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

To
ta

l:
81

.8
3 

%
39

3,
69

3.
42

69
5,

59
1.

06

30
1,

89
7.

64
26

,2
61

.6
8

85
0,

00
0.

00
85

0,
00

0.
00

15
4,

40
8.

94
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 2

20
 - 

CO
U

RT
 T

ot
al

:
81

.8
3 

%
39

3,
69

3.
42

69
5,

59
1.

06

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t:

 9
90

 - 
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
CO

N
TI

N
G

EN
CY

 F
U

N
DS

0.
00

0.
00

80
1-

99
0-

91
00

00
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

 %
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

Rp
tC

at
eg

or
y:

 9
0 

- O
TH

ER
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

40
,0

00
.0

0
40

,0
00

.0
0

40
,0

00
.0

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t:
 9

90
 - 

CO
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
 T

ot
al

:
0.

00
 %

0.
00

0.
00

30
1,

89
7.

64
26

,2
61

.6
8

89
0,

00
0.

00
89

0,
00

0.
00

19
4,

40
8.

94
Ex

pe
ns

e 
To

ta
l:

78
.1

6 
%

39
3,

69
3.

42
69

5,
59

1.
06

-9
,3

40
.9

5
18

,4
92

.5
0

0.
00

0.
00

14
,0

03
.1

5
Fu

nd
: 8

01
 - 

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 C
O

U
RT

 T
RU

ST
 F

U
N

D
 S

ur
pl

us
 (D

ef
ic

it)
:

0.
00

 %
23

,3
44

.1
0

14
,0

03
.1

5

Re
po

rt
 S

ur
pl

us
 (D

ef
ic

it)
:

-3
88

,5
12

.0
5

1,
36

0,
81

7.
29

0.
00

0.
00

8,
78

2,
75

7.
36

0.
00

 %
7,

42
1,

94
0.

07
8,

78
2,

75
7.

36

3 - 27



Bu
dg

et
 R

ep
or

t
Fo

r F
is

ca
l: 

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
: 0

4/
30

/2
02

3

6
/7

/2
0
2
3
 9

:5
0
:3

8
 A

M
P
a
g
e 

2
8
 o

f 
2
8

Fu
nd

 S
um

m
ar

y
Va

ria
nc

e
Fa

vo
ra

bl
e

(U
nf

av
or

ab
le

)
Fu

nd
Cu

rr
en

t 
To

ta
l B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

20
21

-2
02

2
Ac

vi
ty

To
ta

l A
ct

iv
ity

20
22

-2
02

3
A

c
vi

ty
Ap

ril
Ac

vi
ty

10
0 

- G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

-1
46

,8
85

.2
7

61
,8

04
.0

4
0.

00
0.

00
4,

22
2,

29
8.

98
4,

36
9,

18
4.

25
4,

22
2,

29
8.

98
10

5 
- A

M
ER

IC
AN

 R
ES

CU
E 

PL
AN

 R
ES

ER
VE

 F
U

N
D

-3
,0

80
.0

0
-3

,0
80

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

-3
,0

80
.0

0
0.

00
-3

,0
80

.0
0

20
5 

- R
O

AD
 A

N
D

 S
TR

EE
T 

FU
N

D
-7

24
,2

44
.8

7
37

,0
57

.2
2

0.
00

0.
00

-3
85

,5
51

.1
7

33
8,

69
3.

70
-3

85
,5

51
.1

7
22

8 
- P

O
LI

CE
 L

EV
Y 

FU
N

D
15

3,
36

3.
63

-4
3,

38
2.

52
0.

00
0.

00
41

,1
13

.7
8

-1
12

,2
49

.8
5

41
,1

13
.7

8
22

9 
- F

IR
E 

LE
VY

 F
U

N
D

-2
32

,4
22

.5
5

-5
65

,4
65

.9
5

0.
00

0.
00

-9
7,

81
3.

38
13

4,
60

9.
17

-9
7,

81
3.

38
39

0 
- U

RB
AN

 R
EN

EW
AL

 F
U

N
D

11
2,

35
6.

01
-1

42
,6

31
.0

5
0.

00
0.

00
34

5,
06

0.
51

23
2,

70
4.

50
34

5,
06

0.
51

73
0 

- S
EW

ER
 F

U
N

D
95

9,
91

4.
19

82
,6

92
.3

6
0.

00
0.

00
1,

97
7,

06
4.

78
1,

01
7,

15
0.

59
1,

97
7,

06
4.

78
74

0 
- W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

92
0,

35
5.

38
10

1,
69

1.
68

0.
00

0.
00

1,
97

3,
39

9.
25

1,
05

3,
04

3.
87

1,
97

3,
39

9.
25

75
0 

- S
TO

RM
 W

AT
ER

 F
U

N
D

33
0,

80
1.

72
64

,3
09

.6
7

0.
00

0.
00

69
6,

26
1.

46
36

5,
45

9.
74

69
6,

26
1.

46
80

1 
- M

U
N

IC
IP

AL
 C

O
U

RT
 T

RU
ST

 F
U

N
D

-9
,3

40
.9

5
18

,4
92

.5
0

0.
00

0.
00

14
,0

03
.1

5
23

,3
44

.1
0

14
,0

03
.1

5
Re

po
rt

 S
ur

pl
us

 (D
ef

ic
it)

:
-3

88
,5

12
.0

5
1,

36
0,

81
7.

29
0.

00
0.

00
8,

78
2,

75
7.

36
7,

42
1,

94
0.

07
8,

78
2,

75
7.

36

3 - 28



4



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

04/06/2023 329 Clackamas Fire District #1 537,005.00         IGA 4th QTR Payment - Admin

04/06/2023 330 John Southgate LLC 3,600.00              Professional Fees - Admin

04/06/2023 331 Nancy McDonald 6,615.00              HR Consulting - Admin

04/06/2023 93245 American Heating Inc 475.00                 HVAC Maintenance - PW

04/06/2023 93246 Curtis, L. N. Co. 156.93                 Uniforms - PD

04/06/2023 93247 Dan Enterprises Inc. 6,349.73              Landscape Trailer - PW

04/06/2023 93248 Dustin Olson 170.50                 Training Per Diem - PD

04/06/2023 93249 Elite Window Tinting, LLC 154.00                 Vehicle Maintenance - PD

04/06/2023 93250 GC Systems 6,531.00              Valve Rebuilding - PW

04/06/2023 93251 Johnson Controls 1,573.00              Fire Alarm/Sprinkler Testing - PW

04/06/2023 93252 LancePacific LLC 135.00                 Monitoring - PW

04/06/2023 93253 League of Oregon Cities 720.00                 Training - Admin

04/06/2023 93254 Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. 1,302.40              Professional Fees - Admin

04/06/2023 93255 Northwest Success, Inc. 2,253.31              Monthly Janitorial Service - PW

04/06/2023 93256 Secure Pacific Corporation 210.00                 Monitoring - PW

04/06/2023 93257 Smith-Wagar Brucker Consulting Inc. 17,853.75            Financial Services - Admin

04/06/2023 93258 Water Environment Services 119,319.37         Water Purchases - PW

04/07/2023 93259 Landmark Ford 1,000.00              Vehicle Repair Deductible - PW

04/07/2023 93260 - 93262 UB Refunds 233.79                 UB Refunds - PW

04/07/2023 332 CIS Trust 61,780.03            Monthly Health Insurance

04/07/2023 333 HRA VEBA Plan 3,333.46              Employer VEBA contribution

04/07/2023 334 MissionSquare Retirement 5,691.48              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

04/07/2023 93263 Axa Equi-Vest 7,874.16              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

04/07/2023 93264 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,113.08              GPA Union Dues

04/07/2023 93265 Equitable 1,403.83              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

04/07/2023 93266 Equitable Financial Life Insurance Co. 86.00                   Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

04/07/2023 93267 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,121.77              AFSCME Union Dues

04/07/2023 93268 Oregon Department of Justice/Child Support 343.20                 Child Support

04/10/2023 93269 Northwest Natural Gas 2,305.03              Natural Gas Usage - All Depts

04/10/2023 93270 Portland General Electric 15,157.69            Electric Usage/Street Lights - PW

04/10/2023 93271 Verizon Wireless 2,476.32              Cell Phone Usage - All Depts

04/10/2023 335 US Bank 31,196.40            P-Card Purchases - All Depts.

04/13/2023 336 Amazon Capital Services 238.94                 Office/Easter Supplies - CT/Rec

04/13/2023 337 Amy Lindgren Law, LLC 2,800.00              Municipal Judge Contract - Ct

04/13/2023 338 BridgePay Network Solutions, LLC 213.50                 UB Online Pmt Fees - PW

04/13/2023 339 Jill Tate 495.00                 Transcription - Admin

04/13/2023 340 MSPEN Consulting, LLC 3,080.00              Grant Writing Service - Admin

04/13/2023 341 P & C Construction 73,922.00            PW Bldg Construction - Admin

04/13/2023 342 Rotator, LLC 12,150.00            Tourism/Mural Planning - Admin

04/13/2023 343 Shiels Obletz Johnsen 10,545.19            PW Bldg Management - Admin

04/13/2023 93272 911 Supply Inc. 39.98                   Uniforms - PD

04/13/2023 93273 Alla V. Allen 120.00                 Interpreting Service - CT

04/13/2023 93274 BMS Technologies 3,867.27              UB Online Pmt Fees - PW

04/13/2023 93275 Buel's Impressions Printing 44.00                   Business Card Printing - PD

04/13/2023 93276 CESSCO Inc. 3,754.80              Plate Conpact/Saw Blades - PW

04/13/2023 93277 Comcast 52.55                   Digital TV Receivers - IT

04/13/2023 93278 Destin Alvarado 175.99                 Boot Reimbursement - PW

04/13/2023 93279 Friends of Gladstone Nature Park 203.80                 Trail Marker Reimbursement - Admin

04/13/2023 93280 Gladstone Municipal Court 1,482.65              Bank Charge Reimbursement - Admin

04/13/2023 93281 Gold Wrench 613.40                 Vehicle Maintenance - PD

04/13/2023 93282 Oak Lodge Water Services 1,280.78              Water Purchases - PW

04/13/2023 93283 One Call Concepts Inc 121.80                 Utility Locates - PW

04/13/2023 93284 PACWEST Machinery LLC 5,444.05              Sweeper Maintenance - PW

04/13/2023 93285 Pamplin Media Group 2,148.00              Newsletter Printing - Admin

04/13/2023 93286 Paramount Pest Control Inc 165.00                 Pest Control - PW

04/13/2023 93287 Radar Shop 72.50                   Radar Unit Maintenance - PD

04/13/2023 93288 Rexius 4,400.00              Bark Chips for Parks - PW

04/13/2023 93289 Sign Guy 100.00                 Vehicle Maintenance - PD

CHECK REGISTER FOR APRIL 2023

4 - 1



04/13/2023 93290 Sonsray Machinery LLC 228.11                 Backhoe Maintenance - PW

04/13/2023 93291 Stark Street Lawn & Garden 20,737.02            New Mower - PW

04/13/2023 93292 Stericycle 161.46                 Shredding Service - PD

04/13/2023 93293 Stop Stick, Ltd 770.00                 Stop Sticks - PD

04/13/2023 93294 Traffic Safety Supply Co. Inc. 3,699.50              Signs/Barricades - PW

04/20/2023 344 8x8, Inc. 1,702.46              Monthly Phone Service - All Depts.

04/20/2023 345 Amazon Capital Services 178.15                 Office Supplies - Admin

04/20/2023 346 Satcom Global Ltd. 42.75                   Satellite Phone Access - PD

04/20/2023 93295 Adventist Health Medical Center 1,817.00              Physicals - Admin

04/20/2023 93296 Aramark 132.54                 Mat Rental - PW

04/20/2023 93297 Bravo Land Care & Maintenance 945.00                 Landscape Maintenance - PW

04/20/2023 93298 Cascade Form Systems 1,099.56              Envelope Printing - Admin

04/20/2023 93299 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 537.74                 First Aid Supplies/Water - All Depts

04/20/2023 93300 City of Oregon City 729.00                 GIS Services - PW

04/20/2023 93301 Clackamas Auto Parts Inc 111.71                 Vehicle Maintenance - PW

04/20/2023 93302 Clackamas County Finance Department 226,643.50         Dispatch/Library Support - PD/Admin

04/20/2023 93303 Timothy Gerkman 36.04                   Deduction Refund - Admin

04/20/2023 93304 Gold Wrench 2,260.05              Vehicle Maintenance - PD

04/20/2023 93305 Hollenbach & Hurd, Inc. 6,240.00              Sewer Lateral Rebuild - PW

04/20/2023 93306 Leeway Engineering Solutions LLC 101,837.34         I & I Project Fees - PW

04/20/2023 93307 Lori Bell 3,800.00              Professional Fees -Tourism - Admin

04/20/2023 93308 Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc. 5,505.00              Professional Fees - Code Impl - Admin

04/20/2023 93309 North Clackamas County 36,124.52            Wholesale Water - PW

04/20/2023 93310 Oregon Patrol Service 852.00                 Security Services - Admin/CT

04/20/2023 93311 Pacific Mobile Structures, Inc. 532.00                 Mobile Office Rental - PW

04/20/2023 93312 PACWEST Machinery LLC 190.00                 Sweeper Training - PW

04/20/2023 93313 Paramount Pest Control Inc 165.00                 Pest Control - PW

04/20/2023 93314 Platt Electric Supply 465.01                 Lighting Supplies - PW

04/20/2023 93315 Simplot Partners 6,058.00              Park Maintenance Supplies - PW

04/20/2023 93316 Sisul Engineering 5,550.00              Professional Fees - PW

04/20/2023 93317 SSW Consulting, LLC 451.66                 Meeting Facilitation - Admin

04/20/2023 93318 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,020.48              Gasoline - PD/PW

04/20/2023 93319 TransUnion Risk and Alternative 81.00                   Data Research - PD

04/20/2023 93320 Trio Community Meals 1,828.06              Meal Program Supplies - SC

04/20/2023 93321 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 33,588.96            Annual Software Support - Admin

04/20/2023 93322 USA Blue Book 1,210.32              Sampling Station - PW

04/27/2023 347 CIS Trust 61,780.03            Monthly Health Insurance

04/27/2023 348 HRA VEBA Plan 3,333.46              Employer VEBA contribution

04/27/2023 349 MissionSquare Retirement 8,735.76              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

04/27/2023 93323 Axa Equi-Vest 7,874.16              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

04/27/2023 93324 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,113.08              GPA Union Dues

04/27/2023 93325 Equitable 1,403.83              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

04/27/2023 93326 Equitable Financial Life Insurance Co. 86.00                   Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

04/27/2023 93327 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,121.77              AFSCME Union Dues

04/27/2023 93328 Oregon Department of Justice/Child Support 343.20                 Child Support

04/27/2023 350 3J Consulting, Inc. 12,697.92            Planning/Code Compliance - Admin/PD

04/27/2023 351 Metereaders 2,379.81              Metereading Service - PW

04/27/2023 93329 Allstream 180.80                 Land lines - PW

04/27/2023 93330 American Medical Response 200.00                 Blood Draws - PD

04/27/2023 93331 Applied Concepts Inc. 2,217.50              Lidar Unit - PD

04/27/2023 93332 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 1,469.54              Copier Leases/Usage - IT

04/27/2023 93333 Consor North America, Inc. 4,693.00              Professional Svc/Annual Rpt - Admin

04/27/2023 93334 Elite Window Tinting, LLC 229.00                 Vehicle Modification - PD

04/27/2023 93335 Ferguson Enterprises 3,728.39              Water System/Irrigation Parts - PW

04/27/2023 93336 Hach Company 154.70                 Flowmeter Data Plan - PW

04/27/2023 93337 Portland General Electric 176.16                 Electricity Usage - PW

04/27/2023 93338 Quadient Leasing USA Inc. 416.55                 Postage Meter Lease - Admin

04/27/2023 93339 SeaWestern 280.48                 Compresser Repair - PW

04/27/2023 93340 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 3,397.72              Gasoline - PD/PW

04/27/2023 93341 Traffic Safety Supply Co. Inc. 65.00                   Transfer Tape - PW

04/27/2023 93342 United States Postal Service 1,208.70              Newsletter Postage

04/27/2023 93343 Walter E. Nelson Co. 2,180.86              Park Maintenance Supplies - PW

4 - 2



Total General Fund Checks: 1,558,869.79$    

Urban Renewal Fund Checks: -                       

Total April 2023 Checks: 1,558,869.79$    

4 - 3





5



Attorneys: July, 2022 Aug, 2022 Sept, 2022 Oct, 2022 Nov, 2022 Dec, 2022 Totals

City Charter -$                 -$               -$               -$                -$               -$               -$                 
Elections -                   725.06           427.50           -                  -                 -                 1,152.56          
Finance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    
General 570.00             285.00           484.50           1,657.80         -                 87.20             3,084.50          
          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    
Governance/City Council 399.00             484.50           57.00             714.60            285.00           138.50           2,078.60          
          Meeting Attendance 399.00             959.50           541.50           1,045.00         1,624.50        1,102.00       5,671.50          
Intergovernmental 85.50               -                 85.50             142.50            28.50             -                 342.00             
          Meeting Attendance -                   228.00           -                 -                  -                 -                 228.00             
Land Use/ Community Development -                   798.00           2,793.00       4,122.25         285.00           2,109.00       10,107.25        
          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    
Parks & Recreation -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    
Personnel/Labor -                    
          GPA 57.00               1,813.00       2,014.50       2,808.25         2,695.30        570.00           9,958.05          
         City Administration 513.00             802.10           494.76           646.00            484.50           -                 2,940.36          
          Personnel Handbook -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    
          Meeting Attendance -                   2,356.00       -                 -                  -                 -                 2,356.00          
Public Records & Meetings 142.50             284.00           -                 -                  -                 28.50             455.00             
Public Safety 57.00               2,481.04       28.50             1,415.90         606.00           281.00           4,869.44          
Public Works 997.50             57.00             790.00           861.66            142.50           1,111.50       3,960.16          

Public Works Facility Project 973.49             1,503.50       1,681.50       -                  -                 28.50             4,186.99          
Real Property Transactions -                   -                 171.00           -                  -                 -                 171.00             
Risk Management/Litigation -                   285.00           -                 -                  -                 -                 285.00             
Rights of Way-Telecommunications -                   -                 -                 -                  2,437.50        -                 2,437.50          
Urban Renewal -                   -                 -                 -                  -                 -                 -                    

Total 4,193.99$       13,061.70$   9,569.26$     13,413.96$    8,588.80$     5,456.20$     54,283.91$     

ATTORNEY CHARGES

Attorneys: Jan, 2023 Feb, 2023 Mar, 2023 Apr, 2023 May, 2023 June, 2023
Totals for

 Year

City Charter -$                 -$               -$               -$                 
Elections -                   -                 -                 1,152.56          
Finance -                   -                 -                 -                    
General 549.00             114.00           142.50           3,890.00          
          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                    
Governance/City Council 802.50             370.50           342.00           3,593.60          
          Meeting Attendance 3,457.72         655.50           1,329.86       11,114.58        
Intergovernmental -                   -                 -                 342.00             
         Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 228.00             
Land Use/ Community Development 723.01             1,054.65       1,197.00       13,081.91        
          Meeting Attendance -                   855.00           484.50           1,339.50          
Parks & Recreation 342.00             -                 171.00           513.00             
Personnel/Labor -                 -                    
          GPA 456.00             -                 -                 10,414.05        
         City Administration -                   -                 -                 2,940.36          
          Personnel Handbook -                   -                 -                 -                    
          Meeting Attendance 731.36             -                 -                 3,087.36          
Public Records & Meetings -                   57.00             -                 512.00             
Public Safety 116.10             -                 -                 4,985.54          
Public Works 3,324.86         3,148.83       1,083.00       11,516.85        

Public Works Facility Project 171.00             1,026.00       -                 5,383.99          
Real Property Transactions -                   -                 -                 171.00             
Risk Management/Litigation 228.00             -                 -                 513.00             
Rights of Way-Telecommunications 2,875.00         -                 4,000.00       9,312.50          
Urban Renewal -                   -                    

Total 13,776.55$     7,281.48$     8,749.86$     -$                -$               -$               84,091.80$     

5 - 1





6



 

Public Works 
 

Staff Report for   

May 2023 
 

       Report Date : June 5, 2023 
To : Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator 

Copy : Mayor and City Council 
From : Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director 

 

 

 

PARKS:  

 Trash pick-up in all parks two days a week.  

 Park irrigation has been turned on and repaired where needed. 

 Mowing parks weekly, Meldrum’s main field is being mowed twice a week.  

 Splash Pad being serviced, repairs being made to prepare for the opening in June. 

 Drinking fountains at our local parks have been turned on for the summer season. 

 Graffiti clean-up continues on a regular basis in our parks and public areas.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 - 1



 

 

 

 

Dierickx Park is a busy place this time of year with 

baseball and softball games almost nightly.  Staff 

preps the fields prior to daily games for our local youth 

organizations.  Crews prep fields at both Dierickx and 

Meldrum Bar throughout the baseball and softball 

season.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

In an effort to reduce the amount of garbage that makes its 

way into our local rivers, staff recently installed garbage 

cans with tethers at High Rocks Park. We hope that these 

garbage cans will be used for the intended use not thrown 

into the river while reducing the amount of garbage on the 

banks of the river.    Portable restrooms have been added to 

High Rocks Park, these are also chained to the fencing at 

the upper end of the park.  

 

 

 

STREETS: 
 

This time of year, you will see the Streets crew out 

prepping our roadways for upcoming projects such as 

our Asphalt Repair Project and our Annual Slurry Seal 

Project.  Crews are working to fill potholes, crack 

sealing in various areas in town for these upcoming 

projects.   

 

We encourage residents to contact the Public Works 

Dept. to report potholes, crews work to fill potholes and 

address these matters quickly.   

 

 

  

 

6 - 2



 

 

FACILITIES:  

  

• Twice a month Facility Inspections “Ongoing” 

• Fire Department Exterior Wall Prepped for Painting. The now 

exterior wall that was shared by the old City Hall building has 

since been repaired and prepped to be painted to match the 

rest of the fire department building.  

• Security Cameras Serviced and Cleared of Debris.  Public 

Works assisted IT with the removal of water located inside the 

facilities security cameras and the clearing of foliage and debris 

that was blocking line of sight.  

• New AED Devices have been installed in all City facilities with 

the required signage. 

 
 

 

Recently staff had to address an ongoing matter at the 

Senior Center with a toilet that has been being clogged 

due to non-flushable items.  The single use restroom at the 

Senior Center has been plagued with regular back-ups due 

to these items being forcibly flushed down the toilet.  

Facilities staff attempted to “snake” and CCTV the lateral 

but were unsuccessful.   Mr. Rooter was brought in to 

Hydro Jet the lateral.  They were able to bust through the 

blockage and remove the non-flushable items from the 

sewer lateral.   

 

 

 

WATER: 
 

• Read and reported Master Meter reads weekly. 

• Change Charts at Webster Pump Station weekly. 

• Test Chlorine Residuals at least 2 times per week. 

• Routine Water Samples as required. 

• Water Department work orders for misc. customer requests and identified leak repairs. 

• Door Hangers and water meter shut offs for non-payment   

• Performed Maintenance on fire Hydrants with the help of a representative from Waterous; hydrant maintenance 
is still on going. 

• Valve Box inspections; inspecting every valve in the City system. 

• Daily locates, citywide. 

 

6 - 3



 

 

 

Water crews came across a broken 

fire hydrant at the intersection of 

Columbia and 82nd Dr.  There was 

no reports of this hydrant being 

damaged in an vehicle accident, but 

crews will be making the repairs 

soon.  The hydrant performed, as it 

should with an impact, by separating 

from the “break-a-way coupling”. 

 

 

The Water crew repaired a water leak at 335 Patricia Drive, using the vactor truck to hydro-excavate the site, 

crews were able to make a timely repair on this dual service line.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
6 - 4



 

 

SEWER: 
 

• Going through camera footages of the city’s sewer system to identify issues that need to be addressed. 

• Continuing to correct the sewer mapping system on GIS and performing map investigations 

• Call out for a Sewer backup at Gladstone Toyota. (pics) 

• Investigated Sewer back up at 20105 Mcloughlin Blvd 

• Cleaned Sewer Hotspots 

 

 

 

 

Sewer crews responded to a sewer backup at Gladstone 

Toyota, to assist in the investigation crews used red dye to 

verify that the lines were running clear on the City side.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STORM:  

 

• Street Sweeping as per monthly schedule  

• Mucked out the pipe outfall to the Risley ditch and cleaned the storm line with the vactor jet truck. (Pic) 

• Investigated and cleaned the storm system at Barbary Place due to the over capacity during the rain storm 

• Investigated storm line issue at Gladstone Nissan due to flooding. Investigation is on going 

• Clean catch Basins as per NPDES permit  

• Ongoing maintenance on the city’s outfalls/open ditches before during and after rain events.  

• Maintained Public works yard basin and structures quarterly and as needed 

• Reconstructed Public works decant facility for better operations 

• Regular updates and corrections to the storm system mapping on GIS and performing map investigations 

 

 

  

 

 6 - 5



 

 

Gladstone was hit with a severe rain event which caused flooding at several 

areas of town, while our system worked as it should, it was simply over 

capacity with the amount of rain that fell in a very short time period.   

Risley Ave. was flooded due to the Risley ditch being over capacity; being a 

natural area it took longer for the waters to recede.  

 

 

 
 
 
Community partnerships with The Lower Columbia Estuary Partnership conducted five student field trip cleanup 
events at Meldrum Bar Park. Students participated in blackberry removal, water quality sampling and educational 
canoe trips. Over 150 students and 25 volunteers attended the event and removed 5 yards of blackberries. 
 
 
SOLVE completed a trash cleanup event at 
Meldrum Bar Park, which was sponsored by 
Clackamas County Water Environment Services. 
21 volunteers removed 837 lbs. of trash. These 
volunteer efforts make a huge difference in our park 
system. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 - 6



 

SAFETY TRAINING:  

Public Works had two safety meetings this month 

 

• Monthly Safety Meeting # 1 – Confined Space 

Entry (CSE) Training.  Ritz Safety provided 

classroom and field training for our annual CSE 

Training.  

• Monthly Safety Meeting # 2– Heat Stress in the 

Workplace.  Zeb Sowers did a presentation on the 

signs and symptoms of heat stress.  

Crewmembers got a refresher on how to prevent 

heat related illness and signs to look fort in 

preparation for summer weather.  

 

ADMINISTRATION: 
   

• Tentative agreement reached between Oaklodge Water and the City of Gladstone for water and wastewater services. 

• Reviewing 100% drawings for the I & I Phase 1 and 2 project.  RFP to follow. 

• Working on completing Gladstone’s Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdiction Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan Addendum. 

• Planning and site work for the Oatfield Rd at E. Hereford St water system pressure reducing valve replacement. 

• Worked on completing stormwater MS4 Permit required items per stormwater matrix schedule. 

• Working with the Clackamas County Co-permittee group to complete an MS4 Permit modification with DEQ to reduce 

pesticide-monitoring frequency requirements.  

• Working with the Clackamas WES design team to coordinate planning for possible Gladstone utility relocations on 

82nd Drive to allow for installation of 30” WES sanitary piping. 

• Conducting design review for the Gladstone Library project and Webster Ridge Parking Extension Project 

• Working with Clackamas County WES to develop a scope of work and IGA for WES to perform MS4 Permit required 

stormwater sampling and lab work on the City’s behalf.  

• Pre-Construction Meeting with contractor for the Webster/Cason Crossing Project.  Mobilization starting June 6th with 

construction beginning the week of June 12th. 

• Working with Backflow Management Inc. (BMI) on the City’s water system 2022 Consumer Confidence Report. 

• Working with the Clackamas WES design team to coordinate planning for possible Gladstone utility relocations 
on 82nd Drive to allow for installation of 30” WES sanitary piping. 

• Working with Clackamas County WES to develop a scope of work and IGA for WES to perform MS4 Permit 
required stormwater sampling and lab work on the City’s behalf.  

• Working with North Clackamas Watersheds Council to coordinate May-October temperature monitoring on 
Rinearson Creek adjacent to the Olsen Wetlands and at Meldrum Bar Park. 

• Participated in a Clackamas River Spill Committee table to exercise. 

• Attended a Clackamas County WES Cleanwater Exchange Group meeting. 

• Attended a Clackamas River Water Providers work session. 

• Attended an EPA Cyber Security Webinar. 

• Attended a Regional Water Providers Consortium Emergency Planning Committee meeting. 

• Attended a Clackamas County Stormwater Co-permittee meeting. 

• Hosted a Webster Road and Cason Road Pedestrian Crossing Project pre-construction meeting. 
6 - 7



6 - 8



6 - 9



6 - 10



6 - 11



6 - 12



6 - 13



6 - 14



6 - 15



6 - 16



6 - 17



6 - 18



6 - 19



6 - 20



6 - 21



6 - 22



6 - 23



6 - 24



6 - 25



6 - 26



6 - 27



 

City of Gladstone Monthly Planning Report 

May 2023 
PUBLIC CONTACTS/PLANNING ACTIONS 

 

CUSTOMER 
CONTACT/ 

 

Jan 

 

Feb 

 

Mar 

 
April 

 
May 

 
June 

 
July 

 
Aug 

 
Sept 

 
Oct 

 
Nov 

 
Dec 

YEAR-
TO-DATE 

TOTALS Planning 
Actions 

Customer 
Service 
Counter 
Contacts 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

Customer 
phone/email 
Contacts 

 
48 

 
37 

 
31 

 
43 

 
34 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

193 

Building 
Permits with 
Land Use 
Review 

 

4 

 

6 

 

2 

 

4 

 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

24 

Code 
Compliance 
Review 

1 1 1 0 0        3 

Pre-application 
Conferences 

1 0 1 0 0        2 

Administrative 
Decisions 

2 2 0 0 0        4 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 No Planning Commission in May 
 

CITY COUNCIL LAND USE ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 No Land Use Actions at Council in May 

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCES 

 None held in May

6 - 28



ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS 

▪ None in May 2023 
 

BUILDING PERMITS WITH LAND USE REVIEW 

  DECEMBER  

Date Address Building 

Permit # 

Description 

    

05/05/23 18595 Portland Ave G0000623 Public Works Building- Grading Permit 

05/05/23 18595 Portland Ave B0203923 Public Works Building- Bldg Permit 

05/08/23 525 Landon Street B0182423 Replace Retaining Wall 

05/08/23 19405 McLoughlin Blvd B0194023 Mazda of Gladstone- Bldg Permit 

(not approved- conditions of 

approval not met) 

05/08/23 17445 Via Del Verde Dr B0229523 Remodel of existing single-residential 

home 

05/10/23 
430 E Fairfield St 

B0655022 Back Patio Canopy Replacement 

05/23/23 
16711 SE Valley View Rd 

B0234323 Valley View Reservoirs Fall 

Protection Improvements (Railing) 

05/23/23 
275 W Ipwich St 

B0210923 Addition of 3 dwelling units resulting 

in quadplex at full build-out 
 

FUTURE ITEMS/PROPERTY UPDATES 
 

Date Topic 

June 

 

MR (Multi-Household Residential Zoning District) Updates 

Oregon Convention- Canopy Cover 

Wong’s Building Supply 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 

6 - 29

heathera
Rectangle



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM MAY 2023 
 

General Court Information from May 2023 
 

 69 traffic citations filed  
 109 violations disposed 
 10 misdemeanors filed  
 9 misdemeanors disposed 
 18 payment agreements entered 
 24 warrants were issued 
 43 payment reminders were mailed to defendants 
 35 driver’s licenses were requested suspended  
 17 driver’s licenses were released 
 28 violations were sent to collections 
 18 cases were sent to the Department of Revenue 
 1 Jury trial was held 
 $37,620.00 in violation fees assessed 
 $25,258.81 in violation fees paid 
 $5,293.92 in misdemeanor fees assessed 
 $8,143.54 in misdemeanor fees paid 
 $1,279.79 collection with Department of Revenue 
 $8,880.23 collected with The Western Agency  

 

 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

21
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

22
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

23
 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
1 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
3 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
21

 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
22

 

M
Isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
23

 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

1 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

2 

M
Isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

3 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
21

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
22

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
23

 

Jan 96 78 120 197 97 132 6 2 2 14 3 10 3 0 1 
Feb 49 86 64 117 115 173 5 13 9 8 8 6 2 0 1 
Mar 157 62 129 87 122 92 6 3 3 10 8 6 3 1 21 
Apr 107 118 84 137 93 166 6 13 8 6 2 8 8 3 4 
May 92 76 69 173 189 109 5 4 10 6 9 9 9 40 14 
Jun 177 118  93 150  5 13  7 8  49 13  
Jul 146 42  254 160  21 2  4 9  45 61  
Aug 101 37  199 111  7 16  10 12  19 21  
Sep 127 35  144 76  7 5  7 8  12 5  
Oct 55 37  199 32  2 4  10 3  4 5  
Nov 70 67  87 64  8 4  3 9  8 2  
Dec 55 99  85 62  0 4  7 3  1 0  
Total 1232 855 397 1772 1271 563 78 83 22  92 82 30 163 151 27 

 
 
 

6 - 30



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM MAY 2023 
 

TRAFFIC FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 
 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

21
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
1 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

Pa
id

 2
02

3 

Jan 51,046.00 35,192.50 39,830.00 16,230.42 18,573.88 24,445.59 
Feb 31,940.00 30,750.00 58,120.00 32,689.75 25,724.67 19,848.78 
Mar 22,844.00 33,126.10 22,835.00 16,401.78 36,100.00 21,799.95 
Apr 39,964.84 28,805.00 50,087.50 40,979.85 26,349.01 45,057.40 
May 50,745.00 57,275.00 37,620.00 22,791.29 27,039.72 25,258.81 
Jun 28,460.00 38,788.00  23,934.76 42,927.32  
July 22,818.60 51,636.25  43,103.86 24,562.98  
Aug 53,950.00 28,160.00  26,648.20 25,312.14  
Sept 44,225.00 31,143.00  25,539.13 23,137.49  
Oct 47,026.00 24,148.77  28,491.79 9,505.00  
Nov 26,505.00 17,975.00  21,086.93 20,958.48  
Dec 30,290.00 16,775.00  17,573.05 28,268.41  
       
Total $449,814.44 $393,774.62 $208,492.50 $315,470.81 $308,459.10 $136,410.53 

 
MISDEAMNOR FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 P
ai

d 
20

23
 

 

Jan 13,698.48 2,136.00 14,109.00 7,346.08 3,771.92 2,944.52 
Feb 5,511.00 6,511.00 10,168.00 5,267.95 10,412.41 5,025.10 
Mar 4,308.00 5,831.62 6,775.00 10,012.54 6,955.75 4,709.73 
Apr 4,128.28 963.00 12,564.00 14,939.91 6,962.43 10,229.69 
May 4,737.00 7,062.00 5,293.92 5,646.16 1,841.15 8,143.54 
Jun 9,960.01 7,183.00  5.179.63 9,152.68  
July 4,381.00 7,921.38  6,741.67 3,411.36  
Aug 14,716.00 8,991.00  10,463.60 2,149.64  
Sept 30,584.00 6,868.00  6,507.01 2,668.68  
Oct 5,546.00 4,155.73  9,914.75 6,588.00  
Nov 5,463.00 8,535.00  5,557.93 3,654.71  
Dec 3,786.00 2,580.00  1,834.12 2,552.88  
       
Total $106,818.77 $68,737.73 $48,909.92 $89,411.35 $60,121.61 $31,052.58 

 

6 - 31



1   Senior Center May Monthly Report 
 

Monthly Report Date: MAY 2023 

To:  City Administrator, Jacque Betz 

From:  Community Services Manager, Tiffany Kirkpatrick, MA 

 

Current Staffing:  1.) Full-time Manager   2.) Full-time Office/Program Assistant II.   3.) Full-time Temporary 

Nutrition Assistant     4.) 25hr/wk Tram Driver 

Services we provide; 

The center captured 47 Info and Assistance calls coming in about inquiries regarding 

program/service needs, transportation, follow-up etc. 

The center handled _75_ reassurance calls out into the community to assist participants, gather 

resource info to assist, follow-up with other organizations/businesses that provide services. As well as 

5 case management, calls to direct plan, support and assist our senior participants navigate the system. 

We held 2 Multigenerational activities at lunchtime with over 50 children from John Wetten 

Elementary school in May 2023. 

Guest Attendance 

Total number of participants/guests, 964 this month 

New monthly rental: NW Mental Health group will be rental our Planton Community room monthly 

Rented the center for 2 events in May 

Food Program/Home Deliveries and Volunteers 

The center continues to have a highly active volunteer staff who have helped us serve food in and out of the 

center. A total of 381 in-dining meals were served to our guests/participants. 

We delivered_1916 Homebound meals to Gladstone community members. 

Over the month, 160 food boxes were sourced, prepped, and delivered. 

We reported 645.75 volunteer hours over the month, and 1 new volunteers. 

We total 108 active volunteers. 

Revenue from Meals in May: $362 homebound   $844.32 congregate meals with donation funds 

 

6 - 32



2   Senior Center May Monthly Report 
 

The Senior Advisory Board spent many hours working on how to discuss and share the work to rename the 

center, in the community, to the Council in work session in May. Each meeting was a team effort, and we all 

approached this process with a great deal of professionalism. We are proud of moving this topic further along. 

We await the June meeting for final consideration of the rename change.  

 
May Highlighted requesting our interior painting project funding, signing contracts to fulfill the Kitchen 

Modernization project, acquiring assistive equipment for our new van, finalizing needed software data 

(Myseniorcenter.com) programming for the center, as well as working with the Senior Advisory Board to 

formalize the renaming of the center.  May was FULL. We still managed to hold Lunch and Learn sessions at 

least 2x/month with Humana- Medicare options, Music History by a local retire DJ, Long Term Care planning 

sessions, and Footcare clinics. We had quite a few volunteers out on vacations and/or sick time away. We 

continued to manage getting fresh groceries weekly to the more vulnerable, and hot meals daily along with 

our 3x/week congregate meal service.  

The center continues to offer a wonderful Friday adventure tram experience and it’s typical sold out of seats 

by the 2nd week of the month. Thanks to our tram driver; Michelle McIntire 

Rotary Community Bingo – held another successful and very fun community bingo at the center. Less than 

100 participants of the community led to a decision to hold off on in BINGO for the summer months. 

GEMS met and discussed water access and information in times of emergency. We planned a free training 

session at the end of June on Fire Prevention for the community to attend at the center by the Clackamas Fire 

Dept.  Nutrition program Kitchen Modernization- A contract and details of selections by American Legacy 

Home + Construction LLC, were confirmed for June.  

Gladstone Senior Foundation A contract between the Foundation and Str8EDgePainting Inc. Jerry Hancock–

and color commitment was made and will begin the first week of June. 

 

6 - 33





7



 

Page 1  Staff Report – Slurry Seal – Blackline, Inc. 
 
M:\CITY COUNCIL\CY 2022\Staff Reports - Action Items 

City of Gladstone 
Staff Report 

              
 
Report Date : June 5, 2023  
Meeting Date :  June 13, 2023 
To :    Jacque Betz, City Administrator 
  Mayor and City Council  
From : Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director  
   
       
AGENDA ITEM 
 
 

Approve a public improvement contract for 2023 Pavement Management Program Slurry Seal 
project between the City of Gladstone and Blackline Inc. 
 
History/Background 
 
 

The City has a responsibility to maintain our public infrastructure and to perform preventative 
maintenance work to prolong the quality of our streets.  In a cooperative procurement action, the City 
of Hillsboro solicited for multi-city pavement management bids, Blackline Inc., was awarded the 
contract through this procurement process.  The City of Gladstone is responsible to approve its own 
contract with Blackline Inc. as part of the procurement process.  
 
Cost Impact:   
 
 

The cost to complete the work is $110,187.30 staff recommends adding 10% contingency 
($11,018.73) for a total amount not to exceed $121,206.03. This project will be funded from the 
budgeted Operations, Maintenance, and Repairs in the Street fund.     
 
Proposal: 
 
 

Staff proposes the Council approve the award of the bid as stated in the contract.   A copy of the 
contract and general conditions are attached.  Attachment A, is the bid results from the City of 
Hillsboro’s RFP process and Attachment B is the map of Gladstone streets which are included in the 
Slurry Seal Project.   
  
Options:  

 
Option 1:  Approve the award of the bid to Blackline, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 

$121,206.03.    
Option 2:   Do not approve the award of the bid to Blackline, Inc. and decide not to proceed 
 with the slurry seal project.   

7 - 1



7 - 2



 

7 - 3



E
xh

ib
it 
B

7 - 4



Gladstone, Oregon  2022 Slurry Seal Project/COG/Blackline  

 Page - 1 

        
 
 

 
 

 
Public Improvement Contract 

 

Contract No.  City of Gladstone 2023 Pavement Management Program Slurry Seal 
 
 

 

Contractor Information: 
 
Business Name: Blackline, Inc.  
 
Contractor Contact/ Project Manager: Cody Lorenzen, Blackline, Inc.  
 
Address:  2425 NW St. Helens Rd. Portland, OR 97210 
 
Phone Number:  503.228.4321 (business) 509.218.1221(Cell)   
 
Email:  Cody@blacklineinc.net   
 
Federal Tax ID Number:  94-2270766 Oregon CCB Number:  66384     Metro License #:  8570 
   
This Public Improvement Contract (“Contract”) is made by the City of Gladstone, Oregon and Blackline, 
Inc.(“Contractor”) to provide construction services on the following: 
 
The parties agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1 – WORK 
 
1.01 Contractor will complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents or reasonably 

inferable as necessary to produce the results intended by the Contract Documents.  The Work is 
generally described as follows: Perform all work associated with slurry seal process as described in 
original solicitation and as per Attachments and Exhibits attached. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 
 
2.01 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is 

generally described as follows: Furnish all labor, equipment and material required to complete the 
preparation and placement of asphalt emulsion slurry seal, including striping and associated work 
within the City of Gladstone.  

 
ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER/PM 
 
3.01 The Project has been designed by The City of Gladstone Public Works Department.  The Owner may 

designate a Project Manager to act as the Owner’s representative and assist Owner in managing the 
Project. 

7 - 5



Gladstone, Oregon  2022 Slurry Seal Project/COG/Blackline  

 Page - 2 

 
a. The City’s Representative is:  Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director 
b. Contractors Representative is:  Cody Lorenzen, Blackline, Inc. 
c. A party may change its designated representative upon 30 days written notice to the other party.

  
 
ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 
 
4.01 Time is of the essence and all time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion 

and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the 
Contract. 

 
4.02 Unless Owner otherwise agrees in writing and in conformance with the General Conditions, Contractor 

will abide by the following Contract and “Work” Time Dates: 
 
Contract and “Work” Time Dates: 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Contract Start Date:   XXXXXX,  2023 

                
Anticipated Start Date:     XXXXXXX, 2023 
Anticipated Final Completion Date: XXXXXXX, 2023 

 
 
ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 
 
5.01 Owner will pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents an 

amount in current funds equal to a Lump Sum that is not to exceed: $121,206.03 (includes a 10% 
contingency). All specific cash allowances are included in this price and have been computed in 
accordance with the General Conditions. 

 
ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES  
 
6.01  Contractor shall submit and Owner will process Applications for Payment in accordance with the 

General Conditions.  
 
ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 
 
7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in the General Conditions will bear interest at the rate 

specified in ORS 279C.570. 
 
ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS  
 
8.01  In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations:  
 
A.  Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other related data 

identified in the Solicitation Documents or other Owner-furnished documents, if any.  
 

B.  Contractor has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to its general condition.  
 
C.  Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that 

7 - 6



Gladstone, Oregon  2022 Slurry Seal Project/COG/Blackline  

 Page - 3 

may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.  
 
D.  Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or 

contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface 
structures at or contiguous to the Site (except Underground Facilities), if any, that have been identified 
in the Contract Documents; and (2) reports and drawings of Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions.  

 
E.  Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for doing so) all additional or 

supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning 
conditions (surface, subsurface and underground facilities) at or contiguous to the Site that may affect 
cost, progress or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures or construction to be employed by Contractor, including any 
specific means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction expressly required by 
the Contract Documents, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto. 

 
 
F.  Contractor does not consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or 

data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, 
and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.  

 
G.  Contractor is aware of the general nature of other work, if any, to be performed by Owner and others at 

the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.  
 
H. Contractor has correlated the information known to Contractor, information and observations obtained 

from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, and all additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data with the Contract Documents. 

 
I.  Contractor has given Owner written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that 

Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and their written resolution, if any, is acceptable 
to Contractor.  

 
J.  The Contract Documents are sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and 

conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.  
 
ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS  
 
9.01  The Contract Documents are specifically defined in the General Conditions.  The “General Conditions 

for Small Public Improvement Contract are attached and incorporated into this Contract by reference.  
Without limiting the definition of the Contract Documents, for the purposes of this Contract, the Contract 
Documents include: (1) the Contractor’s Bid is that document dated March 9, 2022 titled “City of 
Hillsboro Invitation to Bid No. 202201-10002” and signed by Cody Lorenzen, President of Blackline, 
Inc. 

 
 
9.02  The documents listed in the definition of Contract Documents are deemed attached to this Contract and 

are incorporated by reference.  
 
  Exhibit “A” Schedule “B”, Slurry Seals ITB: 202302-10005 
  Exhibit B   Gladstone Map of Included Streets 

7 - 7



Gladstone, Oregon  2022 Slurry Seal Project/COG/Blackline  

 Page - 4 

    
ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEOUS 
 
10.01 Capitalized terms used in this Contract have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the 

Supplementary Conditions, if any. 
 
10.02 No assignment, delegation, novation or any other transfer by either party of any rights or obligations 

under or interests in the Contract will be binding on the other without the written consent of the party 
sought to be bound.  Specifically, but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that 
are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this 
restriction may be limited by law) and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to 
an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility 
under the Contract. 

 
10.03 Each party binds itself, its directors, partners, successors, and assigns to the other party, its directors, 

partners, successors and assigns in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in 
the Contract. 

 
10.04 Any provision or part of the Contract held to be void or unenforceable under any law or regulation will 

be deemed stricken.  All remaining provisions will continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and 
Contractor, who agree that the Contract will be reformed to replace the stricken provision or part with a 
valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision.  

 
10.05 This Contract is the final written expression of all of the terms of the Contract and is the complete and 

exclusive statement of those terms.  Any and all representations, promises, warranties, or statements 
by Contractor or Contractor’s agents that differ in any way from the terms of this written agreement 
shall be given no force and effect.  This Contract will not be construed against its drafter. 

 
 

 
SIGNED: 
 
 
OWNER      CONTRACTOR 
City of Gladstone, Oregon    Blackline, Inc.  
 
__________________________________     _________________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
Jacque Betz      Cody Lorenzen                        
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Date       Date  

7 - 8



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 

 - 1 - 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR 

SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 

 

TABLE OF SECTIONS 

 

 
SECTION A 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
A.2 SCOPE OF WORK 
A.3 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
A.4 INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS 
A.5 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
 AND SITE 
A.6 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 
A.7 RETIREMENT SYSTEM STATUS 
A.8 GOVERNMENT EMPLOYMENT STATUS 
 
SECTION B 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 
 
B.1 CONTRACTOR'S MITIGATION OF IMPACTS 
B.2 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 
B.3 PERMITS 
B.4 COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS 
B.5 SUPERINTENDENCE 
B.6 INSPECTION 
B.7 SEVERABILITY 
B.8 ACCESS TO RECORDS 
B.9 WAIVER 
B.10 ASSIGNMENTS/SUBCONTRACT 
B.11 SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
B.12 OWNER'S RIGHT TO DO WORK 
B.13 OTHER CONTRACTS 
B.14  GOVERNING LAW 
B.15  ALLOWANCES 
B.16  SUBMITTALS, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA 

AND SAMPLES 
B.17  SUBSTITUTIONS 
B.18  USE OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
B.19  FUNDS AVAILABLE AND AUTHORIZED 
B.20   NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
SECTION C 
WAGES AND LABOR 
 
C.1 MINIMUM WAGES RATES ON PUBLIC WORKS 
C.2 PAYROLL CERTIFICATION, FEE REQUIREMENTS 

AND PUBLIC WORKS BOND  
C.3 PROMPT PAYMENT AND CONTRACT CONDITIONS 
C.4 PAYMENT FOR MEDICAL CARE 
C.5 HOURS OF LABOR 
 
SECTION D 
CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 
D.1 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
D.2 DELAYS 
D.3 CLAIMS REVIEW PROCESS AND DISPUTE 

RESOLUTION 
 
SECTION E 
PAYMENTS 
 
E.1 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
E.2 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 
E.3 PAYROLL CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENT 

E.4 RETAINAGE 
E.5 FINAL PAYMENT 
 
SECTION F 
JOB SITE CONDITIONS 
 
F.1 USE OF PREMISES 
F.2 PROTECTION OF WORKERS, PROPERTY  
 AND THE PUBLIC 
F.3 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
F.4 CLEANING UP 
F.5 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION 
F.6 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEAN-UP 
F.7 FORCE MAJEURE 
 
SECTION G 
BONDING AND INSURANCE 
 
G.1 PERFORMANCE SECURITY 
G.2 INSURANCE 
 
SECTION H 
SCHEDULE OF WORK 
 
H.1 CONTRACT PERIOD 
H.2 SCHEDULE 
 
SECTION I 
CORRECTION OF WORK 
 
I.1 CORRECTIONS OF WORK BEFORE FINAL  
 PAYMENT 
I.2 WARRANTY WORK 
 
SECTION J 
SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF THE WORK 
 
J.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK 
J.2 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
J.3 COMPENSATION FOR SUSPENSION 
J.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT 
J.5 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
J.6 ACTION UPON TERMINATION 
 
SECTION K 
CONTRACT CLOSE-OUT 
 
K.1 RECORD DRAWINGS 
K.2 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS 
K.3 RELEASE OF LIENS AND CLAIMS 
K.4 NOTICES 
K.5 TRAINING 
K.6 EXTRA MATERIALS 
K.7 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEAN-UP 
K.8 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 
K.9 OTHER CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
 
SECTION L 
LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY 
TO THE PUBLIC 
L.1 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED 

7 - 9



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 

 - 2 - 

L.2 FEDERAL AGENCIES 
L.3 STATE AGENCIES 

L.4 LOCAL AGENCIES 

7 - 10



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 

 - 3 - 

 
STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACTS (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 

SECTION A 
 

 
A.1  DEFINITIONS 
 
In the Contract Documents the following terms shall be as 
defined below: 
 
ARCHITECT/ENGINEER, means the Person appointed by 
the Owner to make drawings and specifications and to 
provide contract administration of the Work contemplated by 
the Contract. 
 
BID, means a competitive offer, which is binding on the 
offerer, in which price, delivery (or Project completion), and 
conformance to specification and the requirements of the 
Invitation to Bid will be the predominant award criteria.  
Depending on the solicitation procedure used, a “bid” may 
also be a “proposal.”  For the purposes of the Contract 
Documents, the terms “bid,” “proposal” and “offer” are 
synonymous. 
 
BIDDER, means the Person who submits a Bid in response 
to the Owner's Solicitation Document. 
 
CLAIM, means a resubmitted change request which has 
been previously denied by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative. 
 
CONTRACT, means the written agreement between the 
Owner and the Contractor describing the Work to be done 
and the obligations between the parties. 
 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, means the Solicitation 
Document and addenda thereto, Instructions to Bidders or 
Proposers, General Conditions, Supplemental General 
Conditions, if any, accepted Bid, the Contract and 
amendments thereto, if any, performance bond, Plans, 
Specifications, approved shop drawings, and approved 
change orders. 
 
CONTRACT PERIOD, as set forth in the Contract 
Documents, means the period beginning with the issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed and concluding upon Final 
Completion. 
 
CONTRACT PRICE, means the total of the awarded bid 
amount, as increased or decreased by the price of approved 
alternates and change orders. 
 
CONTRACTOR, means the Person awarded the Contract 
for the Work contemplated. 
 
DAYS, are calendar days, including weekdays, weekends 
and holidays, unless otherwise specified. 
 
DIRECT COSTS, means, unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents, the cost of materials, including sales 
tax, cost of delivery; cost of labor, including social security, 
old age and unemployment insurance, and fringe benefits 
required by agreement or custom; worker's compensation 
insurance; bond premiums, rental cost of equipment, and 
machinery; and the additional costs of field personnel 
directly attributable to the Work. 
 
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, as defined 
in ORS 200.005, means a small business concern which is 

at least 51 percent owned by one or more socially and 
economically disadvantaged individuals, or, in the case of 
any corporation, at least 51 percent of the stock of which is 
owned by one or more socially disadvantaged individuals 
and whose management and daily business operations are 
controlled by one or more of the socially and economically 
disadvantaged individuals who own it. 
 
ECONOMICALLY DISADVANTAGED INDIVIDUAL, as 
defined in ORS 200.005, means an individual who is socially 
disadvantaged and whose ability to compete in the free 
enterprise system has been impaired due to diminished 
capital and credit opportunities as compared to another in 
the same business area who is not socially disadvantaged. 
 
EMERGING SMALL BUSINESS, means (a) a business with 
its principal place of business located in this state; (b) a 
business with average annual gross receipts over the last 
three years not exceeding $1 million for construction firms 
and $300,000 for non-construction firms; (c) a business 
which has fewer than 20 employees; (d) an independent 
business; (e) a business properly licensed and legally 
registered in this state, and (f) a business certified by the 
Office of Minority, Women and Emerging Small Business. 
 
FINAL COMPLETION, means the final completion of all 
requirements under the Contract, including Contract 
Closeout as described in Section K but excluding Warranty 
Work as described in Section I.2, and the final payment and 
release of all retainage, if any, released. 
 
FORCE MAJEURE, means an act, event, happening, or 
occurrence of the kind described is section F. 7. 1. 
 
MINORITY OR WOMEN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, as 
defined in ORS 200.005, means a small business concern 
which is at least 51 percent owned by one or more minorities 
or women, or in the case of a corporation, at least 51 percent 
of the stock of which is owned by one or more minorities or 
women, and whose management and daily business 
operations are controlled by one or more such individuals. 
 
MINORITY INDIVIDUAL, as defined in ORS 200.005, 
means a person who is a citizen or lawful permanent 
resident of the United States who is: 
(a) Black who is a person having origins in any of the black 
racial groups of Africa; 
(b) Hispanic who is a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, 
Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish culture 
or origin, regardless of race; 
(c) Asian American who is a person having origins in any of 
the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the 
Indian subcontinent or the Pacific Islands; 
(d) Portuguese who is a person of Portuguese, Brazilian or 
other Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race; 
(e) American Indian or Alaskan Native who is a person 
having origins in any of the original peoples of North 
America; or 
(f) Member of another group, or another individual who is 
socially and economically disadvantaged as determined by 
the Advocate for Minority, Women and Emerging Small 
Businesses. 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED, means the official written notice 
from the Owner indicating that all initial Contract 

7 - 11



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 4 - 

requirements, including the Contract, performance bond, and 
certificates of insurance, have been fully executed and 
submitted in a suitable form and that the Contractor may 
proceed with the Work defined in the Contract Documents. 
 
OVERHEAD, means those items which may be included in 
the Contractor's markup (general and administrative 
expense, overhead and profit) and shall not be charged as 
direct cost of the Work: personnel above the level of foreman 
(i.e., superintendents and Project managers); equipment 
owned or leased by the Contractor (i.e., job trailers, small 
tools); expenses of the Contractor's offices including 
personnel; and overhead and general administrative 
expenses. 
 
OWNER, means City of Gladstone, Oregon. 
 
OWNER'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, means 
those individuals identified in writing by the Owner to act on 
behalf of the Owner for this Project.  Depending on the 
specific contract, may also be referred to as “Project 
Manager.” 
 
PERSON, means an individual doing business as a sole 
proprietorship, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a 
limited liability company or partnership, or any other entity 
possessing the legal capacity to contract. 
 
PLANS, means the drawings which show the location, type, 
dimensions, and details of the Work to be done under  the 
Contract. 
 
PROJECT, means the specific work to be performed as 
described in the Contract Documents. 
 
PUNCHLIST, means the list of Work yet to be completed or 
deficiencies which need to be corrected in order to achieve 
Final Completion of the Contract. 
 
SITE is the general area of ground upon which the 
Contractor will perform the Work. 
 
SMALL BUSINESS CONCERN, as defined in ORS 
200.005, means a small business as defined by the United 
States Small Business Administration per 13 CFR, part 121, 
as amended. 
 
SOCIALLY DISADVANTAGED INDIVIDUAL, as defined in 
ORS 200.005, means an individual who has been subjected 
to racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias, without regard to 
individual qualities, because of the individual's identity as a 
member of a group. 
 

SOLICITATION DOCUMENT means an Invitation to Bid or 
similar type document from the Owner soliciting work on the 
public improvement. 
 
SPECIFICATION,  means any description of the physical or 
functional characteristics of the Work, or of the nature of a 
supply, service or construction item.  Specifications may 
include a description of any requirement for inspecting, 
testing or preparing a supply, service or construction item for 
delivery and the quantities or qualities of materials to be 
furnished under the Contract.  Specifications generally will 
state the results or products to be obtained and may, on 
occasion, describe the method and manner of doing the 
work to be performed.  Specifications may be 
incorporated by reference and/or may be attached to the 
Contract. 
 
SUBCONTRACTOR, means a Person having a direct 
contract with the Contractor, or another Subcontractor, to 
perform one or more items of the Work. 
 
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION,  means the date when the 
Owner accepts in writing the construction, alteration or repair 
of the improvement to real property or any designated 
portion thereof as having reached that state of completion 
when it may be used or occupied for its intended purpose. 
(Refer also to Section K.4.) 
 
SUBSTITUTIONS,  means items that are the same or better 
in function, performance, reliability, quality, and general 
configuration as that product(s) specified.  Approval of any 
substitute item shall be solely determined by the Owner's 
Authorized Representative.  The decision of the Owner's 
Authorized Representative is final. 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS,  means those 
conditions that remove from, add to, or modify these General 
Conditions.  Supplemental General Conditions may be 
included in the Solicitation Document or may be a separate 
attachment to the Contract.  To the extent the terms of the 
Supplemental General Conditions and these General 
Conditions conflict, the terms of Supplemental General 
Conditions will prevail. 
 
WOMAN as defined in ORS 200.005, means a person of the 
female sex who is a citizen or lawful permanent resident of 
the United States. 
 
WORK means the furnishing of all materials, equipment, 
labor, transportation, services and incidentals necessary to 
successfully complete any individual item or the entire 
Contract and the carrying out of duties and obligations 
imposed by the Contract Documents. 

7 - 12



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 5 - 

A.2  SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 The Work contemplated under this Contract includes 

all labor, materials, transportation, equipment and 
services for, and incidental to, the completion of all 
construction work in connection with the Project 
described in the Contract Documents.  The Contractor 
shall perform all Work necessary so that the Project 
can be legally occupied and fully used for the intended 
use as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

 
A.3  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
 The Contract Documents consist of the Solicitation 

Document (including any bid addenda) Instructions to 
Bidders, General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions 
(if any) the accepted Bid, the Contract and any 
amendment(s) thereto (if any), Performance Bond, 
Plans, Specifications, approved shop drawings, 
approved equals and approved change orders. 

 
A.4  INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS 
 
A4.1  The Contract Documents are intended to be 
 complementary.  Whatever is called for in one, is 
 interpreted to be called for in all.  However, in the 
 event of conflicts or discrepancies among the Contract 
 Documents, interpretations will be based on the 
 following priorities: 

I.  The Contract, and amendments to same, with 
those of  later date having precedence over those 
of an earlier date; 
2. The Supplemental Conditions; 
3. The General Conditions of the Contract; 
4. Specifications and Plans and notes on Plans. 

 
A4.2  In the case of an inconsistency between Plans and 
 Specifications or within either document not clarified 
 by addendum, the better quality or greater quantity of 
 Work shall be provided in accordance with the Owner 
 or Owner's Authorized Representative's interpretation 
 in writing. 
 
A4.3  If the Contractor finds discrepancies in, or omissions 

from the Contract Documents, or if the Contractor is in 
doubt as to their meaning, the Contractor shall at once 
notify the Owner or Owner's Authorized 
Representative.  Contractor shall not proceed without 
direction in writing from the Owner or Owner's 
Authorized Representative. 

 
A.4.4 References to standard specifications, manuals, 

codes of any technical society, organization or 
association, to the laws or regulations of any 
governmental authority, whether such reference be 
specific or by implication, shall mean the latest 
standard specification, manual, code, laws or 

regulations in effect in the jurisdiction where the 
Project is occurring on the first published date of the 
Solicitation Document, except as may be otherwise 
specifically stated. 

 
A.5 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
 AND SITE 
 
 It is understood that the Contractor, before submitting 

a Bid, has made a careful examination of the 
Contract Documents; has become fully informed as 
to the quality and quantity of materials and the 
character of the Work required AND has made a 
careful examination of the location and conditions of 
the Work and the sources of supply for materials.  
The Owner will in no case be responsible for any loss 
or for any unanticipated costs that may be suffered 
by the Contractor as a result of the Contractor's 
failure to acquire full information in advance in regard 
to all conditions pertaining to the Work.  No oral 
agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or 
personnel of the Owner or with the Architect / 
Engineer either before or after the execution of this 
Contract shall affect or modify any of the terms or 
obligations herein contained. 

 
A.6 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 
 
 The service or services to be performed under this 

Contract are those of an independent contractor.  
Contractor is not an officer, employee or agent of the 
Owner as those terms are used in ORS 30.265. 

 
A.7 RETIREMENT SYSTEM STATUS 
 
 Contractor is not a contributing member of the Public 

Employees' Retirement System and will be 
responsible for any federal or state taxes applicable 
to payment received under this Contract.  Contractor 
will not be eligible for any benefits from these 
Contract payments of federal Social Security, 
employment insurance, workers' compensation or 
the Public Employees' Retirement System, except as 
a self-employed individual. 

 
A.8 GOVERNMENT EMPLOYMENT STATUS 
 
A.8.1 If this payment is to be charged against federal 

funds, Contractor certifies that it is not currently 
employed by the Federal Government.  This does not 
preclude the Contractor from holding another 
contract with the Federal Government. 

 
 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 

SECTION B 

7 - 13



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 6 - 

 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

 
 
B.1 CONTRACTOR'S MITIGATION OF IMPACTS 
 
B.1.1 The Contractor is responsible to protect and maintain 
 the Work during the course of construction and to 

mitigate any adverse impacts to the Project including 
those caused by authorized changes, which may 
affect cost, schedule or quality. 

 
B.1.2 The Contractor is responsible for the actions of all its 

personnel, laborers, suppliers and Subcontractors on 
the Project. 

 
B.2 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP 
 
B.2.1  The intent of the Contract Documents is to provide for  
 the construction and completion in every detail of the 

Work described.  All Work shall be performed in a 
professional manner and unless the means or 
methods of performing a task are specified elsewhere 
in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall employ 
methods that are generally accepted and used by the 
industry and in accordance with industry standards. 

 
B.2.2  The Contractor is responsible to perform the Work as 

required by the Contract Documents. Defective Work 
shall be corrected at the Contractor's expense. 

 
B.2.3  Work done and materials furnished shall be subject to 
 inspection and/or observation and testing by the 

Owner's Authorized Representative to determine if 
they conform to the Contract Documents.  Inspection 
of the Work by the Owner's Authorized Representative 
does not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
B.2.4 Contractor shall furnish adequate facilities, as 

required, for the Owner's Authorized  Representative 
to have safe access to the Work including without 
limitation walkways, railings, ladders, tunnels and 
platforms. Producers, suppliers and fabricators shall 
also provide proper facilities and access to their 
facilities. 

 
B.2.5 The Contractor shall furnish samples of materials for 

testing by the Owner's Authorized Representative and 
 include the cost of the samples in the Contract Price. 
 
B.3 PERMITS 
 
 Contractor shall obtain and pay for all necessary 

permits and licenses, except for those specifically 
excluded in the Supplemental General Conditions, for 
the construction of the Work, for temporary 
obstructions, enclosures, opening of streets for pipes, 
walls, utilities, environmental, etc., as required for the 
Project. Contractor shall be responsible for all 
violations of the law in connection with the 
construction or caused by obstructing streets, 
sidewalks or otherwise.   Contractor shall give all 
requisite notices to public authorities. The Contractor 
shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor 
shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any 
patent rights and save harmless and blameless from 

loss, on account thereof, Owner, its Councilors, 
agents and employees. 

 
B.4 COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 

REGULATIONS 
 
B.4.1 Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to 
the Work.  Failure to comply with such requirements 
shall constitute a breach of Contract and shall be 
grounds for Contract termination.  Damages or costs 
resulting from noncompliance shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 

 
B.4.2 Contractor shall comply with all applicable 

requirements of federal and state civil rights and 
rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations; and 

 
a) Contractor shall not discriminate against Minority, 

Women or Emerging Small Business enterprises in 
the awarding of subcontracts (ORS 279.111). 

 
b) Contractor shall maintain, in current and valid form, all 

licenses and certificates required by law, regulation, or 
this Contract when performing the Work. 

 
c) Failure to comply with any or all of the requirements of 

B.4.1 through B.4.3 shall be a breach of Contract and 
constitute grounds for Contract termination.  Damages 
or costs resulting from such noncompliance shall be 
the responsibility of Contractor. 

 
B.4.3 Unless contrary to federal law, Contractor shall certify 

that it shall not accept a bid or proposal from 
Subcontractors to perform Work as described in ORS 
701.005 under this Contract unless such 
Subcontractors are registered with the Construction 
Contractors Board in accordance with ORS 701.035 to 
701.055 at the time they submit their bids or proposals 
to the Contractor. 

 
B.4.4 Unless contrary to federal law, Contractor shall certify 

that each landscape contractor, as defined in ORS 
671.520(2), performing Work under this Contract holds 
a valid landscape contractor's license issued pursuant 
to ORS 671.560. 

 
B.4.5 Utility Notification Requirement for Excavation Work.  

ATTENTION: Oregon law requires you to follow rules 
adopted by the Oregon Utility Notification Center.  
Those rules are set forth in OAR 952-001-0010 
through OAR 952-001-0090. 

 
B.5 SUPERINTENDENCE 
 

Contractor shall keep on the site, during the progress 
of the Work, a competent superintendent and any 
necessary assistants who shall be satisfactory to the 
Owner and who shall represent the Contractor on the 
site.  Directions given to the superintendent by the 
Owner's Authorized Representative shall be confirmed 
in writing to the Contractor. 

 
 

B.6 INSPECTION  

7 - 14



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 7 - 

B.6.1 Owner's Authorized Representative shall have 
access to the Work at all times. 

 
B.6.2 Inspection of the Work will be made by the Owner's 

Authorized Representative at its discretion.  Any 
Work found to be not in conformance with the 
Contract Documents, in the discretion of the Owner's 
Authorized Representative, shall be removed and 
replaced at the Contractor's expense. 

 
B.6.3 As required by the Contract Documents, Work done 

or material used without inspection or testing by the 
Owner's Authorized Representative may be ordered 
removed at the Contractor's expense. 

 
B.6.4 If directed to do so any time before the Work is 

accepted, the Contractor shall uncover portions of 
the completed Work for inspection.  After inspection, 
the Contractor shall restore such portions of Work to 
the standard required by the Contract.  If the Work 
uncovered is unacceptable or was done without 
sufficient notice to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, the uncovering and restoration shall 
be done at the Contractor's expense.  If the Work 
uncovered is acceptable and was done with sufficient 
notice to the Owner's Authorized Representative, the 
uncovering and restoration will be paid for as a 
change order. 

 
B.6.5 When the United States government participates in 

the cost of the Work or the Owner has an agreement 
with other public or private organizations or if any 
portion of the Work is being performed for a third 
party or in close proximity to third party facilities, 
representatives of these organizations have the right 
to inspect the Work affecting their interests or 
property.  Their right to inspect shall not make them a 
party to the Contract and shall not interfere with the 
rights of the parties of the Contract.  Instructions or 
orders of such parties shall be transmitted to the 
Contractor, through the Owner's Authorized 
Representative. 

 
B.7 SEVERABILITY 
 
 If any provision of this Contract is declared by a court 

to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of 
the remaining terms and provisions shall not be 
affected and the rights and obligations of the parties 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract 
did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

 
B.8 ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
B.8.1 Contractor shall keep at all times on the Work site, a 

copy of the complete Contract Documents and 
current “as builts” and shall at all times give the 
Owner's Authorized Representative access thereto. 

 
B.8.2  The Owner and its duly authorized representatives  

shall have access, for a period not less than three (3) 
years to books, documents, papers and records of 
Contractor which are pertinent to the Contract 
including records pertaining to overhead and indirect  
costs, for the purpose of making audit, examination, 
excerpts and transcripts. If for any reason, any part 
of the Contract is involved in litigation, Contractor 
shall retain all pertinent records until all litigation is 
resolved. The Owner and/or its agents will continue 
to be provided full access to the records during 
litigation. 

 

B.9 WAIVER 
 

 Failure of the Owner to enforce any provision of this 
Contract shall not constitute a waiver or 
relinquishment by the Owner of the right to such 
performance in the future nor of the right to enforce 
any other provision of this Contract. 

 
B.10 ASSIGNMENT/ SUBCONTRACT 
 
 Contractor shall not assign, sell, or transfer its rights, 

or delegate its responsibilities under this Contract, in 
whole or in part, without the prior written approval of 
the Owner. No such written approval shall relieve 
Contractor of any obligations of this Contract, and any 
transferee shall be considered the agent of the 
Contractor and bound to perform in accordance with 
the Contract Documents. Contractor shall remain 
liable as between the original parties to the Contract 
as if no assignment had occurred. 

 
B.11 SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
 

The provisions of this Contract shall be binding upon 
and shall accrue to the benefit of the parties to the 
Contract and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
B.12 OWNER'S RIGHT TO DO WORK 
 
 Owner reserves the right to perform other or additional 

work at or near the Project site with other forces than 
those of the Contractor.  If such work takes place 
within or next to the Project site, Contractor will 
coordinate work with the other contractors or forces, 
cooperate with all other contractors or forces, carry out 
the Work in a way that will minimize interference and 
delay for all forces involved, place and dispose of 
materials being used so as not to interfere with the 
operations of another, and join the Work with the work 
of the others in an acceptable manner and perform it 
in proper sequence to that of the others.  The Owner's 
Authorized Representative will resolve any 
disagreements that may arise between or among 
Contractor and the other contractors over the method 
or order of doing all work (including the Work). In case 
of unavoidable interference,  the Owner's Authorized  
Representative will establish work priority (including 
the Work) which generally will be in the sequence that 
the contracts were awarded. 

 
B.13 OTHER CONTRACTS 
 

 In all cases and at any time, the Owner has the right to 
execute other contracts related to or unrelated to the Work of 
this Contract. The Contractor of this Contract will fully 
cooperate with any and all other contractors without 
additional cost to the Owner in the manner described in 
section B.13. 

 
B.14  GOVERNING LAW 
 

 This Contract shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without 
regard to principles of conflict of laws. 
 
B.15  ALLOWANCES 
 
B.15.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Price all 

allowances stated in the Contract Documents.  Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such 
amounts and by such persons or entities as the 
Owner may direct. 

 

7 - 15



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 8 - 

B.15.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract 
Documents: 
(a) when finally reconciled, allowances shall cover 

the cost to the Contractor of materials and 
equipment delivered at the site and all required 
taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 

(b) Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at 
the site, labor, installation costs, Overhead, 
profit and other expenses contemplated for 
stated allowance amounts shall be included in 
the Contract Price but not in the allowances; 

(c) whenever costs are more than or less than 
allowances, the Contract Price shall be adjusted 
accordingly by Change Order.  The amount of 
the Change Order shall reflect (i) the difference 
between actual costs and the allowances under 
Section B.15.2(a) and (2) changes in 
Contractor’s costs under Section B.15.2(b). 

(d) Unless Owner requests otherwise, Contractor 
shall provide to Owner a proposed fixed price 
for any allowance work prior to its performance. 

 
 
B.16  SUBMITTALS, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA 

AND SAMPLES 
 
B.16.1 The Contractor shall prepare and keep current, for 

the Architect’s/Engineer’s approval (or for the 
approval of Owner’s Authorized Representative if 
approval authority has not been delegated to the  

 Architect/Engineer), a schedule and list of submittals 
which is coordinated with the Contractor's 
construction schedule and allows the 
Architect/Engineer reasonable time to review 
submittals.  Owner reserves the right to finally 
approve the schedule and list of submittals.  
Submittals include, without limitation, Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, and Samples which are 
described below: 
(a) Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, 

schedules and other data specially prepared for 
the Work by the Contractor or a Subcontractor 
(including any sub-subcontractor), 
manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate 
some portion of the Work. 

(b) Product Data are illustrations, standard 
schedules, performance charts, instructions, 
brochures, diagrams and other information 
furnished by the Contractor to illustrate 
materials or equipment for some portion of the 
Work. 

(c) Samples are physical examples which illustrate 
materials, equipment or workmanship and 
establish standards by which the Work will be 
judged. 

 
B.16.2 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar 

submittals are not Contract Documents.  The 
purpose of their submittal is to demonstrate for those 
portions of the Work for which submittals are 
required by the Contract Documents the way by 
which the Contractor proposes to conform to the 
information given and the design concept expressed 
in the Contract Documents.  Review of submittals by 
the Architect/Engineer is not conducted for the 
purpose of determining the accuracy and 
completeness of other details such as dimensions 
and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for 
installation or performance of equipment or systems, 
or for approval of safety precautions or, unless 
otherwise specifically stated by the 
Architect/Engineer, of any construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, all 

of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor 
as required by the Contract Documents.  The 
Architect/Engineer’s review of the Contractor’s 
submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of its 
obligations under the Contract Documents.  The 
Architect/Engineer’s approval of a specific item shall 
not indicate approval of an assembly of which the 
item is a component.  Informational submittals upon 
which the Architect/Engineer is not expected to take 
responsive action may be so identified in the 
Contract Documents.  Submittals which are not 
required by the Contract Documents may be 
returned by the Architect/Engineer without action. 

 
B.16.3 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the 

Contract Documents, approve and submit to the 
Architect/Engineer Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples and similar submittals required by the 
Contract Documents with reasonable promptness 
and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the 
Work or in the activities of the Owner or of separate 
contractors.  Submittals which are not marked as 
reviewed for compliance with the Contract 
Documents and approved by the Contractor may be 
returned by the Architect/Engineer without action. 

 
B.16.4 By approving and submitting Shop Drawings, 

Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the  
 Contractor represents that the Contractor has 

determined and verified materials, field 
measurements and field construction criteria related 
thereto, or will do so, and has checked and 
coordinated the information contained within such 
submittals with the requirements of the Work and of 
the Contract Documents. 

 
B.16.5 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work 

for which the Contract Documents require submittal 
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples or similar submittals until the respective 
submittal has been approved by the 
Architect/Engineer. 

 
B.16.6 The Work shall be in accordance with approved 

submittals except that the Contractor shall not be 
relieved of responsibility for deviations from 
requirements of the Contract Documents by the 
Architect/Engineer’s review or approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar 
submittals unless the Contractor has specifically 
informed the Architect/Engineer in writing of such 
deviation at the time of submittal and (i) the 
Architect/Engineer has given written approval to the 
specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or 
(ii) a Change Order has been executed by Owner 
authorizing the deviation.  The Contractor shall not 
be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in 
Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar 
submittals by the Architect/Engineer’s review or 
approval thereof. 

 
B.16.7 In the event that Owner elects not to have the 

obligations and duties described under this Section 
B.16 performed by the Architect/Engineer, or in the 
event no Architect/Engineer is employed by Owner 
on the project, all obligations and duties assigned to 
the Architect/Engineer hereunder shall be performed 
by the Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 
 
B.17  SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

7 - 16



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 9 - 

The Contractor may make Substitutions only with the 
consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Owner’s 
Authorized Representative and only in accordance with a 
Change Order.  Substitutions shall be subject to the 
requirements of the bid documents.  By making requests for 
Substitutions, the Contractor represents that the Contractor 
has personally investigated the proposed substitute product; 
represents that the Contractor will provide the same 
warranty for the Substitution that the Contractor would for 
the product originally specified unless approved otherwise; 
certifies that the cost data presented is complete and 
includes all related costs under this Contract including 
redesign costs, and waives all claims for additional costs 
related to the Substitution which subsequently become 
apparent; and will coordinate the installation of the accepted 
Substitution, making such changes as may be required for 
the Work to be completed in all respects. 
 
 
B.18  USE OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Plans, Specifications and related Contract Documents 
furnished to Contractor by Owner or Owner’s 
Architect/Engineer shall be used solely for the performance 
of the Work under this Contract.  Contractor and its 
Subcontractors and suppliers are authorized to use and 
reproduce applicable portions of such documents 
appropriate to the execution of the Work, but shall not claim 
any ownership or other interest in them beyond the scope of 
this Contract, and no such interest shall attach.  Unless 
otherwise indicated, all common law, statutory and other  
reserved rights, in addition to copyrights, are retained by 
Owner. 
 
B.19  FUNDS AVAILABLE AND AUTHORIZED 
 
Owner reasonably believes at the time of entering into this 
Contract that sufficient funds are available and authorized for 
expenditure to finance the cost of this Contract within the 
Owner's appropriation or limitation. Contractor understands 
and agrees that, to the extent that sufficient funds are not 
available and authorized for expenditure to finance the cost 
of this Contract, Owner’s payment of amounts under this 
Contract attributable to Services performed after the last day 
of the current budget year is contingent on Owner receiving 
from the Gladstone City Council appropriations, limitations or 
other expenditure authority sufficient to allow Owner to 
continue to make payments under this Contract. 
 
B.20   NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
Owner and Contractor are the only parties to this Contract 
and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms.  
Nothing in this Contract gives, is intended to give, or shall be 
construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether 
directly, indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such 
third persons are individually identified by name herein and 
expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of 
this Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 

7 - 17



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 10 - 

SECTION C 
 

WAGES AND LABOR 
 
 

C.1 WAGE RATES ON PUBLIC WORKS 
 

The Contractor shall comply fully with the provisions 
of ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870. The current 
prevailing wage rates may be found here: 
https://www.oregon.gov/boli/employers/Pages/prevail
ing-wage-rates.aspx  

 
If both state and federal prevailing wage rates apply 
to the Work, Contractor must pay all laborers, 
including those working on behalf of subcontractors, 
the higher of the applicable state or federal wage 
rate.   
 
If Contractor is required to pay prevailing wages, 
Contractor will ensure that its subcontractors also 
agree to do so in writing.  If both state and federal 
wages apply to the Work, Contractor will ensure that 
its subcontractors agree in writing to pay the higher 
of the applicable state or federal wage rate.  

 
C.2 PAYROLL CERTIFICATION AND FEE 
 REQUIREMENTS 
 
C.2.1 In accordance with ORS 279C.840, the Contractor 

and every Subcontractor shall submit written certified 
statements with the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, on the form prescribed by the 
Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and  
Industries, certifying the hourly rate of wage paid 
each worker which the Contractor or the 
Subcontractor has employed on the Project and 
further certifying that no worker employed on the 
Project has been paid less than the prevailing rate of 
wage or less than the minimum hourly rate of wage 
specified in the Contract, which certificate and  
statement shall be verified by the oath of the 
Contractor or  the Subcontractor that the Contractor 
or Subcontractor has  read such statement and 
certificate and knows the contents  thereof and that 
the same is true to the Contractor or Subcontractor's 
knowledge. The certified statements shall set out 
accurately and completely the payroll records for the 
prior week including the name and address of each 
worker, the worker's correct classification, rate of 
pay, daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Certified 
statements shall be submitted as follows: 

 
 (a) For any Project 90 days or less from the date of 

award of the Contract to the date of completion of 
Work under the Contract, the statements shall be 
submitted once before the first payment and once 
before final payment is made. 

 
 (b) For any Project exceeding 90 days from the date 

of award of the Contract to the date of completion of 
Work under the Contract, the statements shall be 
submitted once before the first payment is made, at 
90-day intervals thereafter, and once before final 
payment is made. 

 
 The Contractor and Subcontractors shall preserve 

the certified statements for a period of three years 
from the date of completion of the Contract. 

 

C.2.2 Pursuant to ORS 279C.825 and in accordance with 
administrative rules promulgated by the 
Commissioner of the Bureau of Labor and Industries, 
Contractor must pay a fee to Owner (Owner must 
submit fee to the Bureau of Labor and Industries) 
equaling 1/10 of I % of the Contract price, however, 
the fee shall not be less than $250 nor more than 
$7500, regardless of the Contract price.  Owner may 
withhold the amount of this fee from any amounts 
due Contractor. 

 
C.2.3 Unless otherwise exempt under ORS 279C.836(7)  

or (8), Contractor and each subcontractor shall prior 
to commencing work on the project, file with the 
Construction Contractors Board  a Public Works 
bond consistent with the requirements imposed by 
and set out in ORS 279C.836 in an amount of not 
less than $30,000.00.  

 
C.3 PROMPT PAYMENT AND CONTRACT 

CONDITIONS 
 

C.3.1 Pursuant to ORS 279B.220 and as a condition to   
Owner's performance hereunder, the Contractor 
shall: 

 
C.3.1.1 Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons  

supplying to Contractor labor or materials for the 
prosecution of the Work provided for in this 
Contract.  

 
C.3.1.2 Pay all contributions or amounts due the State 

Industrial Accident Fund and the State 
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund from 
such Contractor or Subcontractor incurred in the 
performance of the Contract. 

 
C.3.1.3 Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or 

prosecuted against the Owner on account of any 
labor or material furnished. 

 
C. 3.1.4 Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums 

withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 
316.167. 

 
C.3.2 Pursuant to ORS 279C.505 demonstrate that an 

employee drug testing program is in place. 
  

The Contractor shall demonstrate that it has a 
drug-testing program in place by executing a 
certification on a form provided by the Owner, 
which shall become a term or condition of the 
Contract. Failure to maintain such a program shall 
constitute a material breach of contract 

 
C.3.3 Pursuant to ORS 279C.515, and as a condition to 

Owner's performance hereunder: 
 
C.3.3.1 If Contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make 

prompt payment of any claim for labor or services 
furnished to the Contractor or a Subcontractor by 
any person in connection with the Project as such 
claim becomes due, the proper officer(s) 
representing the Owner may pay the claim and 
charge the amount of the payment against funds 
due or to become due Contractor under this 
Contract.  Payment of claims in this manner shall 

7 - 18



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 11 - 

not relieve the Contractor or the Contractor's surety 
from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims. 

 
C.3.3.2 If the Contractor or a first-tier Subcontractor fails, 

neglects or refuses to make payment to a person 
furnishing labor or materials in connection with the 
public contract for a public improvement within 30 
days after receipt of payment from the public 
contracting agency or a Contractor, the Contractor 
or first-tier Subcontractor shall owe the person the 
amount due plus interest charges commencing at 
the end of the 10-day period that payment is due 
under ORS 279C.580(4) and ending upon final 
payment unless payment is subject to a good faith 
dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580.  The rate of 
interest charged to the contractor or first-tier 
subcontractor on the amount due shall equal three 
(3) times the discount rate on a 90-day commercial 
paper in effect at the federal Reserve bank in the 
Federal Reserve district that includes Oregon on 
the date that is thirty (30) days after the date when 
payment was received from the Owner or from the 
contractor but the rate of interest may not exceed 
thirty ( percent (30%).  The amount of interest may 
not be waived.   

 
C.3.3.3 If the Contractor or a Subcontractor fails, neglects or 

refuses to make payment to a person furnishing labor 
or materials in connection with the public contract, 
the person may file a complaint with the Construction 
Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a 
good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580. 
Every contract related to this public contract shall 
contain a similar clause. 

 
C.3.4  Pursuant to ORS 279C.580, Contractor shall include 

in each Subcontract for property or services entered 
into by the Contractor and a first-tier subcontractor, 
including a material supplier, for the purpose of 
performing a construction contract: 

 
(a)  A payment clause that obligates the Contractor to 

pay the first-tier Subcontractor for satisfactory 
performance under its subcontract within 10 days out 
of such amounts as are paid to the Contractor by the 
public contracting agency under such contract; and 

 
(b) An interest penalty clause that obligates the 

Contractor if payment is not made within 30 days 
after receipt of payment from the public contracting 
agency, to pay to the first-tier Subcontractor an 
interest penalty on amounts due in the case of each 
payment not made in accordance with the payment 
clause included in the subcontract pursuant to ORS 
279C.580(3)(a). A Contractor or first-tier 
Subcontractor may not be obligated to pay an 
interest penalty if the only reason that the contractor 
or first-tier subcontractor did not make payment when 
payment was due is that the Contractor or first-tier 
Subcontractor did not receive payment from the 
public contracting agency or Contractor when 
payment was due.  

 
(c) The interest penalty shall be for the period beginning 

on the day after the required payment date and 
ending on the date on which payment of the amount 
due is made; and computed at the rate specified in 
ORS 279C.515(2). 

 
(d) A clause which requires each of Contractor's 

Subcontractor's to include, in each of their contracts 
with lower-tier Subcontractors or suppliers, 
provisions to the effect that the first-tier 

Subcontractor shall pay its lower-tier Subcontractors 
and suppliers in accordance with the provisions of 
subsections (a) (b) and (c), above and requiring each 
of their Subcontractors and suppliers to include such 
clauses in their subcontracts and supply contracts. 

 
C.3.5 All employers working under this Contract are subject 

employers which must comply with ORS 656.017 
relating to providing Workers' Compensation 
coverage. 

 
C.3.6 Contractor warrants that it is not delinquent in the 

filing or payment of any Oregon income taxes, 
Oregon personal property taxes, Oregon municipal 
taxes, or Oregon real property taxes and that it has 
otherwise complied with all Oregon tax laws and all 
tax laws of those Oregon municipalities to which 
Contractor is subject 

 
C.4 PAYMENT FOR MEDICAL CARE 
 

 Pursuant to ORS 279C.530, and as a condition to  
Owner's performance hereunder, Contractor shall 
promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-
partnership, association or corporation furnishing 
medical, surgical, and hospital care or other needed 
care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to 
the employees of such Contractor all sums of which 
the Contractor agrees to pay for such services and 
all moneys and sums which the Contractor has 
collected or deducted from the wages of personnel 
pursuant to any law, contract or agreement for the 
purpose of providing or paying for such services. 

 
C.5  HOURS OF LABOR 
 

As a condition to Owner's performance hereunder, 
Contractor shall comply with ORS 279C.520, as 
amended from time to time and incorporated herein 
by this reference: 
 
Pursuant to ORS 279C.520 and as a condition to  
Owner's performance hereunder, no person shall 
be employed to perform Work under this Contract 
for more than 10 hours in any one day or forty 
hours in any one week, except in cases of 
necessity, emergency or where public policy 
absolutely requires it.  In such instances, Contractor 
shall pay the employee at least time and a half pay: 

 
(a) For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 

hours in any one week when the work week is five 
consecutive days, Monday through Friday; or 

 
(b) For all overtime in excess of 10 hours a day or 40 

 hours in any one week when the work week is four 
 consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and 
 

(c) For all Work performed on Saturday and on any 
 legal holiday specified in ORS 279C.540. 
 
 This section C.5 will not apply to Contractor's Work 

under this Contract if Contractor is currently a party 
to a collective bargaining agreement with any labor 
organization. 

 
 
 
 

7 - 19



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 12 - 

SECTION D 
 

CHANGES IN THE WORK 
 

 
 
D.1 CHANGES IN WORK 
 
D.1.1 The terms of this Contract shall not be waived, altered, 

modified, supplemented or amended in any manner 
whatsoever, without prior written approval of the 
Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 
D.1.2 Changes in Plans, quantities, or details of construction 

are inherent to the nature of construction and may be 
necessary or desirable during the course of 
construction. The Owner's Authorized Representative 
may at any time, without notice to the sureties, either 
increase or decrease the amount of Work to be 
performed under the Contract. Without impairing the 
Contract, the Owner reserves the right to require 
changes determined necessary or desirable to 
complete the proposed construction within the general 
scope of the Contract. These changes may include, 
but are not limited to: 

(a) Specifications and design. 
(b) Increases or decreases in quantities. 
(c) Additional Work. 
(d) Elimination of any Contract item. 
(e) Duration of Project. 
(f) Acceleration or delay in performance of 

Work. 
 
D.1.3 The Owner and Contractor agree that changes shall 

be administered and negotiated according to the 
following:  
 Any Contract amendment (including change 

orders, extra Work, field orders, or other 
changes in the Contract Documents) which 
modifies the original Contract, may be made 
with the Contractor without competitive bidding 
subject to the following: 

 
 The original Contract was let by competitive 

procurement; unit price or solicitation alternates 
were provided that established the cost for 
additional Work; and, a binding obligation exists 
on the parties covering the terms and conditions 
of the additional Work. 

 
D. 1.4 In the event there are any changes or extra Work of a 

class not covered by the prices included in the 
Contract Documents, the basis of payments shall be 
agreed upon in writing between the Parties to the 
Contract before the Work is done. If basis for payment 
cannot be agreed upon prior to the beginning of the 
Work, and if so directed by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, then Work shall be performed on the   
basis of furnishing direct labor, equipment, and 
material costs on all Work performed. In either case, in 
addition to Direct Costs, up to the following amounts 
may be added to the Contractor's or Subcontractor's    
Direct Costs to cover overhead expenses for Work 
performed with their own forces: 
 Labor..................... 10% 
 Equipment................. 10% 
 Materials................. 10% 

 
When Work is performed by an authorized 
Subcontractor, the Contractor will be allowed a 
supplemental mark-up on each piece of subcontract 
Work covered by the change order up to the following: 

 
 $0.00 - $2,000.00.......          10%  
 Over $2,000.00...........           5% 
 

These payments made to the Contractor will be 
complete compensation for Overhead, profit, and all 
other costs incurred by the Contractor or other forces 
furnished by the Contractor, including Subcontractors.  
These payments apply to all change order Work.  No 
other reimbursement, compensation or payment will 
be made. 

 
D.1.5 If any change under this section causes an increase or 

decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time 
required for the performance of any part of the Work 
under this Contract, the Contractor must submit a 
written statement setting forth the nature and specific 
extent of the claim, including all time and cost impacts 
against the Contract as soon as possible, but no later 
than 30 days after receipt of any written notice of 
modification of the Contract. (Refer also to Section H. 
1.4 for notification.) 

 
D.1.6 No claim by the Contractor for additional costs shall be 

allowed if made after receipt of final payment 
application under this Contract. 

 
D.1.7 All change order Work shall be executed under the 

conditions of the Contract Documents except that any 
claim for extension of time caused thereby shall be 
adjusted at the time of ordering such change. 

 
D.1.8 Deductive changes are those which reduce the scope 

of the Work.  All deductive changes will be negotiated 
using the percentages for labor, equipment, material 
and Subcontractor's mark-ups in D. 1.4. 

 
D.1.9 It is understood that changes in the Work are inherent 

to construction of this type.  The number of changes, 
the scope of those changes, and the impact they have 
on the progress of the original Work cannot be defined 
at this time.  The Contractor is notified that numerous 
changes are anticipated and that there will be no 
compensation made to the Contractor directly related 
to the number of changes.  Each change will be 
evaluated for extension of Contract time and increase 
or decrease in compensation based on its own merit. 

 
 
D.2 DELAYS 
 
D.2.1 If the Contractor is delayed by any actions of the 

Owner, Owner's Authorized Representative, or any 
other employee or agent of the Owner, or by separate 
contractor employed by the Owner, or by Force 
Majeure, the Contractor shall submit a written 
notification of the delay to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative within two working days of the delay.  
This notice shall state the cause of the potential delay, 
the Project components impacted by the delay, and 
the anticipated time extension necessary to 
compensate for the delay.  Within seven days after the 
cause of the delay has been mitigated, or in no case 
more than 30 days after the initial notice, the 
Contractor shall submit to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, a complete and detailed request for 
additional time resulting from the delay.  The request 

7 - 20



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 13 - 

shall be reviewed as described in Section D.3 Claims 
Review Process. 

 
D.2.2 Avoidable delays include delays which could have 

been avoided by the exercise of care, prudence, 
foresight, and diligence on the part of the Contractor 
or its Subcontractors, including, but not limited to, the 
following: 
(a) Delays which may in themselves be 

unavoidable but which affect only a portion of 
the Work and do not necessarily prevent or 
delay the prosecution of other parts of the Work 
nor the completion of the whole Work within the 
Contract time. 

(b) Delays which do not impact activities on the 
accepted critical path schedule. 

(c) Time associated with the reasonable 
interference of other contractors employed by 
the Owner which do not necessarily prevent the 
completion of the whole Work within the 
Contract time. 

 
D.2.3 Unavoidable delays include those which result from 

causes beyond the control of the Contractor and which 
could not have been avoided by the exercise of care, 
prudence, foresight, and diligence on the part of the 
Contractor or its Subcontractors.  Delays caused by 
Force Majeure, war, public enemy, freight embargoes, 
and strikes which occur despite the Contractor's 
reasonable efforts to avoid them, shall be considered 
as unavoidable. 

 
D.2.4 The Owner may grant a time extension for avoidable 

or unavoidable delay if the Owner deems it is in its 
best interest.  Except as otherwise provided in ORS 
279C.315, time extensions for avoidable or 
unavoidable delays shall not be compensable.  Only 
delays within the reasonable control of the Owner may 
be compensable. 

 
D.2.5 Claims by the Contractor based on adverse weather 

conditions must be substantiated by documentation 
that weather conditions were abnormal for the specific 
time period claimed, could not have been anticipated 
by the Contractor, and adversely impacted the Project.  
A rain, windstorm, high water, or other natural 
phenomenon for the specific locality of the Work, 
which might reasonably have been anticipated from 
the previous ten (10) years historical records of the 
general locality of the Work, shall not be construed as 
abnormal.  It is hereby agreed that rainfall greater than 
the following cannot be reasonably anticipated: 
(a) Daily rainfall equal to, or greater than, 0.50 inch 

during a month when the monthly rainfall 
exceeds the normal monthly average by twenty-
five percent (25 %) or more. 

(b) Daily rainfall equal to, or greater than, 0.75 inch 
at any time. 

(c) The Office of the Environmental Data Service of 
the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (NOAA) of the U.S. Department of 
Commerce nearest the Project site shall be 
considered the official agency of record for 
weather information. 

 
D.2.6 If the Contractor discovers site conditions which differ 

materially from what was represented in the Contract 
Documents or from conditions that would normally be 
expected to exist and be inherent to the construction 
activities defined in the Contract Documents, the 
Contractor shall notify the Owner's Authorized 
Representative immediately and before the area has 
been disturbed.  The Owner's Authorized 

Representative will investigate the area and make a 
determination as to whether or not the conditions differ 
materially from either the conditions stated in the 
Contract Documents or those which could reasonably 
be expected in execution of this particular Contract.  If 
it is determined that a differing site condition exists, 
any compensation or credit will be determined based 
on Section D. 1, Changes.  If the Contractor does not 
concur with the decision of the Owner's Authorized 
Representative and/or believes that it is entitled to 
additional compensation, the Contractor may proceed 
to file a claim. 

 
D.3 CLAIMS REVIEW PROCESS AND DISPUTE 

RESOLUTION 
 
D.3.1 All Contractor claims shall be referred to the Owner's 

Authorized Representative for review.  All claims shall 
be made in writing to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative not more than ten (10) days from the 
date of the occurrence of the event which gives rise to 
the claim or not more than ten (10) days from the date 
that the Contractor knew or should have known of the 
problem.  Unless the claim is made in accordance with 
these time requirements, it shall be waived. 

 
D.3.2 All claims shall be submitted in writing and shall 

include a detailed, factual statement of the basis of the 
claim, pertinent dates, Contract provisions which 
support or allow the claim, reference to or copies of 
any documents which support the claim, the exact 
dollar value of the claim, and specific time extension 
requested for the claim.  If the claim involves Work to 
be completed by Subcontractors, the Contractor will 
analyze and evaluate the merits of the Subcontractor 
claim prior to forwarding it and that analysis and 
evaluation to the Owner's Authorized Representative.  
The Owner's Authorized Representative and the 
Owner will not consider direct claims from 
Subcontractors, suppliers, manufacturers, or others 
not a party to this Contract. 

 
D.3.3 The Owner's Authorized  Representative will review all 

claims and take one or more of the following 
preliminary actions within ten days of receipt of a 
claim: (1) request additional supporting information 
from the Contractor; (2) inform the Contractor and 
Owner in writing of the time required for adequate 
review and response; (3) reject the claim in whole or in 
part and identify the reasons for rejection; (4) 
recommend approval of all or part of the claim; or (5) 
propose an alternate resolution. 

 
D.3.4  The Owner's Authorized Representative's decision 

shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless 
appealed by written notice to the Owner within fifteen 
days of receipt of the decision. The Contractor must 
present written documentation supporting the claim 
within fifteen days of the notice of appeal. After 
receiving the appeal documentation, the Owner shall 
review the materials and render a decision within 30 
days after receiving the appeal documents. 

 
D.3.5 The decision of the Owner shall be final and binding 

unless the Contractor requests mediation within fifteen 
days of receipt of the Owner's decision. Both the 
Owner and the Contractor are obligated to participate 
in the mediation process prior to either or both 
proceeding to litigation. The mediation process is non-
binding. 

 
D.3.6 If the parties cannot mutually resolve any claims or 

disputed claims, it is agreed that the parties shall 

7 - 21



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 14 - 

submit to mediation prior to the commencement of 
litigation. The mediator shall be an individual mutually 
acceptable to both parties, but in the absence of 
agreement, either party may apply to the Presiding 
Judge for Washington County Circuit Court for 
appointment of a mediator.  Each party shall share 
equally in the fees and costs of the mediator.  Each 
party shall be responsible for its own attorneys fees 
and other expert fees.  Mediation shall be at Portland, 
Oregon unless the parties agree otherwise.  Both 
parties agree to exercise their best effort in good faith 
to resolve all disputes in mediation. Participation in 
mediation is a mandatory requirement of both Owner 
and Contractor and failure to comply with this 
requirement is a material breach of the Contract.  The 
schedule and time allowed for mediation will be 
mutually acceptable.   

 
 If the dispute is not resolved by mediation, either party 

may file a lawsuit to resolve the dispute in a court with 
proper jurisdiction located in Clackamas County, 
Oregon.  Any trial shall be to the court without a jury.  
Each party shall be responsible for its own costs and 
attorneys and expert fees.    

    
D.3.7 Regardless of the review period or the final decision of 

the Owner's Authorized Representative, the 
Contractor shall continue to diligently pursue the Work 
as identified in the Contract Documents.  In no case is 
the Contractor justified or allowed to cease Work 
without a written stop work order from the Owner or 
Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 
 

7 - 22



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 15 - 

SECTION E 
PAYMENTS 

 
 

 
 

 
E.1 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
 

 The Contractor shall submit, at least ten days prior to 
submission of its first application for progress 
payment, a schedule of values ("Schedule of Values") 
for the contracted Work.  This schedule will provide a 
breakdown of values for the contracted Work and will 
be the basis for progress payments.  The breakdown 
will demonstrate reasonable, identifiable, and 
measurable components of the Work.  Unless 
objected to by the Owner's Authorized Representative, 
this schedule shall be used as the basis for reviewing 
Contractor's applications for payment. 

 
E.2 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT 
 
E.2.1 Owner shall make progress payments on the Contract 

monthly as Work progresses.  Payments shall be 
based upon estimates of Work completed and the 
Schedule of Values.  All payments shall be approved 
by the Owner's Authorized Representative.  A 
progress payment shall not be considered acceptance 
or approval of any Work or waiver of any defects 
therein.  Owner shall pay to Contractor interest on the 
progress payment, not including retainage, due the 
Contractor.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in 
instances when an application for payment is filled out 
incorrectly, or when there is any defect or impropriety 
in any submitted application or when there is a good 
faith dispute, Owner shall so notify the Contractor 
within 15 days stating the reason or reasons the 
application for payment is defective or improper or the 
reasons for the dispute.  A defective or improper 
application for payment, if corrected by the Contractor 
within seven days of being notified by the Owner, shall 
not cause a payment to be made later than specified 
in this section unless interest is also paid.  Payment of 
interest will be postponed when payment on the 
principal is delayed because of disagreement between 
the Owner and the Contractor. 

 
E.2.2 Contractor shall submit to the Owner's Authorized 

Representative, an application for each payment and, 
if required, receipts or other vouchers showing 
payments for materials and labor including payments 
to Subcontractors.  Contractor shall include, in its 
application for payment, a schedule of the 
percentages of the various parts of the Work 
completed, based on the Schedule of Values which 
shall aggregate to the payment application total, and 
shall include, on the face of each copy thereof, a 
certificate in substantially the following form: 

 
"I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the above bill is true 
and correct, and the payment therefore, has not been 
received. 
 
Signed:                                                  
 
E.2.3 Generally, request for payment will be accepted only  

for materials which have been installed. Under 
special conditions, payment requests for stored 
materials will be accepted at Owner's sole discretion. 
Such a payment, if made, will be subject to the 
following conditions: 

 

(a) The request for stored material shall be 
submitted at least 30 days in advance of the 
Application for Payment on which it appears. 
Requests for payment shall be entertained for 
major equipment, components or expenditures 
only. 

 
(b) The Contractor shall submit invoices showing 

the quantity and cost of the material stored. 
 

(c) The material shall be stored in a bonded 
warehouse and Owner's Authorized 
Representative shall be granted the right to 
access the material for the purpose of removal 
or inspection at any time during the Contract 
Period. 

 
(d) The Contractor shall name the Owner as co-

insured on the insurance policy covering the full 
value of the property while in the care and 
custody of the Contractor until it is installed.  A 
certificate noting this coverage shall be issued 
to the Owner. 

 
(e) Payments shall be made for material only.  The 

submitted invoice amount shall be reduced by 
the cost of transportation and for the cost of an 
inspector to check the delivery at out of town 
storage sites.  The cost of said inspection shall 
be born solely by the Contractor. 

 
(f) Within 60 days of the request for payment, the 

Contractor shall submit evidence of payment 
covering the material stored. 

 
(g) Payment for stored materials shall in no way 

indicate acceptance of the materials or waive 
any rights under this Contract for the rejection of 
the Work or materials not in conformance with 
the Contract Documents. 

 
(h) All required documentation must be submitted 

with the respective Application for Payment. 
 
E.2.4 The Owner reserves the right to withhold payment for 

Work which has been demonstrated or identified as 
failing to conform with the Contract Documents. 

 
E.3 PAYROLL CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENT 
 
E.3.1 Payroll certification is required before payments are 

made on the Contract.  Refer to Section C.2 for this 
information. 

 
E.4 RETAINAGE 
 
E.4.1 Retainage shall be withheld and released in 

accordance with ORS 279C.550 to 279C.570: 
 
E.4.1.1 Owner may reserve as retainage from any progress 

payment an amount not to exceed five percent of 
the payment.  As Work progresses, Owner may 
reduce the amount of the retainage and may 
eliminate retainage on any remaining monthly 
Contract payments after 50 percent of the Work 
under the Contract is completed if, in the Owner's 
opinion, such Work is progressing satisfactorily.  
Elimination or reduction of retainage shall be 

7 - 23



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 16 - 

allowed only upon written application by the 
Contractor, which application shall include written 
approval of Contractor's surety; except that when 
the Work is 97-1/2 percent completed the Owner 
may, at its discretion and without application by the 
Contractor, reduce the retained amount to 100 
percent of the value of the Work remaining to be 
done.  Upon receipt of written application by the 
Contractor, Owner shall respond in writing within a 
reasonable time. 

 
E.4.1.2 In accordance with the provisions of ORS 279C.560 

and related Oregon administrative rules, Contractor 
may request in writing: 

 
(a) to be paid amounts which would otherwise have 

been retained from progress payments where 
Contractor has deposited acceptable bonds and 
securities of equal value with Owner or in an 
escrow account, satisfactory to Owner, with an 
approved bank or trust company to be held in lieu of 
the cash retainage for the benefit of Owner; 

 
(b) that retainage be deposited in an interest bearing 

account, in a bank, savings bank, trust company or 
savings association for the benefit of Owner, with 
earnings from such account accruing to the 
Contractor; or 

 
(c) that the Owner allow Contractor to deposit a surety 

bond for the benefit of Owner, in a form acceptable 
to Owner, in lieu of all or a portion of funds retained, 
or to be retained.  Such bond and any proceeds 
therefrom shall be made subject to all claims and 
liens in the manner and priority as set forth for 
retainage under ORS 279C.550 to ORS 279C.570. 

 
 Where the Owner has agreed to the Contractor's 

election of option (a) or (b), Owner may recover 
from Contractor any additional costs incurred 
through such election by reducing Contractor's final 
payment.  Where the Owner has agreed to 
Contractor's election of option (c), Contractor shall 
accept like bonds from Subcontractors and 
suppliers on the Project. 

 
E. 4.1.3 The retainage held by Owner shall be included in 

and paid to the Contractor as part of the final 
payment of the Contract Price.  The Owner shall 
pay to Contractor interest at the rate of one and 
one-half percent per month on the final payment 
due Contractor, interest to commence 30 days after 
the Work under the Contract has been completed 
and accepted and to run until the date when final 
payment is tendered to Contractor.  The Contractor 
shall notify Owner in writing when the Contractor 
considers the Work complete and Owner shall, 
within 15 days after receiving the written notice, 
either accept the Work or notify the Contractor of 
Work yet to be performed on the Contract.  If Owner 
does not within the time allowed notify the 
Contractor of Work yet to be performed to fulfill 
contractual obligations, the interest provided by this 
subsection shall commence to run 30 days after the 
end of the 15-day period. 

 
E.4.1.4 In accordance with the provisions of ORS 

279C.560, Owner shall reduce the amount of the 
retainage if the Contractor notifies the controller of 
the Owner that the Contractor has deposited in a 
bank or trust company, in a manner authorized by 
the Owner's Authorized Representative, bonds and 

securities of equal value of a kind approved by the 
Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 
E.5 FINAL PAYMENT 
 
 Upon completion of all the Work under this 

Contract, the Contractor shall notify the Owner's 
Authorized Representative, in writing, that 
Contractor has completed Contractor's part of the 
Contract and shall request final payment.  Upon 
receipt of such notice the Owner's Authorized 
Representative will inspect the work, and if 
acceptable, submit to the Owner a recommendation 
as to acceptance of the completed Work and as to 
the final estimate of the amount due the Contractor.  
If the Work is not acceptable, Owner will notify 
Contractor within 15 days of Contractor's request 
for final payment.  Upon approval of this final 
estimate by the Owner and compliance by the 
Contractor with provisions in Section K. 3 
RELEASE OF LIENS AND CLAIMS, and other 
provisions as may be applicable, the Owner shall 
pay to the Contractor all monies due Contractor 
under the provisions of these Contract Documents. 

 
 
 
 
 

7 - 24



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 17 - 

SECTION F 
 

JOB SITE CONDITIONS
  

F.1 USE OF PREMISES 
 
 Contractor shall confine equipment, storage of 

materials and operation of Work to the limits 
indicated by Contract Documents, law, ordinances, 
permits or directions of the Owner's Authorized 
Representative.  Contractor shall follow the Owner's 
Authorized Representative's instructions regarding 
use of premises, if any. 

 
F.2 PROTECTION OF WORKERS, PROPERTY,   AND 

THE PUBLIC 
 
F.2.1 Contractor shall maintain continuous and adequate 

protection of all of the Work from damage, and shall 
protect the Owner's Authorized Representative, 
Owner's workers and property from injury or loss 
arising in connection with this Contract. Contractor 
shall remedy acceptably to the Owner, any damage, 
injury, or loss, except such as may be directly due to 
errors in the Contract Documents or caused by 
authorized representatives or personnel of the 
Owner. Contractor shall adequately protect adjacent 
property as provided by law and the Contract 
Documents. 

 
F.2.2 Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for 

the safety of all personnel on the job site, and shall 
comply with the Contract Documents and all 
applicable provisions of federal, state and municipal 
safety laws and building codes to prevent accidents 
or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the 
premises where the Work is being performed. 
Contractor shall erect and properly maintain at all 
times, as required by the conditions and progress of 
the Work, all necessary safeguards for protection of 
workers and the public against any hazards created 
by construction. Contractor shall designate a 
responsible employee or associate on the Work site, 
whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. The 
name and position of the person designated shall be 
reported to the Owner's Authorized Representative. 
The Owner's Authorized Representative has no 
responsibility for Work site safety.  Work site safety is 
the responsibility of the Contractor. 

 
F.2.3 Contractor shall not enter upon private property 

without first obtaining permission from the property 
owner or its duly authorized representative. 
Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation 
of all public and private property along and adjacent 
to the Work contemplated under the Contract and 
shall use every precaution necessary to prevent 
damage thereto. In the event the Contractor 
damages any property, the Contractor shall at once 
notify the property owner and make, or arrange to 
make, full restitution. Contractor shall report, 
immediately in writing, to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, all pertinent facts relating to such 
property damage and the ultimate disposition of the 
claim for damage. 

 
F.2.4 Contractor is responsible for protection of adjacent 

work areas including impacts brought about by 
activities, equipment, labor, utilities, and materials on 
the site. 

 

F.2.5 Contractor shall at all times direct its activities in such 
a manner as to minimize adverse effects on the 
environment.  Handling of all materials will be 
conducted so no release will occur that may pollute or 
become hazardous. 

 
F.2.6 In an emergency affecting the safety of life or of the 

Work or of adjoining property, the Contractor, without 
special instruction or authorization from the Owner's 
Authorized Representative, shall act reasonably to 
prevent threatened loss or injury, and shall so act, 
without appeal, if instructed by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative.  Any compensation claimed by the 
Contractor on account of emergency work shall be 
determined in accordance with section D. 

 
 
F.3 CUTTING AND PATCHING 
 
F.3.1 Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating all 

cutting, fitting, or patching of the Work to make its 
several parts come together properly and fit to receive 
or be received by work of other contractors or 
Subcontractors shown upon, or reasonably implied by, 
the Contract Documents. 

 
F.3.2 Contractor shall be responsible for restoring all cut, 

fitted, or patched surfaces to an original condition; 
provided, however, that if a different condition is 
specified in the Contract Documents, then Contractor 
shall be responsible for restoring such surfaces to the 
condition specified in the Contract Documents. 

 
F.4 CLEANING UP 
 

From time to time as may be ordered by the Owner 
and, in any event, immediately after completion of the 
Work, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, clean 
up and remove all refuse and unused materials of any 
kind resulting from the Work.  If Contractor fails to do 
so within twenty-four hours after notification by the 
Owner the work may be done by others and the cost 
charged to the Contractor and deducted from payment 
due the Contractor. 

 
F.5 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINATION 
 
F.5.1 Contractor will be held responsible for any and all 

spills, releases, discharge or leaks of environmental 
pollution during performance of the Contract which 
occur as a result of, or are contributed by, actions of 
its agent, personnel, or subcontractors.  Contractor 
agrees to promptly dispose of such spills, releases, 
discharge or leaks to satisfaction of the Owner and 
proper regulatory agencies in a manner that complies 
with applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations.  Cleanup shall be at no cost to the Owner 
and be performed by properly qualified personnel. 

 
F.5.1.1 Contractor shall obtain the Owner's written consent 

prior to bringing onto the Work site any (i) 
environmental pollutants or (ii) hazardous 
substances or materials, as the same or reasonably 
similar terms are used in any applicable federal, 
state, or local statutes, rules or ordinances.  
Notwithstanding such written consent from the 
Owner, the Contractor, at all times, shall: 

 

7 - 25



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 18 - 

(a) properly handle, use and dispose or all 
environmental pollutants and hazardous 
substances or materials brought onto the 
Work site, in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state, or local statutes, rules, or 
ordinances; 

(b) be responsible for any and all spills, releases, 
discharges, or leaks of (or from) 
environmental pollutants or hazardous 
substances or materials which Contractor has 
brought onto the Work site; and 

(c) promptly clean up, without cost to the Owner, 
such spills, releases, discharges, or leaks to 
the Owner's satisfaction and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state, or local 
statutes, rules or ordinances. 

 
F.5.1.2 Contractor shall be liable for any and all costs, 

expenses, damages, claims, and causes of action, 
or any of them, related to or arising out of a spill, 
release, discharge, or leak of (or from) any 
environmental pollutant or hazardous substance or 
material, to the extent such spill, release, discharge, 
or leak was caused or contributed to by Contractor's 
(i) negligence or (ii) failure to perform in accordance 
with the Contract Documents.  Nothing in this 
section F.5.1.2 shall limit Contractor's liability or 
responsibility under Section G.2. 1. I of this 
Contract. 

 
F.5.2 Contractor shall report all reportable quantity 

releases to applicable federal, state, and local 
regulatory and emergency response agencies.  
Reportable quantities are found in 40 CFR Part 
302, Table 302.4 for hazardous substances and in 
OAR Chapter 340 Division 108 for all products 
addressed therein.  Upon discovery, regardless of 
quantity, Contractor must telephonically report all 
releases to the Owner.  A written follow-up report 
shall be submitted to Owner within 48 hours of the 
telephonic report.  Such written report shall contain, 
as a minimum: 
(a) Description of items released (identity, 

quantity, manifest no., and all other 
documentation required by law.) 

(b) Whether amount of items released is 
EPA/DEQ reportable, and, if so, when it was 
reported. 

(c) Exact time and location of release, including 
a description of the area involved. 

(d)     Containment procedures initiated. 
(e) Summary of communications about the 

release Contractor has had with members of 
the press or  Owner officials other than 
Owner. 

(f) Description of cleanup procedures 
employed or to be employed at the site, 
including disposal location of spill residue. 

(g) Personnel injuries, if any, resulting from, or 
aggravated by, the release. 

 
F.6 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEAN-UP 
 
F.6.1 Unless disposition of environmental pollution is 

specifically a part of this Contract, or was caused by 
the Contractor (reference F.5 Environmental 
Contamination), Contractor shall immediately notify 
Owner of any hazardous substance(s) which 
Contractor discovers or encounters during 
performance of the Work required by this Contract.  
"Hazardous substance(s)" are those substances, 
materials or wastes regulated in 40 CFR, Part 261 
and defined as hazardous in 40 CFR S 261.3. In 

addition to notifying Owner of any hazardous 
substance(s) discovered or encountered, Contractor 
shall immediately cease working in any particular 
area of the Project where a hazardous substance(s) 
has been discovered or encountered if continued 
work in such area would present a risk or danger to 
the health or well being of Contractor's or any 
Subcontractor's work force. 

 
F.6.2 Upon being notified by Contractor of the presence of 

hazardous substance(s) on the Project site, Owner 
shall arrange for the proper disposition of such 
hazardous substance(s). 

 
 
F.7 FORCE MAJEURE 
 
F.7.1 Neither party to this Contract shall be held 

responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, 
acts of God, sovereign, or public enemy, strikes, 
freight embargoes and/or war which is beyond that 
party's control.  The Owner may terminate this 
Contract upon written notice after determining such 
delay or default will reasonably prevent successful 
performance of the Contract. 

 
F.7.2 In the event Force Majeure impacts this Project, the 

Owner may grant a reasonable extension of time, 
and there shall be no additional compensation paid 
to the Contractor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 - 26



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 19 - 

SECTION G 
 

BONDING AND INSURANCE 
 

 
G.1 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT SECURITY 
 
G.1.1 The Contractor shall furnish and maintain in effect 

at all times during the Contract Period, a bond to 
cover performance/payment in a sum equal to the 
Contract Price.   

 
G.1.2 A performance/payment bond issued by a surety 

company authorized to do business in Oregon is 
the only acceptable form of performance/payment 
security, unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner 
in writing. 

 
G.2 INSURANCE AND INDEMIFICATION 
 
G.2.1 Responsibility For Damages/ Hold Harmless: 
 
G.2.1.1 Contractor shall be responsible for all damage to 

property, injury to persons, and loss, expense, 
inconvenience, and delay that may be caused by, 
or result from, the carrying out of the Work to be 
done under this Contract, or from any act, omission 
or neglect of the Contractor, its Subcontractors, 
personnel, or agents.  Contractor shall indemnify, 
defend (with counsel of Owner's choice) and hold 
harmless the Owner against any claims arising from 
said damage, injury, loss, expense, inconvenience 
or delay. 

 
G.2.2 Primary Coverage: Insurance carried by Contractor 

under this Contract shall be the primary coverage, 
and the Owner's insurance is excess and solely for 
damages or losses for which the Owner is 
responsible. The coverage's indicated are 
minimums unless otherwise specified in the 
Contract Documents. 

 
G.2.3 Workers' Compensation: The Contractor, its 

Subcontractors, if any, and all employers providing 
work, labor, or materials under this Contract are 
subject employers under the Oregon Workers' 
Compensation Law and shall comply with ORS 
656.017, which requires them to provide workers' 
compensation coverage that satisfies Oregon Law 
for all their subject workers.  This shall include 
Employer's Liability Insurance with coverage limits 
of not less than $500,000 for each accident.  
Contractors who perform the Work without the 
assistance or labor of any employee need not 
obtain such coverage if the Contractor certifies so in 
writing.  The Contractor shall require proof of such 
Workers' Compensation by receiving and keeping 
on file a Certificate of Insurance from each 
Subcontractor or anyone else directly employed by 
either the Contractor or its Subcontractors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G.2.4 BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE – NOT 
APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTOR – OWNER TO 
CARRY   

 
G.2.4.1 Builder's Risk: During the term of this Contract, the 

Contractor shall maintain in force, at its own 
expense, Builder's Risk insurance on an all risk 
form, including earthquake and flood, for an amount 
equal to the full amount of the Contract.  Any 
deductible shall not exceed $50,000 for each loss, 
except the earthquake and flood deductible shall 
not exceed 2 percent of each loss or $50,000, 
whichever is more.  The policy will include as loss 
payees the Owner, the Contractor and its 
Subcontractors as their interests may appear. 

 
G.2.4.2 Builder's Risk Installation Floater: The Contractor 

shall obtain, at the Contractor's expense, and keep 
in effect during the term of this Contract, a Builder's 
Risk Installation Floater for coverage of the 
Contractor's labor, materials and equipment to be 
used for completion of the Work performed under 
this Contract.  'The minimum amount of coverage to 
be carried shall be equal to the full amount of the 
Contract.  This insurance shall include as loss 
payees the Owner, the Contractor and its 
Subcontractors as their interests may appear. 

 
G.2.5 LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
G.2.5.1 Commercial General Liability: Contractor shall 

obtain, at Contractor's expense, and keep in effect 
during the term of this Contract, Commercial 
General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury 
and property damage.  This insurance shall include 
coverage for the hazards of operations including 
explosion, collapse and underground coverage, 
elevators, independent contractors, employees as 
additional insureds, and broad form property 
damage. The insurance shall include personal 
injury coverage and contractual liability coverage for 
the indemnity provided for in this Contract, for 
contracts related to the Work, and 
products/completed operations liability.  The policy 
shall be endorsed to extend the completed 
operations for three years after Final Completion of 
the Work. Combined single limit per occurrence 
shall not be less than $3 million, or the equivalent.  
Each annual aggregate limit shall not be less than 
$1 million, when applicable. 

 
G.2.5.2 Automobile Liability: Contractor shall obtain, at 

Contractor's expense, and keep in effect during the 
term of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 
covering owned, non-owned and/or hired vehicles, 
as applicable. The coverage may be written in 
combination with the Commercial General Liability 
Insurance.  Combined single limit per occurrence 
shall not be less than $1,000,000.00 or the 
equivalent. 

7 - 27



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 20 - 

 
G.2.5.3 "Tail" Coverage: If any of the required liability 

insurance is arranged on a "claims made" basis, 
"tail" coverage will be required at the completion of 
this Contract for a duration of 24 months or the 
maximum time period the Contractor's insurer will 
provide such if less than 24 months.  Contractor will 
be responsible for furnishing certification of "tail" 
coverage as described or continuous "claims made" 
liability coverage for 24 months following Final 
Completion.  Continuous "claims made" coverage 
will be acceptable in lieu of "tail" coverage, provided 
its retroactive date is on or before the effective date 
of this Contract.  This will be a condition of the Final 
Acceptance of Work or Services and Related 
Warranty (if any). 

 
G.2.6 Additional Insured: The liability insurance coverage, 

required for performance of this Contract shall 
include Owner, members of its Board, its officers 
and employees, as Additional Insureds but only with 
respect to the Contractor's activities to be 
performed under this Contract. 

 
If Contractor cannot obtain an insurer to name 
Owner, members of its Board, its officers and 
employees as Additional Insureds, Contractor shall 
obtain at Contractor's expense, and keep in effect 
during the term of this Contract, Owners and 
Contractors Protective Liability Insurance, naming 
the Owner, members of its Board, its officers and 
employees as Named Insureds with not less than a 
$3 million limit per occurrence.  This policy must be 
kept in effect for 24 months following Final 
Completion.  As evidence of coverage, Contractor 
shall furnish the actual policy to Owner prior to its 
issuance of a Notice to Proceed. 

 

G.2.7 Notice of Cancellation or Change: There shall be no 
cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion 
of aggregate limits or intent not to renew insurance 
coverages) without 45 days' written notice from the 
Contractor or its insurer(s) to the Owner.  Any 
failure to comply with the reporting provisions of this 
insurance, except for the potential exhaustion of 
aggregate limits, shall not affect the coverages 
provided to the Owner the members of its Board of 
Education, officers,  or employees.   

 
G.2.8 Certificate(s) of Insurance: As evidence of the 

insurance coverage required by this Contract, the 
Contractor shall furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance 
to the Owner prior to its issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed.  The Certificate(s) will specify all of the 
parties who are Additional Insureds or Loss 
Payees.  Insurance coverage required under this 
Contract shall be obtained from acceptable 
insurance companies or entities authorized to do 
business in Oregon.  Contractor shall cause the 
insurer to strike out the clause "endeavor to send 
notice of cancellation" where such or a similar 
clause appears in any certificate.  The Contractor 
shall be financially responsible for all deductibles, 
self-insured retentions and/or self-insurance 
included hereunder.  Any deductible, self-insured 
retention and/or self-insurance in excess of 
$25,000 shall be disclosed to the Owner in writing 
prior to issuance of a Notice to Proceed and is 
subject to Owner's approval. All policies of 
insurance must be written by companies having an 
A.M. Best rating of "A VIII" or better.  The Owner 
may, upon thirty (30) days written notice to 
Contractor, require Contractor to change any 
carrier whose rating drops below the A VIII rating. 

 
 
 

7 - 28



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 21 - 

SECTION H 
SCHEDULE OF WORK 

 
 
H.1 CONTRACT PERIOD 
 
H.1.1 Time is of the essence on this Contract.  The 

Contractor shall at all times carry on the Work 
diligently, without delay and punctually fulfill all 
requirements herein.  Contractor shall commence 
Work on the site within 15 calendar days of Notice 
to Proceed, unless directed otherwise. 

 
H.1.2 Unless specifically extended by Change Order, all 

Work shall be complete by the date contained in the 
Contract Documents. 

 
H.1.3 The Owner shall not waive any rights under the 

Contract by permitting the Contractor to continue or 
complete the Work or any part of it after the date 
described in H.1.2 above. 

 
H.1.4 Any claim for additional time shall be based on 

written notice stating the general nature of the 
request, delivered to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, in accordance with D. 2. 1. As a 
part of this notice, the Contractor shall provide an 
estimate of the probable effect of such delay on the 
progress of the Work and Final Completion of the 
Project.  Failure to submit a suitable notice within 
the specified time period will result in the Contractor 
waiving this right to request additional time for that 
delay cause.  This does not abrogate Section D. 
1.5. 

 
H.2 SCHEDULE 
 
H.2.1 Contractor shall provide, by or before the 

pre-construction conference, a detailed schedule for 
review and acceptance by the Owner.  The 
submitted schedule must illustrate Work by 
significant Project components, significant labor 
trades, long lead items, broken down by building 
and/or floor where applicable.  Each schedule item 
shall account for no greater than 5 % of the 
monetary value of the Project or 5 % of the 
available time.  Schedules with activities of less 
than one day or valued at less than I % of the 
Contract will be considered too detailed and will not 
be accepted.  Schedules lacking adequate detail, or 
unreasonably detailed, will be rejected.  Included 
within the schedule are the following: Notice to 
Proceed, Substantial Completion, and Final 
Completion.  Schedules will be updated monthly 
and submitted with the monthly payment 
application.  Acceptance of the Schedule by the 
Owner does not constitute agreement by the 
Owner, as to the Contractor's sequencing, means, 
methods, or durations.  Any positive difference 
between the Contractor's scheduled completion and 
the Contract completion date is float owned by the 
Project.  Use of the float will be negotiated.  In no 
case shall the Contractor make a claim for delays if 
the Work is completed within the Contract time but 
after Contractor's scheduled completion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION I 
CORRECTION OF WORK 

 
 
I.1 CORRECTION OF WORK BEFORE FINAL 
 PAYMENT 
 

Work failing to conform to the Contract Documents 
shall be deemed defective.  Contractor shall promptly 
remove from the premises and replace, all defective 
materials as determined by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative as failing to conform to the Contract 
Documents, whether incorporated in the Work or not.  
Removal and replacement shall be without loss or 
expense to the Owner, and Contractor shall bear the 
cost of repairing all Work destroyed or damaged by 
such removal or replacement. 

 
I.2 WARRANTY WORK 
 
I.2.1 Neither the final certificate of payment nor any 

provision of the Contract Documents shall relieve the 
Contractor from responsibility for defective Work and, 
unless otherwise specified, Contractor shall correct 
any defects that appear in the Work within a period of 
one year from the date of issuance of the written 
Notice of Substantial Completion by the Owner 
except for latent defects which will be remedied by 
the Contractor at any time they become apparent.  
The Owner shall give Contractor notice of defects 
with reasonable promptness. 

 
I.2.2 This provision does not negate guarantees or 

warranties for periods longer than one year including 
without limitation such guarantees or warranties 
required by other sections of the Contract 
Documents for specific installations, materials, 
processes, equipment or fixtures. 

 
I.2.3 In addition to Contractor's warranty, manufacturer's 

warranties shall pass to the Owner and shall not take 
effect until affected Work has been accepted in 
writing by the Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 

7 - 29



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 22 - 

SECTION J 
SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF THE WORK 

 

 

 

 
J.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK  
 
J.1.1 The Owner and/or the Owner's Authorized 

Representative has the authority to suspend portions 
or all of the Work due to causes including, but not 
limited to: 
(a) Failure of the Contractor to correct unsafe 

conditions; 
(b) Failure of the Contractor to carry out any 

provision of the Contract; 
(c) Failure of the Contractor to carry out orders; 
(d) Conditions, in the opinion of the Owner's 

Authorized Representative, which are 
unsuitable for performing the Work; 

(e) Time required to investigate differing site 
conditions; 

(f) Any reason considered to be in the public interest. 
 
J.1.2 Contractor and the Contractor's Surety shall be 

notified in writing of the effective date and time of the 
suspension and shall be notified in writing to resume 
Work. 

 
J.2 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
J.2.1 During the period of the suspension, Contractor is 

responsible to continue maintenance at the Project 
just as if the Work were in progress.  This includes, 
but is not limited to, protection of completed Work, 
maintenance of access, protection of stored 
materials, temporary facilities, and clean-up. 

 
J.2.2 When the Work is recommenced after the 

suspension, the Contractor shall replace or renew 
any Work damaged during the suspension, remove 
any materials or facilities used as part of temporary 
maintenance, and complete the Project in every 
respect as though its prosecution had been 
continuous and without suspension. 

 
J.3 COMPENSATION FOR SUSPENSION 
 
J.3.1 Depending on the reason for suspension of the 

Work, the Contractor or the Owner may be due 
compensation by the other party.  If it was a 
Contractor caused suspension, the Owner may 
assess the Contractor actual costs of the suspension 
in terms of administration, remedial work by the 
Owner's forces or another contractor to correct the 
problem associated with the suspension, rent of 
temporary facilities, and other actual costs related to 
the suspension.  If the suspension was caused by 
the Owner, the Contractor shall be due 
compensation which shall be defined using Section 
D, Changes in the Work.  If the suspension was 
required through no fault of the Contractor or the 
Owner, neither party owes the other for the impact. 

 
J.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT 
 
J.4.1 The Owner, after providing Contractor an opportunity 

for remedy, may, without prejudice to any other right 
or remedy and after giving Contractor seven (7) days 
written notice, terminate the Contract under the 
conditions including but not limited to those listed 
below: 
(a) If Contractor should voluntarily or involuntarily, 

seek protection under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code and its Contractor as debtor-

in-possession or Trustee for the estate fail to 
assume the Contract within a reasonable time; 

(b) If Contractor should make a general assignment 
for the benefit of Contractor's creditors; 

(c) If a receiver should be appointed on account of 
Contractor's insolvency; 

(d) If Contractor should repeatedly refuse or fail to 
supply an adequate number of skilled workers 
or proper materials to carry on the Work as 
required by the Contract Documents, or 
otherwise fail to perform the Work in a timely 
manner; 

(e) If Contractor should repeatedly fail to make 
prompt payment to Subcontractors or for 
material or labor, or should disregard laws, 
ordinances or the instructions of the Owner or 
its Authorized Representative; or 

(f) If Contractor is otherwise in material breach of 
any part of the Contract. 

 
J.4.2 At any time the above occurs, Owner may take 

possession of the premises and of all materials and 
appliances and finish the Work by whatever method 
it may deem expedient.  In such case, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to receive further payment until 
the Work is completed.  If the Owner's cost of 
finishing the Work exceeds the unpaid balance of the 
Contract Price, Contractor shall pay the difference to 
Owner. 

 
J.5 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
J.5.1 Owner may terminate the Contract in whole or in part 

whenever Owner determines that termination of the 
Contract is in the best interest of the public. 

 
J.5.2 Owner will provide Contractor and Contractor's 

surety seven (7) days prior written notice of a 
termination for public convenience.  After such 
notice, Contractor and Contractor's surety shall 
provide Owner with immediate and peaceful 
possession of the premises and materials located on 
and off the premises for which Contractor received 
progress payment under Section E. Compensation 
for Work terminated by the Owner under this 
provision will be according to Section E. In no 
circumstance shall Contractor be entitled to lost 
profits due to termination. 

 
J.6 ACTION UPON TERMINATION 
 
J.6.1 Upon receiving a Notice of Termination, and except 

as directed otherwise by the Owner, Contractor shall 
immediately cease placing further subcontracts or 
orders for materials, services or facilities.  In addition, 
Contractor shall terminate all subcontracts or orders 
to the extent they relate to the Work terminated and, 
with the prior written approval of the Owner, settle all 
outstanding liabilities and termination settlement 
proposals arising from the termination of 
subcontracts and orders. 

 
J.6.2 As directed Owner, Contractor shall upon termination 

transfer title and deliver to Owner all Project 
documents, information and other property that, if the 
Contract had been completed, be required to be 
furnished Owner. 

 
 
 

7 - 30



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 23 - 

 
SECTION K 

CONTRACT CLOSE OUT 
 
 

K.1 RECORD DRAWINGS 
 

As a condition of final payment (refer also to section 
E.6), Contractor shall comply with the following:  
Contractor shall provide to Owner's Authorized 
Representative, record drawings of the entire Project. 
Record drawings shall depict the Project as 
constructed and shall reflect each and every change, 
modification, and deletion made during the 
construction.  Record drawings are part of the Work 
and shall be provided prior to the Owner's issuance 
of final payment.  Record drawings include all 
modifications to the Contract Documents unless 
otherwise directed. 

 
K.2 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS 
 

As part of the Work, Contractor shall submit two 
completed operation and maintenance manuals ("O 
& M Manual") for review by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative prior to submission of any pay 
request for more than 75% of the Work.  No 
payments beyond 75% will be made by the Owner 
until the O&M Manuals have been received.  The 
OEM Manuals shall contain a complete set of all 
submittals,  all product data as required by the 
specifications, training information, phone list of 
consultants, manufacturers, installer and suppliers, 
manufacturer's printed data, record and shop 
drawings, schematic diagrams of systems, 
appropriate equipment indices, warranties and 
bonds.  The Owner's Authorized Representative shall 
review and return one 0 & M Manual for any 
modifications or additions required.  Prior to 
submission of its final pay request, five (5) complete 
and approved sets of 0 & M Manuals shall be 
delivered to the Owner's Authorized Representative 
by the Contractor. 

 
K.3 RELEASE OF LIENS AND CLAIMS 
 

As a condition of final payment, the Contractor shall 
submit to the Owner's Authorized Representative a 
notarized Release of Liens and Claims Form, which 
states that all Subcontractors and suppliers have 
been paid in full, all disputes with property owners 
have been resolved, all obligations on the Project 
have been satisfied, all monetary claims and 
indebtedness have been paid, and that, to the best of 
the Contractor's knowledge, there are no claims of 
any kind outstanding against the Project.  The 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend (with counsel of 
Owner's choice) and hold harmless the Owner from 
all claims for labor and materials finished under this 
Contract.  The Contractor shall  furnish complete and 
valid releases or waivers, satisfactory to the Owner, 
of all liens arising out of or filed in connection with the 
Work. 

 
K.4 NOTICES 
 
K.4.1 Contractor shall provide Owner a written notice of 

both Substantial and Final Completion.  Both 
completion notices must be signed by the Owner's 
Authorized Representative to be valid. The Owner 
shall provided the final signature on the notices. The 
notices shall take effect on the date they are signed 
by the Owner. 

 
K.4.2 Substantial Completion of an operating facility shall 

be that degree of completion that has provided a 
minimum of 30 continuous days of successful, 
trouble-free operation, which period shall begin after 
all performance and acceptance testing has been 
successfully demonstrated to the Owner's Authorized 
Representative.  All equipment contained in the 
Work, plus all other components necessary to enable 
the Owner to operate the facility in the manner that 
was intended, shall be complete on the Substantial 
Completion date.  The Contractor may request that a 
punch list be prepared by the Owner's Authorized 
Representative with submission of the request for the 
Substantial Completion notice. 

 
K.4.3 Final Completion shall be when all Work is complete 

in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
K.5 TRAINING 
 

As part of the Work, and prior to submission of the 
request for final payment, the Contractor shall 
schedule with the Owner's Authorized 
Representative, training sessions for all equipment 
and systems, as required in the individual 
specifications sections.  Contractor shall schedule 
training sessions at least two weeks in advance of 
the date of training to allow Owner personnel 
adequate notice.  The 0 & M Manual shall be used 
as a basis for training.  Training shall be a formal 
session, held after the equipment and/or system is 
completely installed and operational in its normal 
operating environment. 

 
K.6 EXTRA MATERIALS 
 

As part of the Work, Contractor shall provide spare 
parts, extra maintenance materials, and other 
materials or products in the quantities specified in the 
specifications, prior to final payment.  Delivery point 
for extra materials shall be designated by the 
Owner's Authorized Representative. 

 
K.7 ENVIRONMENTAL CLEAN-UP 
 

As part of the Final Completion Notice, or as a 
separate written notice submitted with or before the 
Notice of Final Completion, the Contractor shall notify 
the Owner that all environmental pollution clean-up 
which was performed as a part of this Contract has 
been disposed of in accordance with all applicable 
rules, regulations, laws, and statutes of all agencies 
having jurisdiction over such environmental pollution.  
'The notice shall state that the Contractor shall 
indemnify, defend (with counsel of Owner's choice) 
and hold harmless the Owner from any claims 
resulting from the disposal of the environmental 
pollution including removal, encapsulation, 
transportation, handling, and storage. 

K.8 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 
 

The Contractor shall not be granted Final Completion 
or receive final payment if the Owner has not 
received an unconditioned Certificate of Occupancy 
from the appropriate state and/or local building 
officials. 
 

7 - 31



   

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

FOR SMALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT (NOT EXCEEDING $150,000) 
 - 24 - 

K.9 OTHER CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
Contractor shall be responsible for returning to the 
Owner all items issued during construction such as 
keys, security passes, site admittance badges, and 
all other pertinent items.  The Contractor shall be 
responsible for notifying the appropriate utility 
companies to transfer utility charges from the 

Contractor to the Owner.  The utility transfer date 
shall not be before Substantial Completion and may 
not be until Final Completion, if the Owner does not 
take beneficial use of the facility and the Contractor's 
forces continue with the Work. 

 

 
SECTION L 
LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC 

 
 

L.1 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED 
 

In compliance with ORS 279C.525 the following is a 
list of federal, state and local agencies of which the 
Owner has knowledge that have enacted ordinances 
or regulations relating to environmental pollution and 
the preservation of natural resources that may affect 
the performance of the Contract: 

 
 
L.2 FEDERAL AGENCIES 
 
Agriculture, Department of 
 
Forest Service 
 
Soil Conservation Service 
Coast Guard 
 
Defense, Department of  
 
Army Corps of Engineers 
 
Energy, Department of  
 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
 
Environmental Protection Agency 
 
Health and Human Services, Department of 
 
Housing and Urban Development, Department of 
 
Solar Energy and Energy Conservation Bank 
 
Interior, Department of 

Bureau of Land Management 
Bureau of Indian Affairs 
Bureau of Mines 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Geological Survey 
Minerals Management Service 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

 
Labor, Department of 

Mine Safety and Health Administration 
Occupation Safety and Health Administration 

 
Federal Highway Administration 
 
Water Resources Council 
 
 
L.3 STATE AGENCIES 
 
Administrative Services, Department of 
 
Agriculture, Department of Soil and Water Conservation 
Commission 
 
Columbia River Gorge Commission 

 
Energy, Department of 
 
Environmental Quality, Department of 
 
Fish and Wildlife, Department of 
 
Forestry, Department of 
 
Geology and Mineral Industries, Department of 
 
Human Resources, Department of 
 
Insurance and Finance, Department of 
 
Land Conservation and Development Commission 
 
Parks and Recreation, Department of 

State Lands, Division of 
Water Resources Department of 

 
 
L.4 LOCAL AGENCIES  
 
City Councils 
 
County Courts 
 
County Commissioner, Board of 
 
Design Commissions 
 
Historical Preservation Commission 
 
Planning Commissions 

7 - 32



8



8 - 1



Page 1 of 10 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GLADSTONE  

AND CLACKAMAS COUNTY RELATED TO THE CLACKAMAS COUNTY 

REGIONAL ADVANCED TRANSPORTATION CONTROLLER (ATC) AND SIGNAL 

OPTIMIZATION PROJECT 

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made on the date all required signatures have been 

obtained, between the Gladstone (“CITY”), a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, and 

Clackamas County (“COUNTY”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, pursuant to 

ORS Chapter 190 (Intergovernmental Cooperation), collectively referred to as the “PARITES” 

and each a “PARTY.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, ORS Chapter 190 authorizes local governments to enter into 

intergovernmental agreements for the performance of any or all functions and activities that a 

local government, its officers or agencies, have the authority to perform; 

WHERAS, the County applied for, and was awarded, federal funding through the Federal 

Transportation System Management and Operations (“TSMO”) to install and program advanced 

transportation controller (“ATC”) signal controllers at 99 intersections across the County in those 

locations generally depicted in Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein; 

WHEREAS, the 99 intersections that will be impacted by this project are spread across 

various jurisdictions in the County. The total cost of the project and the portion of project work 

attributable to each individual jurisdiction is set forth in Exhibit “C” which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein; 

WHEREAS, the County is administering the Clackamas County Regional ATC and 

Signal Optimization Project, described in the recital above, pursuant to Oregon Department of 

Transportation Agreement No. 34925/73000-00004353; 

WHEREAS, a portion of the work to be completed under the above-described project 

includes the replacement of three (3) existing traffic signals at intersections on roadways under 

the City’s jurisdiction with upgraded ATC equipment. Along with the controller, local software, 

and central signal system upgrade, intersection signal timing will be optimized for all users. The 

portion of the work to be completed under the above-described project at intersections on 

roadways under the City’s jurisdiction shall be referred to herein as the “City Project.” The 

locations which are part of the City Project are shown on the map attached hereto, marked 

“Exhibit A," and specifically listed in “Exhibit B”; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to define their respective obligations with regards to the 

City Project described herein, with the City primarily responsible for contributing funds to cover 

certain cost associated with the City Project, and with the County primarily responsible for 

completing and delivering the City Project as herein described. 

8 - 2



Page 2 of 10 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below and other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Term.  This Agreement becomes effective as of the last date of signature by a Party

indicated below.  Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement, this

Agreement will expire upon the completion of the Project by the County and the final

payment by the City pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, or by December 31, 2024,

whichever is sooner.

2. City Responsibilities.

A. The City agrees to the scope of work set forth in Exhibit “D” which is attached hereto

and incorporated herein.

B. The City agrees to allow the County and its employees, contractors and agents access to

the right of way and intersection signal equipment for purposes of completing the scope

of work set forth in Exhibit “D.”

C. Within 30 days of full execution of this Agreement, the City agrees to transfer to the

County the sum of $2,552.26, which represents the City’s proportional share of the

County’s match of eligible costs related to the entire Clackamas County Regional ATC

and Signal Optimization Project, as set forth in Oregon Department of Transportation

Agreement No. 34925/73000-00004353. The proportional share calculation of all

jurisdictions involved in the entire Clackamas County Regional ATC and Signal

Optimization Project is set forth in Exhibit “C”.

D. The City shall have the ultimate responsibility to approve the plans in writing for signal

phasing, timing, and coordination. The County, or its consultants, shall provide a

recommendation to the City, and the City shall not unreasonably withhold such written

approval so long as the recommendation conforms to International Municipal Signal

Association (IMSA) and Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) industry standards,

as well as the State of Oregon guidelines and specifications.

E. Within 30 days of receiving the County’s notice of completion, the City agrees to

promptly contact the County if any signal issues related to the City Project are witnessed

or reported to ensure timely repairs can be made. After such 30 day period, the City shall

be obligated to remedy any and all signal issues moving forward.

3. County Responsibilities.

A. The County agrees to the scope of work set forth in Exhibit “D” which is attached hereto

and incorporated herein.

B. Work shall be performed to IMSA and ITE industry standards, as well as the State of

Oregon guidelines and specifications. IMSA Certified Technicians shall perform the

traffic signal controller installation, configuration, and setup of the City’s signal system.

Certification level shall be commensurate with the task performed in accordance with

IMSA specifications.

8 - 3



Page 3 of 10 
 

C. After execution of this Agreement and payment in the amount specified in Section 2.C, 

the County agrees to complete the City Project on or before June 30, 2024. Upon 

completion, the County shall provide the City a written notice of completion. 

D. The County, or its consultants, shall provide a recommendation to the City for signal 

phasing, timing, and coordination. Any such recommendation shall conform to 

International Municipal Signal Association (IMSA) and Institute of Transportation 

Engineers (ITE) industry standards, as well as the State of Oregon guidelines and 

specifications. 

E. Within 30 days of providing the City the notice of completion, the County agrees to 

promptly respond to any signal issues related to the City Project that are identified by the 

City and that the County is made aware of. Costs to remedy any such issues shall be the 

responsibility of the County. 

4. Termination. 

A. The County and the City, by mutual written agreement, may terminate this Agreement at 

any time. 

B. Either the County or the City may terminate this Agreement in the event of a breach of 

the Agreement by the other.  Prior to such termination however, the Party seeking the 

termination shall give the other Party written notice of the breach and of the Party’s intent 

to terminate.  If the breaching Party has not entirely cured the breach within fifteen (15) 

days of deemed or actual receipt of the notice, then the Party giving notice may terminate 

the Agreement at any time thereafter by giving written notice of termination stating the 

effective date of the termination. If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be 

completely remedied within such fifteen (15) day period, this provision shall be complied 

with if the breaching Party begins correction of the default within the fifteen (15) day 

period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect the 

remedy as soon as practicable.  The Party giving notice shall not be required to give more 

than one (1) notice for a similar default in any twelve (12) month period. 

C. The County or the City shall not be deemed to have waived any breach of this Agreement 

by the other Party except by an express waiver in writing.  An express written waiver as 

to one breach shall not be deemed a waiver of any other breach not expressly identified, 

even though the other breach is of the same nature as that waived. 

D. Nothing herein shall prevent the Parties from meeting to mutually discuss the Project.  

Each Party shall use best efforts to coordinate with the other to minimize conflicts. 

E. Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations accrued 

to the Parties prior to termination. 

5. Indemnification.   

 

A. Subject to the limits of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act or 

successor statute, the County agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the City, its 

officers, elected officials, agents and employees from and against all costs, losses, 

damages, claims or actions and all expenses incidental to the investigation and defense 

thereof (including legal and other professional fees) arising out of or based upon damages 

or injuries to persons or property caused by the negligent or willful acts of the County or 

8 - 4



Page 4 of 10 
 

its officers, elected officials, owners, employees, agents, or its subcontractors or anyone 

over which the County has a right to control. 

 

B. Subject to the limits of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act or 

successor statute, the City agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the County, its 

officers, elected officials, agents and employees from and against all costs, losses, 

damages, claims or actions and all expenses incidental to the investigation and defense 

thereof (including legal and other professional fees) arising out of or based upon damages 

or injuries to persons or property caused by the negligent or willful acts of the City or its 

officers, elected officials, owners, employees, agents, or its subcontractors or anyone over 

which the City has a right to control. 

 

6. General Provisions 

 

A. Oregon Law and Forum.  This Agreement shall be construed according to the laws of 

the State of Oregon, without giving effect to the conflict of law provisions thereof. 

 

B. Applicable Law. The Parties hereto agree to comply in all ways with applicable local, 

state and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and regulations. 

 

C. Non-Exclusive Rights and Remedies. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, 

the rights and remedies expressly afforded under the provisions of this Agreement shall 

not be deemed exclusive and shall be in addition to and cumulative with any and all 

rights and remedies otherwise available at law or in equity.  The exercise by either Party 

of any one or more of such remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the same or 

different times, of any other remedies for the same default or breach, or for any other 

default or breach, by the other Party. 

 

D. Access to Records. The Parties acknowledge and agree that each Party, the federal 

government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to each Party’s 

books, documents, papers, and records which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for 

the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a period of three 

years after final payment.  Copies of applicable records shall be made available upon 

request.  The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the inspecting Party. 

 

E. Debt Limitation. This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon 

counties set forth in Article XI, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent 

upon funds being appropriated therefore. Any provisions herein which would conflict 

with law are deemed inoperative to that extent. 

 

F. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found to be unconstitutional, illegal 

or unenforceable, this Agreement nevertheless shall remain in full force and effect and 

the offending provision shall be stricken.  The Court or other authorized body finding 

such provision unconstitutional, illegal or unenforceable shall construe this Agreement 

8 - 5



Page 5 of 10 
 

without such provision to give effect to the maximum extent possible the intentions of the 

Parties. 

 

G. Integration, Amendment and Waiver.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, this 

Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties on the matter of the 

Project.  There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not 

specified herein regarding this Agreement.  No waiver, consent, modification or change 

of terms of this Agreement shall bind either Party unless in writing and signed by both 

Parties and all necessary approvals have been obtained.  Such waiver, consent, 

modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for 

the specific purpose given. The failure of either Party to enforce any provision of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by such Party of that or any other provision. 

 

H. Interpretation. The titles of the sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience 

of reference only and shall be disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its 

provisions. 

 

I. Independent Contractor. Each of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an independent 

contractor for purposes of this Agreement.  No representative, agent, employee or 

contractor of one Party shall be deemed to be a representative, agent, employee or 

contractor of the other Party for any purpose, except to the extent specifically provided 

herein.  Nothing herein is intended, nor shall it be construed, to create between the Parties 

any relationship of principal and agent, partnership, joint venture or any similar 

relationship, and each Party hereby specifically disclaims any such relationship. 

 

J. No Third-Party Beneficiary. Neither Party intends that this Agreement benefit, or create 

any right or cause of action in, or on behalf of, any person or entity other than the County 

or the City. 

 

K. No Assignment. No Party shall have the right to assign its interest in this Agreement (or 

any portion thereof) without the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent 

may be withheld for any reason. The benefits conferred by this Agreement, and the 

obligations assumed hereunder, shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors of the 

Parties.   

 

L. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts 

(electronic, facsimile or otherwise) all of which when taken together shall constitute one 

agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the 

same counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

 

M. Authority. Each Party represents that it has the authority to enter into this Agreement on 

its behalf and the individual signatory for a Party represents that it has been authorized by 

that Party to execute and deliver this Agreement. 

 

N. Necessary Acts.  Each Party shall execute and deliver to the others all such further 

instruments and documents as may be reasonably necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

8 - 6



Page 6 of 10 
 

 

 

CLACKAMAS COUNTY     CITY OF GLADSTONE 

 

              

Chair        Mayor 

 

              

Date        Date 

 

              

Recording Secretary       Recording Secretary 

 

 

8 - 7



Page 7 of 10 
 

Exhibit A 

 

Clackamas County Regional ATC and Signal Optimization Project Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 8



Page 8 of 10 
 

Exhibit B 

 

City Project Specific Location List 
 

 

ID# Location City Partner Quantity 

7520 Oatfield @ Webster Gladstone 1 

7521 82nd Dr @ Oatfield Gladstone 1 

7524 Portland @ Gloucester Gladstone 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 - 9



Page 9 of 10 
 

Exhibit C 

 

Proportional Share Table 

 

 

 

Fed Funds:  $  735,878.42    
Local Match 
(10.27%)  $    84,224.58    

Total Project Cost:  $  820,103.00    

    

  Controllers 
Proportional 
Share Local Match 

Clackamas County 22 22.22%  $  18,716.57  

Lake Oswego 27 27.27%  $  22,970.34  

Oregon City 16 16.16%  $  13,612.05  

Wilsonville 22 22.22%  $  18,716.57  

Milwaukie 8 8.08%  $    6,806.03  

Gladstone 3 3.03%  $    2,552.26  

West Linn 1 1.01%  $        850.75  

Total Controllers: 99     

 

 

  

8 - 10



Page 10 of 10 
 

Exhibit D 

 

Scope of Work 

 
The Clackamas County Regional ATC Controller & Signal Optimization Project includes the 

following elements: 

 

 Procurement of 99 Advanced Traffic Controllers (ATCs) to upgrade older traffic signals 

controllers that are no longer supported and do not provide the functionality desired for 

current signal operations. This includes locations owned by Clackamas County, City of 

Lake Oswego, City of Oregon City, City of Wilsonville, City of Milwaukie, City of 

Gladstone, and City of West Linn  

 Consultant support in signal timing conversions and optimizations 

 Clackamas County signal timing testing and deployment 

 New central signal system server for maintenance and operation of the traffic signals 

 
 

8 - 11





9



 

 

City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

             
 
Report Date: June 6, 2023  
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023 
To:    Gladstone City Council    
From:    Jacque Betz, City Administrator 

 
      
AGENDA ITEM 
Consider authorizing the City Administrator to approve an art easement with a private 
property owner for the purposes of creating a mural through the Pilot Mural Program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Gladstone launched a Pilot Mural Program (Exhibit A) as mural-making is a 
powerful avenue to engage artists and transform public spaces where visitors wander. 
This Pilot Mural Project will design and implement two high-quality outdoor painted murals 
that reflect the tourism themes and content highlighted in the community.  
 
The City recently solicited proposals from artists and the review committee selected Cathy 
Rowe ( https://www.cathyroweart.com/) to complete the first mural on the side of the 
building at the Gladstone Senior Center. Since the City owns the building, there is no 
requirement for an Art Easement. As a direct extension of the Tourism Strategy and Brand, 
the second mural will be designed and installed by Rotator Creative. The second location 
will be on private property on Portland Avenue and will require an Art Easement.  
 
The murals will focus on the theme of “Postcards of Gladstone” with the subtext of “glad 
to be here!” Additionally elements from the Community Engagement Activity completed in 
April 2023, (Exhibit B) will be incorporated into the murals. 
 
PROPOSAL 
The City Attorney prepared an Art Easement for the City Administrator and the private 
property owner to enter into. It states that the owner is willing to make the property 
available for the City for the placement of an outdoor mural as identified in the Pilot Mural 
Program (Attachment 1).  
 
The key elements of the easement: 

 The property owner grants the City the ability to install, maintain, operate, and 
exhibit the artwork. 
 

 The term of the easement is five years from the date of execution and can 
automatically renew for two consecutive two-year terms. 
 

 There are provisions for termination that include if the property is sold and the 
buyer requires in writing the removal of the easement as a condition of the 
purchase and sale; and/or if the property is substantially altered or remodeled in a 
way that precludes continued maintenance of the artwork.   

9 - 1



9 - 2



 

 

{00843118; 1 } 

After recording send to:  
City of Gladstone 
Mural Project 
18505 Portland Ave  
Gladstone, OR  97027 

 
 

 
ART EASEMENT 

 
 
 

THIS ART EASEMENT, effective on (month/day/year), is between (“Grantor”), and 
the City of Gladstone, an Oregon municipal corporation (“City” or “Grantee”). 

 
RECITALS 

 

A. The City has commenced a pilot mural project for the placement of two murals in and on public and 
private locations throughout the City that reflect the tourism themes and content highlighted by the community (the “City’s 
Mural Project”).  

B. Grantor owns the real property located at ____________________ “(Property”), which is legally 
described in Exhibit A (attached  and incorporated herein) and is willing to make Property available to the City for the 
placement of an outdoor mural as specified in the City’s Mural Project (hereinafter, “Artwork”). The Artwork is described 
in Exhibit B, attached and incorporated herein. 

 
IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual promises and performances set forth below, the parties incorporate the Recitals 

above and agree as follows: 
 

1. Grant of Easement. Grantor conveys, grants, and warrants to the City, its successors, and assigns, an 
easement for the purpose of installing, maintaining, operating, and exhibiting the Artwork at Property. 
 
2. Term of Easement. This easement shall be for a period of no less than five years from the date of execution 
(“Initial Term”) and will automatically renew for two consecutive two year terms  unless sooner terminated as 
provided in Section 3. 

 
3. Termination. 

 
a) The easement may be terminated by Grantor with the         City’s prior written consent, which shall not be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed, upon Grantor’s showing that:  
 

I. the Property is to be sold and the buyer requires in writing removal of the easement as a condition 
of the purchase and sale; or 

II. the Property is to be refinanced and the lender requires in writing removal of the easement as a 
condition of refinancing; or 

III. the Property is to be substantially remodeled or altered in a way that    precludes continued 
maintenance of the Artwork; or 

IV. circumstances have materially changed and the continued existence of the easement or 
maintenance of the Artwork substantially impedes Grantor’s reasonable use and enjoyment of the 
Property. 

 
b) The City may terminate the easement at any time at its sole discretion upon 30 days prior written 

notice to the Grantor. 
 

c) Grantor expressly agrees and warrants that upon effective termination under Section 3, the Artwork shall 
be removed by Grantor no later than 30-days from the effective date of termination and the Property 
restored to its prior condition. Time for removal may be extended in writing by the City. 

 
 

9 - 3



 

 

{00843118; 1 } 

 
4. Maintenance and Repair; Removal of Artwork. City of Gladstone is responsible for maintaining and if 
necessary, repairing the Artwork described in Exhibit B during the term of the easement. Grantor shall not obstruct or 
impede the City’s access to the portions of the Property for the City’s work. If in the sole judgment of the City, the 
Artwork is being excessively damaged and is beyond repair, the City may remove the Artwork from the Property or 
take action to repair or maintain the Artwork. If the City removes the Artwork from the Property, the City will 
restore the Property to its original condition where practicable.  

 
5. Right of Entry. The City shall have the right to access any portions of the Property at or near where the 
Artwork is located during normal business hours, and at all other times with advance approval of the Grantor, for any 
and all of the purposes described in this easement including but not limited to installation, inspection, repair, 
maintenance, or removal. 
 
6. Binding Effect. This easement shall run with the land and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
Grantor and the City, and their respective successors or assigns, and any person or entity acquiring any right, title, or 
interest in the Property. 
 
7. Independent Status. Neither party is the agent or legal representative of the other for any purpose 
whatsoever. The parties are not granted any express or implied right or authority to assume or create any obligation or 
responsibility on behalf of the other or to bind the other in any manner whatsoever. 
 
8. Notice. Notice shall be made to the following addresses, unless otherwise provided for in writing: 

 

City of Gladstone Grantor (name and mailing address) 
   
City of Gladstone     __________________________________________ 
18505 Portland Ave  
Gladstone, OR  97027    __________________________________________ 

 
 

9. Non-Assignment; Amendment. The parties’ obligations under this easement may not be assigned without the 
written mutual consent of both parties. The easement may be modified by written mutual agreement by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 
 
10. Remedies. The parties acknowledge that breaches of the covenants in this easement will effect substantial 
harm to the public interest which harm is difficult or impossible to prove as actual damages in an action hereunder.  
The parties agree that the prevailing party in an action for the breach shall be entitled to a) liquidated damages in an 
amount of $2,500 per material breach; b) specific performance of the covenants of this easement, and each of them; c) 
reasonable attorney’s fees; and d) any other remedies available at law or in equity.  The remedies under this Section 
are cumulative.  The failure to exercise on any occasion any right shall not operate to forfeit the right on another 
occasion.  The use of one remedy shall not be taken to exclude or waive the right to use another. 
 
11. Severability. If any term, provision, condition or other portion of this easement or the application thereof be 
held to be inoperative, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this easement or the application of the term or 
provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable shall not be 
affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
12. No Waiver. No waiver of full performance by any party shall be construed, or operate, as a waiver of any 
subsequent default or breach of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this easement. 

 
13. Indemnification. To the extent permitted by Oregon Law and subject to the limits of the Oregon Tort Claims 
Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, the City shall indemnify and defend Grantor against all claims, demands, actions and 
suits arising from tortious conduct by the City.  Grantor shall indemnify and defend the City against all claims, 
demands, actions and suits arising from tortious conduct by Grantor. 

 
14. Entire Agreement. This easement constitutes the entire agreement with respect to the subject matter of and 
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect to such matters. 

 
[ 

 
  

9 - 4



 

 

{00843118; 1 } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties/persons have caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized 
representative(s). 
 
     GRANTOR 
 
         By:         
     NAME OF GRANTOR REPRESENTATIVE 
 
             
     (Print name of grantor representative) 
      
             
        
     (Print title of grantor representative) 
 
 

 
 
STATE OF _______________ ) 
    ) ss. 
County of ________________ ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of  , 202__ by ___________________, as 
________________________________________ of the Grantor.  

      
Notary Public for   
My commission expires:   

 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE: City of Gladstone, Oregon 
 
 

By:   
 
 
 
Approval to Form 
 
 
City Attorney 
 

       
 
 
 
 

9 - 5



 

 

{00843118; 1 } 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description of the Property 

9 - 6



 

 

{00843118; 1 } 

Exhibit B 
 

Description of the Artwork 

9 - 7



 

 

PILOT MURAL PROJECT 

 

The City of Gladstone believes its most significant tourism impact comes from visitors discovering what is 

going on in the city. By highlighting opportunities to explore Gladstone, the intention is for visitors to invite 

their friends and return for further exploration. Tourism projects are moving forward now to “set the table” 

as Gladstone continues to grow and build out more structure and features. Beautification strives to draw in 

locals from surrounding areas and aims for visitors to leave with a positive experience and excitement to 

return. 

 

In line with the Tourism Strategy, the City of Gladstone is committed to promotional efforts with a strategic 

investment in the revitalization and beautification of the city. To lead this effort, Gladstone is launching a 

pilot mural project to encourage visitors to explore and discover more about the city and identified tourism 

themes.   

 

Mural-making is a powerful avenue to engage artists and transform public spaces where visitors wander. A 

pilot mural project will work with the community to design and implement two high-quality outdoor painted 

murals that reflect the tourism themes and content highlighted by the community. Two murals will focus 

on the theme of ‘Postcards of Gladstone’ with the subtext of “glad to be here!” Accompanying will be 

reproductions of the actual mural as printed postcards for distribution by various partners with licensing 

permission approved by selected artist. As a direct extension of the Tourism Strategy and brand, one mural 

will be designed and installed by Rotator Creative. A second mural will be designed by an artist chosen by 

review committee.  

 

Executed murals will serve as a tourist attraction and can provide an avenue for community engagement. 

As such, the city tourism consultant and tourism strategy partners will host community engagement 

opportunities on March 27, 2023, for guidance and direction on two murals. The City of Gladstone will 

consider all replies to call for artists. Artist will be chosen through a selective process and determined by 

committee.  

 

Call for artists will be posted on March 20th for two weeks. Selected artist will be notified by April 14, 

2023. Mural will be completed by June 30, 2023.The City of Gladstone will provide the selected artist with 

funding for supplies, artist compensation, technical support, city coordination, promotion, and assistance 

not to exceed $10,000 with an itemized budget. The mural will be within city sign code parameters, not to 

exceed 240 square feet. Artist will paint on MDO with the art to be fastened to an approved site. 

 

9 - 8

bannick
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A" 

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text



 

 
 

☐ Call for artist:    

 

The City of Gladstone is seeking a qualified artist to design, paint and install a mural to highlight one 

identified tourism theme. The mural will be within city sign code parameters, not to exceed 240 square 

feet. Artist will paint on MDO with the art to be fastened to an approved site. MDO material and 

fasteners will be provided by the City of Gladstone. Mural will be complete by June 30, 2023, and be 

highly visible, promoted through community partners and featured to visitors exploring the city. Printed 

postcards will be printed in the image of the completed mural. Permission to license images of the 

artwork are required prior to project start. Project will not exceed $10,000. 

 

To reply to the call for artist, submit the following by 12:00 pm April 3, 2023. 

 

1. Provide an artist biography, CV, and /or portfolio, with a description of your thoughts and ideas 

regarding your artistic process for this project and timeline.  

2. Statement agreeing to incorporate community input into deliverable.  

3. Email submission materials to: lori@loribellconsulting.org  

4. After selection:  Provide a signed Letter of Agreement, including licensing permission, and 

Liability Insurance certificate citing the City of Gladstone as held harmless for amount of one 

million dollars.  

 

☐ Selection criteria will consider:  

1. Inclusion of community input from public outreach.  

2. Demonstrated artist experience via biography, CV, and/or portfolio.  

 

OTHER GUIDELINES 

Murals should embody themes, colors, shapes, patterns, elements, and adjectives identified through 

community engagement in the development of Gladstone tourism strategy: 

https://www.ci.gladstone.or.us/community/page/gladstone-brand-and-tourism-strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9 - 9



 

 

 

☐ Selection  

 

Review committee includes representative from: 

 

1. Mt. Hood Territory - regional DMO tourism partner  

2. 2 representatives from Gladstone Senior Center – host mural site  

3. Gladstone Mayor – service to community and visitors of Gladstone  

4. Rotator Creative – artist consultant lead for Gladstone brand and Tourism Strategy  

 

☐ Selection criteria will consider:  

 

1. Inclusion of community input from public outreach.  

2. Demonstrated artist experience via biography, CV, and/or portfolio.  

Each category is eligible for 10 points, for a total score of 20 points. Representatives will meet to 

review and discuss in early April, for an award decision on April 14th.  

 

☐ Deliverables:  

 

1. One mural, painted on Senior Center by chosen artist. Artist to be selected by review committee. 

Mural will highlight one designated tourism theme from Tourism Strategy.  

2. One mural, Gladstone: ‘Glad to be here!’ Mural design by Rotator Creative, as extension of city 

brand.  

 

 

9 - 10



SUMMARY  o f  ACT IV ITY

703 PACIFIC AVENUE

TACOMA, WA 98402

ROTATORCREATIVE.COM

4

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY –  
Gladstone Mural Program

Combining efforts with the City of Gladstone, Lori Bell Consulting, 
and the team at ROTATOR, we engaged with community members 
to hear their insights and ideas about the city’s new mural program. 
The activity included creating eight style boards depicting various 
aspects of current mural styles from all over the country. The eight 
styles were defined as: Vibrant Collage, Historic Montage, Uplifting 
Messaging, Serene Scene, Photo Opp Illusions, Larger Than Life, 
Kinetic Activity, and Compartmentalized. This input will allow us to 
help inform the selected artist for the mural commission. We had 
43 participants give input. Summarizing their overall preferences, 
we can say that those who gave their input tended to appreciate 
a bit more Realism over Abstraction, Scenic over Conceptual, 
Pictorial over Word-based imagery, and all seemed to like vibrant 
colors and the idea of mural art that could create an opportunity 
for engagement. Although there was enthusiasm for virtually all of 
the examples, the theme, Serene Scene, was most popular. The 
theme, Photo Opp Illusions, was often mentioned in relation to 
combining styles. 

Once the artist for the Senior Center Mural is chosen this 
information will be passed along to help them as they create their 
artwork design for this project. 

9 - 11

bannick
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



Compartmentalized Words, images, and graphics contained 
within rectangular frames

9 - 12



Historic montage Keystone events, figures, monuments, etc. 
arranged in a collage-like fashion

9 - 13



Kinetic Activity Life forms in motion creating 
an energetic scene

9 - 14



Larger Than Life Large human forms that play with scale 
and portray subjects in heroic ways

9 - 15



Photo Opp Illusions Clever visual tricks that invite passersby to interact 
with the art to create photo-worthy moments

9 - 16



Serene Scene Background, midground, and foreground layers that form a 
holistic composition with a mix of discoverable elements 

9 - 17



Uplifting Messaging Decorative text as image that conveys a positive 
sentiment alongside supporting imagery

9 - 18



Vibrant Collage Richly colored shapes — literal or abstract — that 
nest, align, and/or overlap each other

9 - 19





 

 
CLACKAMAS 

FIRE DISTRICT 
#1 

REPORT 





10



                
    Here for you 
 

 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
May 2023

      

May 5: SQ319 and CCSO training to 
enhance the ability to reach and treat 
pa ents in high or low angle rescues 

*Note: Data is preliminary and is subject to revision as data is validated. 

Opera ons Levy: The levy is expected to pass with the 
County elec ons site showing 58% in favor of the levy. This 
levy does not change or fund staffing at the Gladstone 
Community Fire Sta on as that service level is established 
and paid for under a contract. 

High-Heat: During May, Clackamas Fire District responded 
to five water rescues during a three-day period of high heat, 
responded to mul ple vegeta on fires, and worked to 
reduce wildland fires by temporarily implemen ng burning 
restric ons. 

 

May 26: 
Interagency drill 
simula ng a car 
crash with 
leaking 
substances which 
required 
decontamina ng 
a vic m 

I-205 Bridge Construc on: Clackamas Fire District con nually evaluates the impacts of construc on 
closures. The Northbound on-ramp from Hwy 43/Exit 8 is closed through June 26. We expect this to 
have limited impact on our responses to the City of Gladstone. This is due to three factors:  

 Countywide we use closest-unit dispatching as the basis for its unit selec on. This means that 
the CAD evaluates the drive me of different units before selec ng the closest unit (of the 
required type) for an incident. 

 The county dispatch center, C-COM, enters road closures las ng more than 24-hours into CAD. 
This automa cally adjusts drive mes when iden fying the closest unit.  

 Responses from TVFR Sta on 58 will be affected, but this sta on only responded into Gladstone 
four mes in the last twelve months.  

10 - 1





11



 
 
 

GLADSTONE 
CITY 

EVENT  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

11 - 1





12



12 - 1



{00315189; 1 }

City of Gladstone 

Special Events Permit Application 

18505 Portland Avenue

Gladstone, Oregon 97027 

503-557-2769

Fill out completely and type or print legibly.  Completed applications must be submitted at least 30 calendar days in 

advance.   Failure to do so could result in permit denial.   

APPLICANT AND SPONSORING ORGANIZATION INFORMATION (Person/Group Responsible) 

Name of Applicant/Person Responsible: 

Applicant Street Address City, State, ZIP 

Applicant Phone: Applicant FAX: 

Sponsoring Organization Name: 

Organization Phone: ( office)    (cell)    (Email) 

Name of contact person “on site” day of the event:   (cell – required) 

EVENT INFORMATION 

Event Type    Run/Walk    Bike Ride/Race     Parade    Festival/Fair   Farmers/Street Market    Concert/Performance  
 Car Show    Film Production   Rally    Demonstration “First Amendment” Event    Street Closure 
 Construction (construction, road, sewer, water, drilling, blasting, etc)     Other (please specify):

Event Name:      Event Site: 

Event Dates: 

Event Hours: (start)   (end) 

Set-up Date:   Start Time   End Time 

Break-Down Date:   Start Time    End Time 

Participant type and 
numbers of each type: 

Participants: Vehicles: Bands: Animals: 

Spectators: Floats: Bikes: Other: 

Overall Event Description 

Briefly explain event and event details: 

STREET CLOSURE INFORMATION 

Names of streets to be closed (attach further closures on a separate sheet if needed) 

Between And 

Between And 

Between And 

Between And 

Between And 

Provide a detailed map that includes the start point, end point, direction of travel, and street names.  Include if the route will be held 
on sidewalk, street, etc.  Barricades, including set up and take down, will be the responsibility of the applicant to obtain (i.e. from a 
rental store) for the event.   

12 - 2



 

{00315189; 1 } 

 
 

Are you requesting a complete or rolling street closure?  Why are you requesting this street closure? 
(A completed Property Owner Notification Form must be completed and submitted with this application for complete street 
closures) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Time of Street Closure Start: End: 

Will your proposed route cross and/or utilize where TriMet operates?   Yes    No 
For TriMet bus maps please go to:  http://www.trimet.org/schedules/index.htm  (Contact TriMet at 503-962-8117.) 

EVENT DETAILS 

Does your event involve the sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages?    Yes    No  Oregon Liquor Control:  503-872-5000 
If yes, will this activity occur on (or spill into) city streets?   Yes    No 
If yes, please describe: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If alcohol will be served in any of the City’s parks, applicants must complete a permit request pursuant to Gladstone Municipal Code 
Section 12.12.100.  

Will items, food, drinks, or service be sold at your event?   Yes    No   If yes, will this activity occur on (or spill into city streets?  
  Yes    No  Please describe: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All vendors must possess a City of Gladstone Temporary Business License.  Additionally, all food vendors must have a signed 
application by the Clackamas County Health Department for the  Event.  The signed application must be on site as proof of 
Clackamas County Health Department approval.    http://www.clackamas.us/publichealth/restaurantlicensing.html  
Will the event have amplified sound?   Yes    No   If yes, a completed Noise Variance Application Form must be completed and 
submitted with this application.  

Will the event be posting signs?   Yes    No   If yes, a completed temporary sign application must be completed and submitted 
with this application. 

Safety/Environmental Requirements 

Temporary restrooms, hand washing stations, dumping/holding tanks, and recycling/garbage bins will be the responsibility of the 
applicant to rent.  No grey water may be dumped in storm drains, streets, grass areas, etc.   Violators may be cited and fined with 
the possibility of the entire event shut down.  

Please describe in detail, your restroom, dumping, garbage/recycling, clean-up plan for this event: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 - 3



12 - 4



 

{00315189; 1 } 

NEIGHBOR NOTIFICATION FORM 
 
Applicants for a Complete Street Closure and Noise Variances shall complete a Special Events Application and this Neighbor 
Notification Form must be signed by all residents within the area which will be seriously impacted by any requested temporary 
street closure, sound of amplified music, or any request which might have significant impact on area tenants. Failure to notify such 
tenants shall be cause for direct denial. If a house is vacant, indicate that on the notification form. 

Contact Person               

Day Phone       Evening Phone         

The Undersigned herby petition the City of Gladstone to close         
               (Street) 

Between       and      for a      to be  
(Street)      (Street)                (street closure, etc.) 

 

held on        from   ___          until        

By signing below, we abutting residents affected by the proposed closure, acknowledge notification of the above listed 

street closure. 

 PRINTED NAME  ADDRESS APPROVAL SIGNATURE 
1    

2    

3    

4    

5    

6    

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

16    

17    

18    

19    

20    

21    

22    

23    

24    

25    

 

You may attach additional sheets, if necessary. 

12 - 5



GLADSTONE COMMUNITY FESTIVAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 14th day of June, 2023, by and 
between the Gladstone Oak Lodge Rotary (User) and the City of Gladstone, a municipal 
corporation of the state of Oregon (City) to allow the User to use City property for the Gladstone 
Community Festival (Event). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, User will host a City-wide Event on August 4-5, 2023. This is the ninth year User 
will have hosted the event which will occur at sites around the City, including various streets for 
the parade (see map) and Max Patterson Memorial Park (Premises); and 
 
WHEREAS, User has submitted a special events permit application to the City pursuant to 
Chapter 12.22 of the Gladstone Municipal Code (GMC); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has assisted User and hosts of the event formerly known as the Gladstone 
Chautauqua Festival in the past through in-kind donations, staff time, City resources, and 
monetary contributions, and by paying for the movie on the annual Friday night “Movie in the 
Park”. 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to support the event now known as The Gladstone Community 
Festival which will benefit the city and will continue an event that has traditionally been held 
every year in the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFOR, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants of the parties 
set forth in this Agreement, the receipt and adequacy of which are acknowledged, the parties 
agree as follows: 
 

1. City Obligations The City agrees to the following to assist with the Event:  
a. Public works will deliver and set barriers and picnic tables at Max Patterson Park 

on the afternoon of August 3, 2023 and to be removed on the evening of August 
5, 2023 after all events have concluded. The City Public Works Director will 
coordinate with User on delivery and pick-up.  

b. Public Works will turn off the sprinklers in Max Patterson Park by 3:00 PM 
August 4, 2023 and will not resume before 6:00 AM August 7, 2023.  

c. Public Works will provide and set-up a water station for vendors at Max 
Patterson Park. User will coordinate exact location and times with the Public 
Works Director.  

d. Public Works will ensure that all electrical boxes at Max Patterson Park comply 
with the Code and are operational before the Event. In the event of electrical 
malfunction during the event, the City will make every reasonable effort to fix the 
problem. 

12 - 6



e. The Police Department will set0up and take down barriers for the parade on 
August 5. 2023. The Police Department will coordinate with User on set-up and 
take down of barriers for both events.  

f. To provide and pay for electricity and water used at Max Patterson Park from 
8:00 AM August 4, 2023 to 4:00 AM August 6, 2023.  

g. City will maintain normal hours for the spray park. City will keep Max Patterson 
Park restrooms open throughout the event. User is responsible for cleaning and 
maintaining the restrooms. User is responsible for the cost and coordination of 
all necessary portable toilets.  

h. City will attach and pay for Gladstone Community Festival flier insert in July’s 
City Newsletter. 

 
2. User Obligations 

 
a. The User, its employees, sub-contractors, guests, patrons, and invitees shall use 

the premises in a safe, careful, lawful, and respectful manner, and use reasonable, 
best efforts to ensure the Premises and other City property are not altered, 
marred, defaced, or damaged. User shall be responsible for all costs, 
arrangements, and equipment related to production of the Event, including but 
not limited to removal of trash, renting portable toilets, setting up and tearing 
down portable stages, erecting and taking down barriers and caution tape around 
the event. All invoices for services provided to User shall be invoiced to User, not 
the City. 

 
3. Special Event Permit 

 
a. User agrees to obtain a special event permit from the City pursuant to Chapter 

12.22 of the GMC.  
b. City agrees to waive the special event permit fee so long as the User meets the 

following requirements:  
i. User agrees to comply with all City event permit, parade, signage, and 

GMC requirements.  
ii. User is registered with the State of Oregon as a nonprofit corporation 

and/or the federal government as a 503(c)(3) organization; and  
iii. Event will be free and open to the public 

 
4. Indemnification 

 
The User shall hold and save the City, its officers, directors, elected officials, 
employees, and agents harmless from all claims, costs, loss, or damage of any 
kind or nature whatsoever arising out of the Event (Indemnified Claims) which 
may be sustained by reason of any act or omission on the part of the User, its 
vendors, employees, guests, patrons, invitees, or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them 
may be liable. User agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless City, its 

12 - 7



elected and appointed officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers 
against all liability, claims, suites, or actions, of whatsoever nature loss or 
expenses, including attorney fees, based upon or arising out of the acts or 
omissions of the User with respect to the use of traffic pylons, as well as the acts 
or omissions of any of its subcontractors, volunteers, or employees under this 
Agreement except those acts or omissions arising solely out of the negligence of 
the City. User will pay all reasonable attorney and expert fees and costs relating 
to such defense and will conduct all steps or proceedings in connection with such 
defense and as required settling or defending such Indemnified Claims, including 
without limitation the employment of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the City. 

 
5. Insurance 

 
User shall obtain prior to beginning any work under this Agreement and shall 
maintain in full force and effect through the tear down date of the Event, or any 
other time periods required herein, at User’s expense, an occurrence form 
comprehensive general liability and automobile insurance policies for bodily 
injury, including death, and broad form property damage, including loss of 
property and coverage for owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles, as applicable, for 
the protection of User and the City, its elected and appointed officials, officers, 
agents, employees, and volunteers as additional insureds. The policies shall be 
primary policies and any other insurance carried by the City shall be excess. The 
policies shall be issued by a company authorized to do business in the State of 
Oregon, maintain an A-rated financial rating as published by AM Best and 
provide limits no less than $2,000,000 in general liability coverage and separate 
automobile coverage of $2,000,000. The certificates shall provide the City will 
receive 30 (thirty) days written notice of cancellation or material modification of 
the insurance contract. User shall provide certificates of insurance and additional 
insured endorsements to City evidencing the date, amount, and type of insurance 
prior to commencement of any work under this Agreement. If requested, 
complete copies of insurance policies shall be provided to City. User shall be 
financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retentions 
and/or self-insurance. 

 
6. Waiver 

 
The User hereby surrenders and gives up all right to any claim for compensation 
for any loss or damage sustained by reason of any defect, deficiency, failure, or 
impairment of the water supply, drainage, electrical, or other services provided 
by the City. The City shall not be liable for any claim if the Event sites are 
damaged by fire or other casualty, or for any other act, including strikes, utility 
failure, or acts of God, which prevent the User from holding the Event. 

12 - 8



7. Administration 
 

The administration of Agreement by the City shall be by the City Administrator 
or designated agent. 

 
8. Assignment 

 
This Agreement shall not be deemed for the benefit of any entity or person who is 
not a party hereto, and neither this Agreement, nor any interest therein may be 
assigned by the User without written approval of the City. 

 
9. Entire Agreement 

 
This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties regarding the 
subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 
negotiations and agreements, whether written or oral, between the parties with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

 
10. Staff Contact Information 

 
Principal City Contact  
Tami Bannick, City Hall 
503-557-2769 
bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us 

 
Insurance/Contracts 
Tami Bannick  
503-557-2769 
bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us 

 
Operations/Road Closures  
Darren Caniparoli, Public Works 
Director 503-483-6300 
caniparoli@ci.gladstone.or.us 

 
Police Department  
John Schmerber, Police Chief 
503-557-2765 
jschmerber@ci.gladstone.or.us 

 
Emergency 9-1-1  
Non Emergency Dispatch: 503-655-8211 

12 - 9



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the year and day first 
above written. 
 
GLADSTONE OAK LODGE 
ROTARY FOUNDATION 
 

 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
__________________  
Bryce Colson  
Festival Chair 

 
__________________________  
Jacque Betz  
City Administrator 

12 - 10



GLADSTONE COMMUNITY FESTIVAL AGREEMENT 2023  
EXHIBIT “A”  

I. PROPOSED AGREEMENT 
 

The User, Gladstone Oak Lodge Rotary Foundation, shall have the right to use the 
Premises and a portion of the public right-of-way during designated times as listed 
below and in the Permit Application only for the 2023 Gladstone Community Festival 
(hereafter GCF) with City approval. The following dates and times are tentatively 
planned: 

 
Premise(s)  
Date(s)/Time(s) 

 
Max Patterson Park  
Event – August 4, 2023 Movie in the Park  
Event – August 4, 2023 – August 5, 2023 GCF Event  

Set Up - August 3, 2023  
Tear down – complete by August 6, 2023, 4:00 a.m. 

 
Premise(s)   
 

Parade Route (See Article II.1 for specific streets)  
Event – August 5, 2023  
Set up – begins August 5, 2023 – 8:00 a.m.  
Tear down – complete August 6, 2023, 1:00 p.m. 

 
 

1. The User, its employees, sub-contractors, guests, patrons, and invitees shall use the 
premise in a safe, careful and lawful manner, and as reasonable, best efforts to ensure 
the Premises and other City property not altered, marred, or defaced.  

 
2. User shall be responsible for all costs, arrangements, and equipment related to 
production of the Event, including but not limited to removal of trash, renting 
portable toilets, setting up and tearing down portable stages, and erection and taking 
down temporary fencing. All invoices for services provided to User shall be invoiced to 
User, not City. 

 
II. PARADE 
 

1. The Event will include a parade which will be routed from Portland Avenue to 
Hereford Street to Harvard Avenue to Gloucester Street to Portland Avenue to 
Berkeley Street to Yale Avenue where the parade will end. The streets along the parade 
route will be temporarily closed from 8:30 a.m. to Noon on August 5, 2023. 

 
2. User agrees to notify all owners with property on and adjacent to the parade route and 
those parties nearby that will be affected by street closures. Notification will be in 
writing a minimum of two weeks prior to the parade. 

12 - 11



 
III. OTHER ROAD CLOSURES 
 

The City agrees to the following road closures during the Event:  
1. Exeter Street between Cornell and Yale for the exclusive use of emergency vehicles.  
2. East Fairfield closed between Cornell and Yale for vendor booths.  
3. Cornell Avenue between East Fairfield and East Exeter Street for the main stage.  
4. Road closures for Parade as listed in Section II above. 

 
IV. ROAD CHANGES 
 

(Reserved for later discussion) 
 
V. VENDORS 
 

1. User agrees that all vendors for commercial amusement rides, food, game 
concessions, novelty stand, shows, support vehicles and equipment (Vendors) shall be 
fully inspected, permitted or licensed as required by state law and shall strictly comply 
with every provision of appropriate city, county, state, federal, and other governmental 
law, rule or regulation applicable in any manner to its activities. Discussion with the city 
will be had regarding amusement activities. 

 
2. User will require all Vendors to obtain a Gladstone business license/mobile vendor 
permit, unless specifically exempt under state or federal law, to be authorized to 
operate within the City. 

 
3. User will require that all food Vendors obtain and maintain appropriate restaurant 
licensing, and must meet all federal, state and local health code requirements. 

 
4. User shall keep all Vendor records on file and provide a copy of them to the 
City Administrator by July 25th each year. 

 
5. User will inform all Vendors that no dumping of any grey water into the storm drains is 
permitted. User will be responsible for any dumping that occurs during the Event. 

 
6. User must provide the City will all Vendor certificates of insurances and 
endorsements naming the City as an additional insured for the event. 

 
VI. SECURITY 
 

User shall hire and assign security as necessary to protect the Premises and patrons 
during this event. The security company must be licensed and bonded in Oregon. 
All security personnel must be easily identifiable with a shirt, badge, or other item 
that shows they are Event Staff. 

12 - 12



 
VII. TRAFFIC CONTROL 
 

User shall have traffic control personnel (flaggers) position as necessary for Event 
safety. Flaggers must possess a Certified State Flagger Card that is ODOT approved. 
Flaggers must be easily identifiable with a reflective vest that shows they are Event Staff. 

 
VIII. ALCOHOL 
 

User agrees that no alcohol will be served or sold on any City property during the 
Event with the exception of alcohol that would be served and consumed in an age 
restricted area with City approval. 

 
IX. CITY’S DUTIES  

Any work that the City performs for the Event will be reimbursed by the Rotary Club of 
Gladstone Oak Lodge. An itemized bill will be provided to the Rotary Club of Gladstone 
Oak Lodge and paid in full to the City within 30 days of invoice. The City may, in its sole 
discretion, agree to forgive any such invoice for City services or expenses provided to 
the GCF. City will provide the following services for the Event. 

 
1. The City agrees to loan User barricades and have them available at agreed upon 
locations. User is responsible for setting up and tearing down barricades, returning 
them to agreed upon locations. 

 
2. The City agrees to provide usage of available electrical hookups and will not bill 
the User for electricity used at Patterson Park. 

 
3. The GCF is also asking that the City forgive the cost of the Event insert in the 
City’s July newsletter. 

 
4. Public Works will have the lawn mowed by Wednesday August 2nd, 2023, provide 
a facility key to the festival chairperson, ensure toilet paper is stocked, and sprinkler 
systems are shut off the morning of August 3, 2023. 

 
X. USER’S DUTIES  

In addition to other User responsibilities set forth herein: 
 

1. The User will be responsible for actual repair and/or clean-up costs incurred by 
the City if City property is damaged or vandalized as a result of Users use of the 
Premises under this Agreement and User agrees to reimburse the City for any such 
actual expenses. 

 
2. User shall, at its expense, provide an emergency plan which must include a first 
aid station equipped with Emergency Medical Technicians on standby throughout 
the scheduled Event hours. 

12 - 13



 
3. User will require all food Vendors to have temporary health permits and conform to 
all regulations as stated by the Clackamas County Health District. 

 
4. User shall prohibit patrons from bringing glass containers of any kind onto the 
premises. 

 
5. User is responsible for all Event management issues not specifically enumerated in 
the Agreement. 

 
6. User is to provide all lighting for the Event including the illumination of parking 
areas for safety. 

 
7. User is to provide all generators needed and have them inspected and approved by 
the Fire Marshal after set up but before usage. 

 
8. User is to provide temporary restroom facilities at all locations including restrooms 
that are ADA compliant. User is to provide dumping tanks for the disposal of 
Vendor’s grey water. 

 
9. Any services contracted by the User are to be billed to and in the name of the 
User. The City shall not incur any bills on behalf of the User. 

 
10. User is to contract for the disposal of all trash, provide all trash receptacles and 
empty trash containers as frequently as needed. 

 
11. User is to provide smoking receptacles for the safe and appropriate disposal of 
used cigarettes. 

 
12. User will assist City to pick up and return traffic pylons should they become 
necessary to use at the GCF. 

12 - 14



12 - 15



12 - 16



12 - 17



 
2023 GLADSTONE COMMUNITY FESTIVAL 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
POLICE DEPARTMENT ESTIMATE: 

 
Staff Time: 
 

 Full-time Officers  40 hours/overtime $4,500.00 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

PUBLIC WORKS HOURS: 
 

Books to John Wetten Elementary:  20 hours 
 
Logistics & Picnic Tables:  

 6 hours Pick up tables from storage 
 2 hours Purchase and pick up lumber, hardware, tools, generator, etc. 
 16 hours Repair & paint tables 
 8 hours Set up tables in proper locations in park 
 6 hours Return tables to storage 

 
Traffic Control: 

 6 hours Set up barricades & cones 
 4 hours Supervise logistics 
 2 hours Street sweeping routes 
 6 hours Pick up and return barricades and cones to storage 

 
 12 hours parade barricades 

 
Estimated total labor hours for Public Works Community Festival Preparation: 
 

Estimated cost: $3,900.00 
 

 

12 - 18



13



13 - 1



13 - 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1215 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
A Resolution Renaming the Gladstone Senior Center to the Gladstone Community Center –  

The Spirit of Generations. 
 
WHEREAS, the Gladstone Senior Center grand opening was June 6, 1981. The Senior Center was opened to allow 

seniors a special gathering place for senior needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Gladstone Senior Center has been a vibrant gathering place for local seniors to congregate, receive 

hot meals, receive ride assistance to local grocery stores and doctor’s appointments, as well as 
participate in numerous free classes and activities such as card/ game playing, exercise classes, and 
TRAM trips to local entertainment and adventure; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Gladstone Senior Center was closed in 2020 due to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic but 

continued to provide services, homebound meals, congregate drive through meals while discussion 
followed regarding creating a re-opening plan to determine options for programming once the Senior 
Center was allowed to re-open; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Gladstone Senior Center was re-opened in August 2021 and included the development of a 

Community Services Manager position in lieu of the Senior Center Manager position, responsible 
for the operations of the Senior Center with an emphasis on development and coordination of 
volunteers, special programs and activities for a greater population in Gladstone. This position will 
also receive direction to oversee the Senior Center as “emergency resource center” and 

 
WHEREAS,  In the Gladstone City Council adopted goals, the City Council desires to increase involvement for 

all, which includes completing a community engagement process to update the name of the Gladstone 
Senior Center to expand multigenerational services, programs, and activities at the Senior Center; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Gladstone Senior Center Advisory Board conducted two surveys in 2023 asking the community for 

suggestions of renaming the Gladstone Senior Center to incorporate the new mission and vision of 
the Center which is to enhance the vitality and wellness of multigenerational community through 
meaningful connections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Senior Center Advisory Board unanimously recommends the renaming of the Gladstone Senior 

Center based on community outreach and survey results to The Gladstone Community Center – the 
Spirit of Generations. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Gladstone, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Oregon, the following: 
 

Section 1. The Gladstone Senior Center will be renamed “The Gladstone Community Center – The 
Spirit of Generations.” 

 
Section 2: This resolution becomes effective upon approval.    

 
This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council this        day of                            , 2023. 

 
ATTEST: 
 

 
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor                 Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

13 - 3





14



14 - 1



 RESOLUTION NO. 1216 

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, declaring the City of 
Gladstone’s election to receive State Revenue Sharing funds (General funds of the 

State) in the 2023-2025 Biennium.  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Gladstone desires to receive state revenue sharing funds apportioned and 

distributed to the cities of the state during the 2023-2025 biennium as provided in ORS 
221.770; and 

 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.770(1)(a) requires that any city electing to receive a distribution must enact an 

ordinance or resolution expressing that election and file the same with the Oregon 
Department of Administrative Services no later than June 30th; and 

 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.770(1)(b) requires that any city electing to receive a distribution must hold at 

least one public hearing at which citizens have the opportunity to provide written or 
oral comment on the possible uses of the distributions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Gladstone Budget Committee held a public hearing on the use of State 

Revenue Sharing funds on May 30, 2023 and June 13, 2023; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Gladstone, that the city hereby 
elects to receive its proportionate share of the state revenues for the 2023-2025 biennium budget  
pursuant to ORS 221.770 and has met the requirements of ORS 221.770(1) as certified in the 
declaration certificate.  
 
This Resolution is adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 13th  day 
of June, 2023. 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Tami Bannick, City Recorder 
 
 
 

14 - 2



 
 
 

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, Tami Bannick, City Recorder, certify that a public hearing before the Budget Committee was held 
on May 30, 2023 and a public hearing before the City Council on June 13, 2023, giving citizens the 
opportunity to comment on the use of state revenue sharing funds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        _______________________________ 
        Tami Bannick, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

14 - 3





15



15 - 1



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1217 

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, certifying the City 
of Gladstone is eligible in the 2023-2025 biennium to receive state shared 

revenues (Cigarette, Liquor and highway gas taxes) as the city provides four or 
more municipal services.   

 
WHEREAS, ORS 221.760 provides as follows: 

Section 1.  The officer responsible for disbursing funds to cities under ORS 323.455, 366.785 to 
366.820 and 471.805 shall, in the case of a city located within a county having more than 100,000 
inhabitants according to the most recent federal decennial census, disburse such funds only if 
the city provides four or more of the following services: 

 (1) Police protection 
 (2) Fire protection 
 (3) Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
 (4) Sanitary sewer 
 (5) Storm sewers 
 (6) Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 

(7) One or more utility services; and 
 
WHEREAS, city officials recognize the desirability of assisting state officers who are responsible 
for determining the eligibility of cities to receive such funds in accordance with ORS 221.760. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Gladstone hereby certifies 
that it provides the following four or more municipal services as enumerated in Section 1, ORS 
221.760: 

(1) Police protection 
(2) Fire protection 

 (3) Street construction, maintenance, and lighting 
 (4) Sanitary sewer 
 (5) Storm sewers 
 (6) Planning, zoning, and subdivision control 
  

 
This Resolution is adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 13th 

day of June, 2023.  
       ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

15 - 2



16



16 - 1



 
 
 
 
Suggested Motions (need all motions separately):  
 
 

1. Adopting the Budget 
I move to adopt Resolution 1218 adopting the 2023-2025 Biennium Budget in the 
sum of $71,374,314. 

 
2. Imposing the Tax 
I move to adopt Resolution 1218, for both tax years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025, 
imposing the taxes at a rate of $4.8174 per $1,000 of assessed value for the 
permanent tax rate; and at the rate of $0.68 per $1,000 for the Police & 
Communications local option tax; and $0.31 per $1,000 for the Fire and Emergency 
Medical local option tax.  

 
3. Categorizing the Tax 
I move to adopt Resolution 1218, for both tax years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025, 
categorizing the imposed taxes as follows: 
 
General Fund $4.8174 per $1,000; Excluded from Limitation = $0 
Police/Communications Fund $0.68 per $1,000; Excluded from Limitation = $0 
Fire and Emergency Medical Fund $0.31 per $1,000; Excluded from Limitation = $0  

 

16 - 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1218 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2023-2025 BIENNIUM BUDGET 

 AND SETTING THE TAX RATE 

BE IT RESOLVED the Council of the City of Gladstone hereby adopts the budget for the 2023-2025 
Biennium in the sum of $71,374,314 now on file at the City Recorder’s Office, 18505 Portland Ave., 
Gladstone. 

BE IT RESOLVED the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and for the purposes shown 
below are hereby appropriated: 

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS  

GENERAL FUND 
 Administration $4,094,179   
 Information Technology 869,314 
 Facilities 5,368,469 
 Municipal Court 811,114 
 Police  6,992,477 
 Fire 3,668,444 
 Parks 1,825,987 
 Recreation 37,700 
 Senior Center 909,605 
 Library 446,540 
 Debt Service 1,218,274 
 Contingency          821,908 
  Total General Fund $27,064,011 
 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUND 
 Operations $513,844 
 Interfund Transfers   1,853,500 
  Total American Rescue Plan Act Fund $2,367,344 
 
ROAD & STREET FUND 
 Road & Street Operations $4,887,159 
 Interfund Transfers 1,417,382 
 Contingency      400,000 
  Total Road & Street Fund $6,704,541 
 
POLICE & COMMUNICATIONS LEVY FUND 
 Police Levy Operations $1,447,301 
 Contingency Funds        105,197 
  Total Police & Communications Levy Fund $1,552,498 
 
FIRE & EMERGENCY SERVICES LEVY FUND 
 Fire/EMS Operations $861,889 
  Total Fire & Emergency Services Levy Fund $861,889 
  

16 - 3



 
SEWER FUND 
 Sewer Operations $13,154,413 
 Interfund Transfers 880,175 
 Contingency           400,000 
  Total Sewer Fund $14,434,588 
 
WATER FUND 
 Water Operations $11,127,501 
 Debt Service 357,376 
 Interfund Transfers 872,678 
 Contingency      400,000 
  Total Water Fund $12,757,555  
 
STORM WATER FUND  
 Storm Water Operations $3,784,287 
 Interfund Transfers 537,601 
 Contingency         400,000 
  Total Storm Water Fund $4,721,888 
 
MUNICIPAL COURT FUND 
 Municipal Court Operations $870,000 
 Contingency      40,000 
  Total Municipal Court Operations $910,000 
 
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS/ADOPTED BUDGET ALL FUNDS $71,374,314 
  
IMPOSING THE TAX 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the following ad valorem taxes are hereby imposed upon the assessed value of all 
taxable property within the district for tax years 2023-24 and 2024-25: 
1) At the rate of $4.8174 per $1,000 of assessed value for the permanent tax rate; 
2) At the rate of $0.68 per $1,000 of assessed value for the Police & Communications local option tax; 
3) At the rate of $0.31 per $1,000 of assessed value for the Fire & Emergency Services local option tax. 
 
CATEGORIZING THE TAX 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the taxes imposed are hereby categorized for purposes of Article XI section 11b as: 
 
SUBJECT TO GENERAL GOVERNMENT LIMITATION EXCLUDED FROM LIMITATION 
General Fund  $4.8174/$1,000  $0.0 
Police & Comm. Levy Fund   $0.68/$1,000  $0.0 
Fire & EMS Levy Fund $0.31/$1,000  $0.0  
     
This resolution is effective July 1, 2023, the above resolution approved and the 2023-2025 Biennium 
Budget declared adopted on the 13th day of June, 2023. 
 
   ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ _______________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

16 - 4







17



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL/URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 9, 2023 
 
Meeting was called to order at approximately 7:18 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                     
Mayor Michael Milch, Councilor Alexander, Councilor Garlington, Councilor Huckaby, Councilor Reichle, 
Councilor Roberts, Councilor Cook 
 
ABSENT: None.                                                                                                                                                                             
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Cathy Brucker, Finance Consultant; Chad Jacobs, City Attorney; Tami Bannick, 
City Recorder; 
Mayor Milch called the meeting to order. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 

12. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 14, 2023 MEETING MINUTES:                                                                                 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to approve the February 14, 2023 meeting minutes.  Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Roberts.   Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor  Alexander – yes. Councilor 
Huckaby – yes. Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor 
Reichle – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 

13. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION UR-71, A BUDGET RESOLUTION TRANSFER WITHIN 
ORGANIZATION UNIT CATEGORIES: 
Ms. Brucker said this resolution requests the transfer of funds between the contingency and materials and 
services organization units within the current biennium budget of $40,000.  This will keep the URA budget 
in compliance for the 2022-2023 fiscal year.  The Gladstone Library settlement agreement between the 
City and Clackamas County committed the City to paying half of the demolition costs of the former City 
Hall building.  It was originally budgeted at approximately $150,000 from the Urban Renewal 2021-2023 
budget.  Other unknown costs have increased the total project by approximately $40,000.  The funds are 
available within the contingency line item and may be transferred by resolution pursuant to ORS 294.463 
(2) from one organization unit to another within the same fund.  There is no overall increase to the Urban 
Renewal budget.   
 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to adopt Resolution UR-71 to transfer $40,000 from Contingency to 
Materials and Services and remain at $4,370,839 as permitted by ORS 294.463 (2).  Motion was seconded 
by Councilor Huckaby. Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Cook – 
yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor 
Garlington – yes.   Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 
ADJOURN:        
(There was no motion or vote taken to adjourn the meeting.) 
 
Mayor Milch adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:22 P.M.   
 
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2023. 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

17 - 1





18



18 - 1



18 - 2



 

 

 
 RESOLUTION UR-72 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE 2023-2025 BIENNIUM 
AND SETTING THE TAX RATE 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Urban Renewal Agency of the Gladstone Urban Renewal District hereby adopts 
the budget for the 2023-2025 Biennium in the sum of $5,227,997 now on file at the City Recorder’s Office, 
18505 Portland Avenue, Gladstone. 
 
RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and for the purposes shown 
below are hereby appropriated: 
 
URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT:            
Materials & Services                                     $    129,000 
Debt Service   1,076,272  
Special Payments   590,503 
Contingency Funds           3,432,222 
Total Urban Renewal District Fund   $ 5,227,997 
  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS ALL FUNDS:  $ 5,227,997 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARING TAX INCREMENT 
 
☒ Option One - Declaration of Tax Increment 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Urban Renewal Agency of the Gladstone Urban Renewal District hereby 
resolves to certify to the county assessor for the Gladstone Urban Renewal District Plan Area a request 
for the maximum amount of revenue that may be raised by dividing the taxes under section 1c, Article 
XI, of the Oregon Constitution and $0.00 as the amount to be raised through the imposition of a special 
levy for both tax years 2023-24 and 2024-25. 

 
 

Resolution UR-72 is effective on July 1, 2023. 
 
THE ABOVE RESOLUTION STATEMENTS WERE APPROVED AND DECLARED ADOPTED ON THIS 13th DAY OF 
JUNE, 2023. 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________________  ________________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Chairperson,   Tami Bannick, City Recorder 
Gladstone Urban Renewal Agency   

18 - 3






	Name of ApplicantPerson Responsible_OBJ192: Bryce Colson, Festival Chairman
	Applicant Street Address_OBJ198: 680 E Dartmouth St
	City State ZIP_OBJ200: Gladstone, OR 97027
	Applicant Phone_OBJ202: 971.323.3083
	Applicant FAX_OBJ204: 
	Sponsoring Organization Name_OBJ206: Gladstone Oak Lodge Rotary Foundation                EMAIL: b.colson@gladstoneoaklodgerotary.org
	Text1_OBJ208: 
	Text2_OBJ211: 971.323.3083
	Text3_OBJ213: (see above)
	Text4_OBJ215: Bryce Colson
	Text5_OBJ217: 971.323.3083
	RunWalk_OBJ219: Off
	Bike RideRace_OBJ224: Off
	Parade_OBJ228: On
	FestivalFair_OBJ232: On
	FarmersStreet Market_OBJ236: Off
	ConcertPerformance_OBJ240: On
	Car Show_OBJ244: Off
	Film Production_OBJ248: Off
	Rally_OBJ252: Off
	Demonstration First Amendment Event_OBJ256: Off
	Street Closure_OBJ260: On
	Construction construction road sewer water drilling blasting etc_OBJ264: Off
	Other please specify_OBJ268: Off
	Text11_OBJ272: 
	Text6_OBJ275: Gladstone Community Festival
	Event Name Event Site_OBJ277: Max Patterson Park
	Event Dates_OBJ279: Aug 4-5, 2023
	Text7_OBJ281: 9am
	Event Hours start end_OBJ283: Midnight
	Text12_OBJ285: 8.4
	Text13_OBJ287: 7am
	Setup Date Start Time End Time_OBJ289: Noon
	Text14_OBJ291: 8.6
	Text16_OBJ293: 9a
	BreakDown Date Start Time End Time_OBJ295: 5pm
	Participants_OBJ297: 150
	Vehicles_OBJ299: 
	Bands_OBJ301: 6
	Animals_OBJ303: 
	Spectators_OBJ305: 10,000
	Floats_OBJ307: 40
	Bikes_OBJ309: 
	Other_OBJ311: 
	Briefly explain event and event details_OBJ313: The Gladstone Community Festival, hosted by the Gladstone Oak Lodge Rotary Foundation, brings together over 50 local artisans, community organizations, and food vendors for a weekend of live music, beer garden, parade, free attractions for the kids, BINGO, and lots of community fun. We also have a pickleball tournament that runs Friday through Sunday.
	Names of streets to be closed attach further closures on a separate sheet if neededRow1_OBJ315: E Fairfield St
	Between_OBJ317: Harvard Ave
	And_OBJ319: Cornell Ave
	Names of streets to be closed attach further closures on a separate sheet if neededRow2_OBJ321: E Exeter St
	Between_2_OBJ323: Harvard Ave
	And_2_OBJ325: Cornell Ave
	Names of streets to be closed attach further closures on a separate sheet if neededRow3_OBJ327: Cornell Ave
	Between_3_OBJ329: E Exeter St
	And_3_OBJ331: E Fairfield St
	Names of streets to be closed attach further closures on a separate sheet if neededRow4_OBJ333: 
	Between_4_OBJ335: 
	And_4_OBJ337: 
	Names of streets to be closed attach further closures on a separate sheet if neededRow5_OBJ339: 
	Between_5_OBJ341: 
	And_5_OBJ343: 
	Provide a detailed map that includes the start point end point direction of travel and street names Include if the route will be held on sidewalk street etc  Barricades including set up and take down will be the responsibility of the applicant to obtain ie from a rental store for the event_OBJ345: Please see attached parade route for other street closures on Saturday, August 5th from 9am to Noon.
	Are you requesting a complete or rolling street closure Why are you requesting this street closure A completed Property Owner Notification Form must be completed and submitted with this application for complete street closures_OBJ348: For the festival at Max Patterson, we request full close of the streets for the entirety of the event, Friday Aug 4, 7am-Midnight and Saturday Aug 5, 7am-Midnight. The parade closures will only need to be between 9am-noon on Saturday Aug 5.
	Time of Street Closure_OBJ354: See Above
	Start_OBJ356: See above
	End_OBJ358: See Above
	Trimet_OBJ365: Yes
	Does your event involve the sale alcohol_OBJ376: Yes
	City street_OBJ387: No
	Text15_OBJ393: All alcohol must remain in the beer garden, centrally located in the park. 
	Food and Drinks be sold?_OBJ400: No
	City Streets?_OBJ411: yes
	Text17_OBJ417: Food vendors will be located on E Fairfield St against the South Curb bordering the park.
	Signs be posted_OBJ424: Yes
	Amplified sound_OBJ435: Yes
	Please describe in detail your restroom dumping garbagerecycling cleanup plan for this event_OBJ441: We have several portable toilets brought in by a local firm, B&B leasing brings us extra garbage and recycling bins to be spread out at the festival. We get can/bottle recycling receptacles from Clackamas County Services. 
	Contact Person_OBJ445: Bryce Colson
	Day Phone_OBJ451: 971.323.3083
	Evening Phone_OBJ453: 
	The Undersigned herby petition the City of Gladstone to close_OBJ455: E Exeter & E Fairfield
	Between_6_OBJ457: Harvard
	and_OBJ459: Cornell
	for a_OBJ461: Festival
	held on_OBJ463: Aug 4-5
	Text10_OBJ465: 10am
	until_OBJ467: Midnight


